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(1) 

EXAMINING THE IRS’S ROLE IN IMPLE-
MENTING AND ENFORCING OBAMACARE 

Wednesday, October 9, 2013 

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, 
COMMITTEE ON OVERSIGHT AND GOVERNMENT REFORM, 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 
The committee met, pursuant to call, at 9:38 a.m., in Room 2154, 

Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Darrell E. Issa [chairman of 
the committee] presiding. 

Present: Representatives Issa, Mica, Turner, Duncan, McHenry, 
Jordan, Chaffetz, Walberg, Lankford, Amash, Gosar, DesJarlais, 
Gowdy, Farenthold, Hastings, Woodall, Collins, Meadows, 
Bentivolio, DeSantis, Cummings, Maloney, Norton, Tierney, Lynch, 
Connolly, Speier, Cartwright, Pocan, Duckworth, Kelly, Davis, 
Welch, Cardenas, Horsford, and Lujan Grisham. 

Staff Present: Brian Blase, Senior Professional Staff Member; 
Molly Boyl, Senior Counsel and Parliamentarian; Lawrence J. 
Brady, Staff Director; David Brewer, Senior Counsel; Daniel 
Bucheli, Assistant Clerk; Caitlin Carroll, Deputy Press Secretary; 
Sharon Casey, Senior Assistant Clerk; Steve Castor, General Coun-
sel; Drew Colliatie, Professional Staff Member; John Cuaderes, 
Deputy Staff Director; Adam P. Fromm, Director of Member Serv-
ices and Committee Operations; Linda Good, Chief Clerk; Meinan 
Goto, Professional Staff Member; Tyler Grimm, Senior Professional 
Staff Member; Frederick Hill, Director of Communications and Sen-
ior Policy Advisor; Christopher Hixon, Deputy Chief Counsel, Over-
sight; Michael R. Kiko, Staff Assistant; Emily Martin, Counsel; 
Laura L. Rush, Deputy Chief Clerk; Sarah Vance, Assistant Clerk; 
Rebecca Watkins, Deputy Director of Communications; Tamara Al-
exander, Minority Counsel; Meghan Berroya, Minority Counsel; 
Yvette Cravins, Minority Counsel; Susanne Sachsman Grooms, Mi-
nority Deputy Staff Director/Chief Counsel; Jennifer Hoffman, Mi-
nority Communications Director; Chris Knauer, Minority Senior In-
vestigator; Elisa LaNier, Minority Director of Operations; Una Lee, 
Minority Counsel; Juan McCullum, Minority Clerk; Dave Rapallo, 
Minority Staff Director; and Daniel Roberts, Minority Staff Assist-
ant/Legislative Correspondent. 

Chairman ISSA. The committee will come to order. 
The Oversight Committee exists to secure two fundamental prin-

ciples: First, Americans have a right to know that the money 
Washington takes from them at the IRS is well-spent. And, second, 
Americans deserve an efficient, effective government that works for 
them. Our duty on the Oversight and Government Reform is to 
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protect these rights, along with every—every right articulated in 
the Constitution. 

Our solemn responsibility is to hold government accountable to 
taxpayers, because taxpayers have a right to know what they get 
from their government. It is our job to work tirelessly, in partner-
ship with citizen watchdogs, to deliver the facts to the American 
people and bring genuine reform to the Federal bureaucracy. 

Today, the American people are suffering through a second week 
of a partial shutdown, created by an inability of Congress and 
President Obama to compromise, to reach an agreement on funding 
the government. But, more importantly, the funding of the govern-
ment today is virtually impossible without dealing with entitle-
ments. 

One of the central issues in dispute is Obamacare, formerly 
called the Affordable Care Act, but since no part of it makes it 
more affordable except through subsidies, both the President and 
the Congress have chosen to call it Obamacare. For today’s hear-
ing, we will call it Obamacare. 

Three and a half years after the Affordable Care Act became law, 
the administration is struggling to launch this massive program 
and, in fact, is failing. It is the chatter on nighttime comedy that, 
in fact, you can probably download anything and everything faster 
than you can get onto an IRS site. The fact is that, while no mitiga-
tion in the responsibility to both pay taxes or to buy Obamacare, 
Americans are unable to get on the site. If they get on the site, it 
is confusing, and, without a doubt, there are few choices. 

The promise of Obamacare, to bring people better health care for 
less, has been just the opposite. Healthcare rates in the private sec-
tor have risen precipitously. And the promise to provide you the op-
portunity to keep the health care you have and the doctor you have 
has gone just the opposite. If you go to the exchanges, it is unlikely 
that you are going to find the availability of your doctor for your 
health care. And, in fact, hundreds of thousands of Americans are 
being thrown out of healthcare programs and onto the exchanges 
as a result of this law. 

We are not here today to relitigate the questions of a partisan, 
Democratic-controlled House and Senate on a completely partisan 
basis passing a law, 2,400 pages plus, and saying, ‘‘You’ll find out 
what’s in it. After it passes, you can read it.’’ We are not here to 
do that, but it is, in fact, the result of that kind of legislation that 
has led us to find that after 3 years of our witness working at the 
IRS with partisan officials at the White House on an almost daily 
basis, we have the implementation of a one-sided, we-know-it-all 
type of law. 

Today, we will hit a number of areas, including did the IRS plan 
to fail or did they fail to plan in a way that was open and trans-
parent and consistent with the law. Just as 90 percent of an ice-
berg is below water, the problem in the user experience on the Web 
site is generally dwarfed by deficiencies that happened behind the 
scenes on the back end. 

Previous hearings of this committee have shown that even the 
contractor chosen to implement the data-sharing is one that has 
had failures that resulted in privileged information, including So-
cial Security numbers, being lost. Undoubtedly, this will occur 
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again, since every State, thousands and thousands of individuals 
now have access to your taxpayer information as part of 
Obamacare, and you, in fact, have no control over who those people 
are and how they are selected. 

Additionally, some of the most vulnerable among us are being 
sold and signed up for Obamacare by people who have no training 
in HIPAA, no training in any of the protections of sensitive 
healthcare information. But that is a law, and we will go through 
it. 

Today’s hearing has a lot to do with the 47 new provisions, in-
cluding 18 new taxes expected to raise $1 trillion over the next 10 
years, in a program that will cost many times that with other tax-
payers’ costs. 

Obamacare gives the IRS power to force Americans to purchase 
health care and levy a penalty/tax, as determined by the Supreme 
Court, on those who are delinquent. And yet, even though the em-
ployer mandate has a penalty of $3,000 per worker, it is very clear 
that it is often better for the employer to dump their workers and 
their retirees in order to avoid an onerous set of new rules. 

That is part of what this committee has been looking at. And, in 
fact, while the Treasury Department plans to send health insur-
ance subsidies directly to an insurance company, if the Treasury 
sends too much to a health insurance company, the plan is for the 
IRS to go after taxpayers to collect the overpayment. Yes, if there 
is a mistake made, you will pay for it. 

In the wake of the IRS scandal caused by an effort to target 
Americans because of their political beliefs, Americans concerned 
about the IRS and how they will handle this personal and private 
information have every reason to be concerned. Who will have ac-
cess to the highly personal health and financial information? A 
great many people, most of whom you don’t know. There will be no 
control over it at the Federal level or State level that meets the re-
quirements of the privacy acts of health insurance. 

Additionally, the IRS has repeatedly made mistakes in disclosing 
information, most often conservative groups and their donors. 
Those kind of mistakes could be amplified repeatedly, either delib-
erately or accidentally—we are still trying to determine that—but 
the accidents seem to keep coming. The accidental targeting of 
hundreds of conservative groups, including Tea Party groups, has 
not abated. In fact, many of those groups have still not received 
their approvals or denials, something that our witness knows some-
thing about. 

What information in the individual tax return will the IRS be 
sharing with officials outside the agency? My ranking member’s 
home State of Maryland, in fact, leaves some question about 
whether or not the State will take the information collected and 
use it in other ways, including garnishments or other tax levy. The 
truth is, once the government has more information about every-
thing, including your cost of health care, who lives in your home, 
who you are claiming, it will add to the ability for both the Federal 
and State to tax you further and ask more onerous questions. 

The U.S. Government Accountability Office described a data hub, 
as a ‘‘complex undertaking involving the coordinated actions of 
multiple Federal, State, and private stakeholders.’’ 
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During the committee hearing in July, Alan Duncan, Assistant 
Inspector General for Audit for the Treasury Inspector General for 
Tax Administration, testified that, in fact, TIGTA remains con-
cerned about the protection of confidential taxpayer information 
that will be provided to State and Federal agencies broadly. 

The Assistant Inspector General also testified that it would be 
difficult to complete all the interagency testing of the hub prior to 
October 1st, and, in fact, not all of it was done. We went live with 
beta software for the Affordable Care Act, and it shows. It shows 
every day, as the American people struggle to try to get informa-
tion. 

In September, the problem became more than just worries when 
a Minnesota exchange admitted to accidentally—and I repeat, acci-
dentally—releasing sensitive information that contained names, ad-
dresses, and Social Security numbers for 2,400 brokers. This is, as 
I said earlier, just the tip of the iceberg. 

Let us all be honest: Obamacare’s first week has been a mess. 
But we can’t undo the last week, and there are no mulligans. This, 
in fact, will continue day after day, and there will be no do-overs. 
We can only admit that the law is not ready for prime time, look 
for ways to mitigate it, and ask for the administration to be under-
standing that what man and Congress creates, in fact, will always 
have some flaws in it. 

Today’s witness, Ms. Sarah Hall Ingram, is here to testify and 
answer our questions. Ms. Hall Ingram is the Director of the IRS’s 
Affordable Care Act Office. Before overseeing Obamacare imple-
mentation for the IRS, Ms. Hall Ingram was the Commissioner for 
the IRS Tax Exempt and Government Entities Division. She served 
full-time in that role from 2009 to 2010. 

The administration has already delayed or revised several parts 
of the health law, and, in many cases, unilateral action was di-
rectly at odds with congressional law. Many Americans have been 
uneasy, feeling that the administration is flying Obamacare by the 
seat of its pants. There are some sobering recognitions that, in fact, 
Executive orders not contemplated in the law seem to be an every-
day occurrence, while changes to the law seem to be, by definition, 
impossible. It is our hope that Ms. Hall Ingram will spell out the 
challenges the IRS is facing so that we stop reading the surprising, 
yet still unsurprising, news of how implementation is going poorly. 

In closing, this is not going to be the committee’s final hearing 
on Obamacare implementation. The ranking member has indicated 
that he wants to hear more from IRS witnesses. I do, too. Our in-
tent is to bring additional IRS officials for testimony in the future, 
but today we are focused on Ms. Hall Ingram. 

I might note two things. First, repeatedly, when we have asked 
for Ms. Ingram, we have been asked to and we have deferred and 
allowed other witnesses. Today, the determination was that the 
person who by definition was at the center of the targeting of con-
servative groups for a period of 2009 to 2010 and the person who 
has owned Obamacare since its passage, virtually since its passage, 
for implementation must be heard from. 

Although there are individuals behind the witness, they will not 
be sworn and they will not be permitted to testify. The only witness 
today is Ms. Hall Ingram. And I will take responsibility directly for 
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asking the Commissioner not to attend, since he was not there at 
the time and was brought in only when the scandal over targeting 
conservatives became a problem. We have a fact witness in front 
of us. My hope is that she will be candid in the release of all the 
facts. 

I have also been notified that the ranking member intends to ask 
for pictures of Ms. Hall Ingram receiving—or being with past Presi-
dents. I will object to that. This is not about whether Ms. Hall 
Ingram is a Republican or a Democrat. This is not about the poli-
tics of anybody at the IRS. 

The IRS, by statute, is limited to two political appointees. It is 
critical that we ask the questions about the nonpolitical appointees, 
not the counsel, not the Commissioner, what are their actions, not 
what are their politics, their registrations, their leanings or their 
self-stated intention. People are not to be judged at the IRS based 
on how they vote. They are to be judged based on the job they do 
and how they do it. 

With that, I recognize the ranking member. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. Just one question. What picture are you talking 

about? What are you talking about? Do you want to show it? 
Chairman ISSA. No, I am not going to. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. Oh, okay. 
Chairman ISSA. We were told that—we were handed these by her 

personal attorney. They are pictures with past Presidents. The mi-
nority requested them is what her attorney told us. Is that correct, 
Mr. Cummings? 

Mr. CUMMINGS. What is the big deal that we want to see pictures 
of a witness with President Bush? 

Chairman ISSA. Mr. Cummings, you have constantly and the peo-
ple up and down the dais have tried to paint political, Republican 
versus Democrat. Somehow, if somebody is a Republican or was ap-
pointed by a Republican, that somehow any claim of targeting con-
servatives is not there. 

The fact is, this committee’s docket will be—or enclosures will in-
clude extraneous material but not material designed to forward 
some question that paints somebody as a Republican or Democrat. 

Mr. CUMMINGS. Mr. Chairman—— 
Chairman ISSA. I do not know the gentlelady’s politics, and I do 

not—— 
Mr. CUMMINGS. Mr. Chairman—— 
Chairman ISSA. —intend to ask. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. Mr. Chairman, just one moment. The way poli-

tics comes up in all of this is, of every single witness that has been 
interviewed, your staff has asked their political affiliation. 

We have had this conversation before at this dais, by the way. 
So I just—I was just curious. 

I will go into my opening statement. 
Chairman ISSA. The gentleman is recognized. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. Today, our Nation is entering its ninth day—the 

ninth day of House Speaker John Boehner’s government shutdown. 
Speaker Boehner has refused to allow the House to vote on a 

clean continuing resolution that would end the shutdown, even 
though it would pass with a bipartisan majority. Instead, he is al-
lowing a small group of Republican extremists to pursue their 
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idealogical crusade to repeal the Affordable Care Act and put insur-
ance companies back in charge of healthcare decisions for millions 
of Americans. 

Even worse, our country is rapidly approaching the debt-ceiling 
deadline of October 17th. Yet Republicans seem willing to jeop-
ardize the full faith and credit of the United States of America un-
less we eliminate the Affordable Care Act, even though it is the law 
of the land and has been upheld by the Supreme Court of the 
United States. 

House Republicans have voted more than 40 times to repeal the 
Affordable Care Act. So although today’s hearing may be cloaked 
in the rhetoric of improving the law, nobody truly believes Repub-
licans want that to happen. Instead, today’s hearing is an obvious 
attempt to link two issues that have nothing to do with each other: 
the implementation of the Affordable Care Act and the so-called 
IRS Tea Party scandal. 

For nearly a year, Republicans have been railing against today’s 
hearing witness, Sarah Hall Ingram, for being the supposed mas-
termind behind the IRS targeting of Tea Party groups and for 
being some sort of political operative who is now in charge of im-
plementing Obamacare. 

One of our committee members, Congressman Jordan, said Ms. 
Ingram: ‘‘headed up this scandal.’’ He said:‘‘I can’t wait—I can’t 
wait until we get her in front of the committee.’’ 

Congressman Tim Griffin accused Ms. Ingram of being: ‘‘directly 
in charge of IRS targeting.’’ He said: ‘‘She provided horrendous cus-
tomer service under her watch, and now she is going to do the 
same implementing Obamacare.’’ 

Another member of our committee, Congressman Meadows, criti-
cized the bonuses Ms. Ingram received. And Congressman Tom 
Price argued that her: ‘‘employment at IRS should be suspended.’’ 

The problem with these accusations is that they are 100 percent 
wrong. After hearing directly from 30 witnesses and reviewing 
thousands of pages of documents, our committee has obtained abso-
lutely no evidence whatsoever that Ms. Ingram was involved in any 
way with developing or directing the use of inappropriate criteria 
to screen Tea Party groups or any other groups applying for tax- 
exempt status. 

In fact, we found just the opposite. Ms. Ingram left her position 
as Commissioner of the Tax Exempt Government Entities Division 
in December of 2010, 6 months before her former subordinates be-
came aware of inappropriate criteria used to screen applicants for 
tax-exempt status. Russell George, the Inspector General of the 
IRS, stated that Lois Lerner did not learn about the inappropriate 
criteria until June 2011, 6 months after Ms. Ingram left for her 
new position implementing the ACA. 

There is another problem with these ruthless Republican allega-
tions: Ms. Ingram is not a political operative. She is, in fact, a dedi-
cated public servant who has excelled under both Republican and 
Democratic administrations. In 2004, President George W. Bush 
awarded Ms. Ingram the Nation’s highest civil service award, the 
Distinguished Executive Presidential Rank Award, for her out-
standing: ‘‘tax law leadership’’ and, ‘‘her highly effective efforts to 
combat terrorism financing.’’ 

VerDate Aug 31 2005 09:06 Jan 17, 2014 Jkt 000000 PO 00000 Frm 00010 Fmt 6633 Sfmt 6633 C:\DOCS\86195.TXT APRIL



7 

And although you won’t hear this from my Republican col-
leagues, after President Bush gave her that award, Ms. Ingram 
also received a bonus in recognition of her exemplary service. That 
bonus was larger than any she received during the Obama admin-
istration. 

Dragging Ms. Ingram through the mud and impugning her rep-
utation as part of a broader Republican campaign against the ACA 
is the worst kind of politics. It is intellectually dishonest, and it is 
unfair to this highly regarded public servant. 

October 1st was a historic day for our country, not because 
Speaker Boehner shut down the government but because it was the 
first day millions of Americans could sign up for health care. In the 
first 2 days alone, 7 million Americans visited healthcare.gov, 
which dwarfs the highest Web traffic ever experienced on Medi-
care’s Web site. 

Although there will continue to be challenges implementing this 
law, I want to thank Ms. Ingram for her service under both Demo-
cratic and Republican administrations and for her work on the 
ACA, which, by all accounts, is outstanding. 

Finally, Mr. Chairman—you alluded to this—I would like to 
place a document in the record, and that is a letter from Mr. 
Werfel, our Acting Commissioner. 

Since today’s hearing was supposed to be about IRS implementa-
tion of the ACA, I asked you last week to invite officials from all 
four IRS offices in charge of this program. On Monday, you refused. 
And I heard you this morning, just a few minutes ago, when you 
said that we are not finished with this—and I am pleased to hear 
that—that other witnesses would come forth later. 

And so I asked these officials to attend today, along with IRS 
Commissioner Werfel, in case committee members have questions 
outside the scope of Ms. Ingram’s responsibilities. Last night, I re-
ceived a letter from Mr. Werfel stating that you personally told him 
that he and these other IRS officials were not welcome, that essen-
tially they were banned from the hearing room. 

I have seen a lot of things as a Member of Congress over my 17 
years, but I have never seen a committee chairman tell the head 
of an agency that he could not be present during a public hearing 
with one of his own employees. 

I will read the letter, if I might, because I don’t want to—I see 
you moving around a little bit. I want to make sure I read it. 

It says, ‘‘Dear’’—it is dated October 8th, 2013. It is addressed to 
me. It says, ‘‘Dear Ranking Member Cummings, I am responding 
to your letter today requesting that I attend tomorrow’s hearing 
along with other IRS personnel who have relevant subject matter 
expertise in matters related to the ACA implementation. 

‘‘I spoke directly to the chairman this evening regarding your re-
quest, and the chairman requested that I do not attend. Instead, 
the chairman suggested that we have technical experts present 
that could be available to support Ms. Hall Ingram but that would 
not be called to give her direct testimony. 

‘‘Given my respect for the chairman’s authority in this matter, I 
have decided to agree to the chairman’s direction and will not at-
tend in person. 
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‘‘Of note, I remain concerned that Ms. Hall Ingram alone will not 
be able to provide comprehensive testimony regarding IRS efforts 
to implement the ACA, given that many of the significant IRS ac-
tivities in this area fall outside of her direct purview. However, it 
is my understanding that the chairman’s decision that Ms. Ingram 
will be the only witness for tomorrow’s hearing is now final. 

‘‘And I thank you for your ongoing assistance.’’ And it is signed, 
‘‘Danny Werfel.’’ 

I ask that that be made a part of the record, Mr. Chairman. 
Chairman ISSA. I reserve and recognize myself in opposition on 

the reserve. 
The gentleman in his opening statement made it clear that he 

thinks that the targeting of conservative groups is a phony scandal, 
while the President, just the opposite, said it was serious. 

The gentleman has repeatedly wanted to make it very clear that 
his job is to stop the work of this committee. 

Mr. Werfel was, in fact, an individual who—— 
Mr. CUMMINGS. Mr. Chairman, you just said something that is 

absolutely not true. I have not done that, and I resent you saying 
that. 

Chairman ISSA. I appreciate your resentment, but I will con-
tinue. 

Mr. CUMMINGS. That I have tried to stop the work of this com-
mittee? 

Chairman ISSA. It is very clear you have. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. You said—come on, Mr. Chairman. 
Chairman ISSA. The fact is that, at the last hearing, you re-

quested, for my four witnesses, seven. And I gave you four. The 
policy of this committee is and has been under both Republican and 
Democratic leadership that the minority is generally accommodated 
with a witness, a witness germane. You have repeatedly abused 
that in the process. 

When you sent a direct invitation for a number of individuals, in-
cluding someone that was not there during the planning of the Af-
fordable Care Act and will be gone in a matter of days, in the name 
of the Commissioner—he was highly inappropriate to be a fact wit-
ness because he wasn’t there before and he will not be there in a 
couple of weeks. 

In conversation with the Commissioner—and I will allow this in 
afterwards—— 

Mr. CUMMINGS. Well, thank you. 
Chairman ISSA. The fact is, in conversations with the Commis-

sioner, I said, of course she can have any and all people that would 
help her in answering the questions, people—maybe if somebody 
comes up with an esoteric question on what the URL’s will be for 
Obamacare, fine. But, in fact, we have asked for repeatedly and de-
ferred Ms. Ingram on a previous occasion, even though she is the 
head of the department implementing. She is the highest indi-
vidual with the longest service related to the questions here today. 

So, elections have consequences. I have the responsibility of an-
nouncing what a hearing is going to be, sometimes hearings that 
you request. I have the primary responsibility for selecting the wit-
nesses, and I have always taken seriously the suggestions of wit-
nesses you want and, when they are timely, have always provided 
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at least one. That is not true of my predecessor, Mr. Towns. Al-
though a friend and a good man, he often did not even give me one 
witness. So the decision to have the head of the implementation 
was mine. 

Mr. Werfel is a dedicated, long-serving public servant. I asked 
him not to be here for what I thought would be simply a staged 
opportunity to say, why don’t you let the Commissioner, who didn’t 
know about it before and won’t be there in another week, the Act-
ing Commissioner, do it. 

For that reason, I will allow the letter in. 
Chairman ISSA. But understand that the attempt is to get to the 

truth, and this committee has tried to hold as many hearings, in-
cluding hearings on subjects that you have requested, and we will 
continue to do so. 

So, with that, the unanimous—— 
Mr. CUMMINGS. Mr. Chairman, I wasn’t finished. May I finish? 
Chairman ISSA. I have accepted your unanimous consent. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. That was with regard to my document. I wasn’t 

finished with my statement. 
Chairman ISSA. Oh. The gentleman may have an additional 1 

minute. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. Thank you very much. 
Mr. Chairman, I am just going to say we have a title here that 

says, ‘‘Examining the IRS’s Role in Implementing and Enforcing 
Obamacare.’’ That is the title of the hearing. 

And, you know, you have made an allegation that I am trying to 
stop everything. I am trying to get to the truth, the whole truth, 
and nothing but the truth, so help me God. That is what I am try-
ing to get to. And that is why I resented your statement. 

But, with that, I yield back. 
Chairman ISSA. I thank the gentleman. 
Chairman ISSA. We will now recognize the subcommittee chair-

man, since his name was mentioned as—— 
Mr. JORDAN. Thank you. 
Mr. Chairman, I just want to say, finally, finally she is here. We 

have been trying for 5 months to get Ms. Ingram in front of this 
committee. I was beginning to think there was no such person as 
Sarah Hall Ingram. I mean, a couple months ago, Chairman 
Lankford and I had a joint subcommittee scheduled. Ms. Ingram 
was supposed to be in front of that committee, but Mr. Werfel 
called up and said, nope, she is not coming; I am instead. 

For months, we have been trying to get this lady in front—here 
is the lady who, as the chairman said, is at the center of the storm 
of two of the biggest issues this country has dealt with in recent 
history: the targeting of conservative groups and implementation of 
Obamacare. 

Here is the lady who was Lois Lerner’s direct boss, and today is 
the first time she has been in front of this committee, after this 
scandal has been known about for 5 months? Here is the lady who 
for the last 3 years has been head of the office for implementing 
the Affordable Care Act, and today is the first time she comes in 
front of the committee? I mean, this is unbelievable. Two of the big-
gest issues facing the country, and the first time she comes in front 
of the Government Oversight Committee. 
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And Mr. Cummings brings up the letter that we got yesterday 
from Mr. Werfel. They tried again yesterday to not have her be 
here. So it raises just one simple question: Why? What does she 
know that the IRS doesn’t want this committee, this Congress, and 
the American people to know? What does she know about the Af-
fordable Care—what are they trying to hide? 

So, Mr. Chairman, thanks for your persistence. I am glad it fi-
nally happened. I mean, it is astonishing that it took 5 months to 
get her, but I am glad it finally happened. 

One more thing if I could, Mr. Chairman, and then I will yield 
back. 

Could we put up a slide? 
Mr. Cummings raised this issue, and Mr. Werfel said she is not 

the right person to bring, we need these other folks here, we need 
Mr. Werfel here, he wanted to come. 

Let’s put up—this was a briefing—if we could put up the first 
slide? 

This was the briefing given to the IRS Oversight Board just this 
past May, May 2nd, 2013. And guess who gave that briefing? Who 
do you think gave that briefing? The lady we have been waiting to 
get in front of this committee, Sarah Hall Ingram. And, again, you 
don’t have to take my word for it. We got the minutes from the 
meeting. 

If we can put that slide up? 
The minutes from the meeting, Affordable Care Act update, led 

by Sarah Hall Ingram, Director, ACA Office. 
So Mr. Werfel didn’t want her to come today, hasn’t let her come 

for 5 months, but she was good enough to brief the IRS. And not 
just brief it; look what it says she talked about. Ms. Ingram dis-
cussed the security and safeguard programs the IRS has in place 
regarding the sharing of data among its partners, including those 
for the Affordable Care Act program. 

This is exactly the lady we need in front of the Congress. It just 
took us 5 months to get her here. So this is important. 

Mr. CUMMINGS. Would the gentleman yield? 
Mr. JORDAN. I would be happy to yield. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. Let me make sure I understood what you said. 

You said that I was trying to stop her from coming here? Did you 
say that? 

Mr. JORDAN. We have a letter from Mr. Werfel indicating he 
didn’t want Sarah Hall Ingram to come to this—— 

Mr. CUMMINGS. Oh. Well, that had nothing to do with me. 
Mr. JORDAN. You just a read a letter from Mr. Werfel, a different 

letter you had. You said that—— 
Mr. CUMMINGS. I just read—— 
Mr. JORDAN. You wanted Mr. Werfel here, as well. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. Will the gentleman yield? I just want to—— 
Chairman ISSA. If the gentleman will suspend. 
The record from the chairman is, in fact, that Mr. Cummings 

tried to get four additional witnesses—— 
Mr. JORDAN. Exactly. 
Chairman ISSA. —on this panel. Mr. Werfel tried to not have 

Sarah Hall Ingram come. And the request, no matter where they 
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originated, to not have her testify today repeatedly came from the 
Commissioner. 

Mr. CUMMINGS. Thank you. 
Mr. JORDAN. Here is the point, Mr. Chairman. Why in the world 

does it take 5 months to get the lady who was there when the tar-
geting of conservative groups started, who was Lois Lerner’s direct 
boss, who for the past 3 years has been implementing the Afford-
able Care Act at the IRS? Why in the world should it have taken 
5 months for her to come in front of this committee? What are they 
trying to hide? And that is why this hearing is so important. 

And, Mr. Chairman, I will yield back. 
Chairman ISSA. I thank the gentleman. 
Chairman ISSA. Members will have 7 days in which to submit 

opening statements for the record. 
Chairman ISSA. And we will now recognize the panel. 
Ms. Sarah Hall Ingram—— 
Mr. CUMMINGS. Mr. Chairman? 
Chairman ISSA. The ranking member will not be recognized be-

cause of accusations you made in your opening statement. 
Would Mr. Cartwright like a few moments? 
Mr. CUMMINGS. Of course. 
Chairman ISSA. The gentleman is recognized. 
Mr. CARTWRIGHT. I thank you, Chairman Issa, for this oppor-

tunity to discuss the IRS’s role in implementing and enforcing the 
Affordable Care Act. I do look forward to today’s testimony. And I 
would like to hear all about the nationwide dragnet that finally 
snared our witness and brought her here today. 

I will say, the IRS has begun to play and will continue to play 
a key role in both the implementation and the enforcement of the 
Affordable Care Act. The Department of Health and Human Serv-
ices manages the implementation of the ACA, with the IRS assist-
ing mostly by administering subsidies to those who qualify under 
the law and penalizing those who don’t comply with the law. 

To determine which individuals fall into the latter category, the 
IRS, along with the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, 
operates a data hub, allowing those applying for coverage on the 
healthcare exchanges to easily determine which plans and which 
subsidies they qualify for. 

This data hub does not—and I repeat, does not—receive or main-
tain any personal health information or medical records. It simply 
routes data, never storing it, and accesses only the information 
needed to determine individual eligibility for coverage and tax cred-
its. 

These tax credits are desperately needed in my district, where 
nearly 9.4 percent of my constituency lives below the poverty line. 
Seventy thousand—and that is 10.5 percent—do not have 
healthcare insurance, including 6,500 children, and will be able to 
utilize the subsidies offered under the Affordable Care Act and co-
ordinated by the IRS to finally get covered. Clearly, my constitu-
ents need the Affordable Care Act. 

I look forward to today’s testimony. And I want to echo the com-
ments of the ranking member, that this effort to somehow link— 
the attempts to generate and gin up a scandal about the IRS and 
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link that with the implementation of the Affordable Care Act, this 
is quite an act of limbo dancing going on here. 

And I will be interested to see if my colleagues across the aisle 
can actually carry out the idea of linking the supposed IRS scandal 
with the implementation of the ACA, when we don’t even have the 
people who are actually most knowledgeable in charge of those 
areas here as a witness. In fact, they were apparently instructed 
not to come. 

With that, I yield back. 
Chairman ISSA. I thank the gentleman. 
Chairman ISSA. We now go to our—as I said, I will say it again, 

Members may have 7 days in which to submit opening statements 
for the record. 

We will now recognize our first panel. 
Ms. Sarah Hall Ingram is Director of the Affordable Care Act Of-

fice and formerly Commissioner of Tax Exempt and Government 
Entities at the Internal Revenue Service. 

Ms. Ingram, pursuant to committee rules, would you please rise 
to be sworn and raise your right hand? 

Do you solemnly swear or affirm the testimony you are about to 
give will be the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth? 

Ms. INGRAM. I do. 
Chairman ISSA. Please be seated. 
Let the record indicate the witness answered in the affirmative. 
Your entire opening statement, Ms. Ingram, will be placed in the 

record, so you need not read verbatim. Please try to stay as close 
to 5 minutes as you can. 

The gentlelady is recognized. 

STATEMENT OF SARAH HALL INGRAM, DIRECTOR, AFFORD-
ABLE CARE ACT OFFICE, INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 

Ms. INGRAM. Chairman Issa, Ranking Member Cummings, and 
members of the committee, my name is Sarah Hall Ingram, and I 
am the Director of the Affordable Care Act Office under the Serv-
ices and Enforcement part of the IRS. I appreciate the opportunity 
to discuss the work the IRS is doing to fulfill our responsibilities 
under the ACA. 

IRS implementation of the tax provisions of the ACA represents 
the collaborative work of all parts of the IRS. I do want to make 
clear that my office is responsible for only one piece of this large 
puzzle. That piece involves the business operations, flows, and pro-
cedures and products. Significant work is also being done by our 
Information Technology Division, our Office of Safeguards, and the 
Chief Counsel’s Office. 

The written testimony we provided the committee reflects input 
from all these various functions. I will give you the best view that 
I can of our ACA implementation efforts from my perspective, but 
others who are accompanying me today may be better positioned, 
in many cases, to answer your particular questions. They include 
Chief Technology Officer Terry Milholland; the Director of Privacy, 
Government Liaison, and Disclosure, Rebecca Chiaramida; and 
Healthcare Counsel Tom Reeder. 

The IRS is charged with implementing the tax-related provisions 
of the ACA. While many tax provisions have already been imple-
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mented, a major effort in this regard involves the delivery of pre-
mium tax credits that will help millions of American families ac-
cess affordable private health insurance coverage through the new 
health insurance marketplaces. 

The Department of Health and Human Services has principal re-
sponsibility for defining the structure and operations of the mar-
ketplaces. Open enrollment for insurance purchased through the 
marketplaces began on October 1st, and coverage can begin as soon 
as January 1st, 2014. 

The IRS has a supporting role in the development and operation 
of the marketplaces, which is to provide data and computational 
services to the marketplaces for use in making their determina-
tions about citizen eligibility for financial assistance. In addition, 
the IRS is responsible for incorporating the premium tax credit and 
other tax provisions into the tax administration process for tax re-
turns filed in 2015 and beyond. 

Our implementation efforts in this regard fall into three major 
categories: first, employing information technology to facilitate 
data-sharing with HHS and State agencies to assist them in deter-
mining whether an individual who was applying for insurance cov-
erage qualifies for financial assistance, including the premium tax 
credit. Our use of information technology will also play a key role 
going forward, as we incorporate the various provisions into tax ad-
ministration infrastructure. 

Second, protecting the safety and privacy of taxpayer data being 
shared with Federal and State entities under the ACA statute. 
This includes both the establishment of safeguard procedures be-
fore data is released and on the ongoing monitoring of safeguarding 
practices going forward. 

And, third, updating and improving business processes and sys-
tems to facilitate tax return filing and compliance with the tax-re-
lated provisions of the ACA, including the premium tax credit. 

I am pleased to report that the systems and processes that the 
IRS has developed to support enrollment in the marketplace were 
launched on schedule and are working as planned. We have han-
dled all requests received to date via the HHS data services hub, 
and turnaround times are meeting our goals. 

Our data-protection efforts are also working as intended. Prior to 
October 1st, we ensured that data security agreements were ap-
proved for all entities scheduled to receive taxpayer information, 
including the federally-facilitated marketplace, State individual 
marketplaces, and those Medicaid offices that had requested ap-
proval before October 1st. 

We have also been working to ensure that individuals who seek 
information from the IRS about obtaining insurance coverage 
through the marketplace are steered to the resources that can best 
help them. We have collaborated across agencies and stakeholders 
to ensure the availability of consistent information on Web sites 
and other channels, as well as in outreach to individuals, busi-
nesses, and professionals. 

Looking to the future, the IRS is also focused on preparing for 
ACA provisions that will have an impact on IRS forms and proce-
dures beginning with the 2015 filing season. In regard to both the 
premium tax credit and the individual responsibility requirement, 
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preparations are already under way to modify forms and instruc-
tions, enhance education and outreach to the taxpayers and their 
advisors, update our business processes, and complete the IT infra-
structure changes in time for the 2015 filing season. 

This concludes my testimony. I would be happy to take any ques-
tions from the committee. 

Chairman ISSA. I thank you. 
[Prepared statement of Ms. Ingram follows:] 

VerDate Aug 31 2005 09:06 Jan 17, 2014 Jkt 000000 PO 00000 Frm 00018 Fmt 6633 Sfmt 6633 C:\DOCS\86195.TXT APRIL



15 

VerDate Aug 31 2005 09:06 Jan 17, 2014 Jkt 000000 PO 00000 Frm 00019 Fmt 6633 Sfmt 6633 C:\DOCS\86195.TXT APRIL In
se

rt
 o

ffs
et

 fo
lio

 1
 h

er
e 

86
19

5.
00

1



16 

VerDate Aug 31 2005 09:06 Jan 17, 2014 Jkt 000000 PO 00000 Frm 00020 Fmt 6633 Sfmt 6633 C:\DOCS\86195.TXT APRIL In
se

rt
 o

ffs
et

 fo
lio

 2
 h

er
e 

86
19

5.
00

2



17 

VerDate Aug 31 2005 09:06 Jan 17, 2014 Jkt 000000 PO 00000 Frm 00021 Fmt 6633 Sfmt 6633 C:\DOCS\86195.TXT APRIL In
se

rt
 o

ffs
et

 fo
lio

 3
 h

er
e 

86
19

5.
00

3



18 

VerDate Aug 31 2005 09:06 Jan 17, 2014 Jkt 000000 PO 00000 Frm 00022 Fmt 6633 Sfmt 6633 C:\DOCS\86195.TXT APRIL In
se

rt
 o

ffs
et

 fo
lio

 4
 h

er
e 

86
19

5.
00

4



19 

VerDate Aug 31 2005 09:06 Jan 17, 2014 Jkt 000000 PO 00000 Frm 00023 Fmt 6633 Sfmt 6633 C:\DOCS\86195.TXT APRIL In
se

rt
 o

ffs
et

 fo
lio

 5
 h

er
e 

86
19

5.
00

5



20 

VerDate Aug 31 2005 09:06 Jan 17, 2014 Jkt 000000 PO 00000 Frm 00024 Fmt 6633 Sfmt 6633 C:\DOCS\86195.TXT APRIL In
se

rt
 o

ffs
et

 fo
lio

 6
 h

er
e 

86
19

5.
00

6



21 

VerDate Aug 31 2005 09:06 Jan 17, 2014 Jkt 000000 PO 00000 Frm 00025 Fmt 6633 Sfmt 6633 C:\DOCS\86195.TXT APRIL In
se

rt
 o

ffs
et

 fo
lio

 7
 h

er
e 

86
19

5.
00

7



22 

VerDate Aug 31 2005 09:06 Jan 17, 2014 Jkt 000000 PO 00000 Frm 00026 Fmt 6633 Sfmt 6633 C:\DOCS\86195.TXT APRIL In
se

rt
 o

ffs
et

 fo
lio

 8
 h

er
e 

86
19

5.
00

8



23 

VerDate Aug 31 2005 09:06 Jan 17, 2014 Jkt 000000 PO 00000 Frm 00027 Fmt 6633 Sfmt 6633 C:\DOCS\86195.TXT APRIL In
se

rt
 o

ffs
et

 fo
lio

 9
 h

er
e 

86
19

5.
00

9



24 

Chairman ISSA. I will now recognize myself. 
Ms. Ingram, if I heard you correctly, all is going as planned and 

well in the rollout of the Affordable Care Act. Is that correct? 
Ms. INGRAM. The portion of the responsibilities the IRS was in 

charge of is going fine. 
Chairman ISSA. Excellent. 
I would now like to—if you would give the first document to the 

gentlelady. 
I would like to bring your attention to an email chain dated Fri-

day, July 20th, 2012, in which you were CC’ed and added to the 
chain. 

In preparation for the delivery of these documents, I assume, 
which we were delivered under discovery, you have reviewed those. 
Is this correct? 

Ms. INGRAM. I am not sure whether I have seen the particular 
one, but I am reading it now, sir. 

Chairman ISSA. Okay. Take your time and read it. 
Ms. INGRAM. I have reviewed the document. Thank you. 
Chairman ISSA. Thank you. 
Do you recall this document? 
Ms. INGRAM. I do not recall the document. I think I recall what 

it is a discussion about. 
Chairman ISSA. Well, one of the areas of interest is there is a sig-

nificant redaction that quotes the statute 6103. Do you know who 
is underneath that blackout? 

Ms. INGRAM. I don’t recall the document, so I can’t help you with 
what is underneath the redaction, sir. 

Chairman ISSA. Okay. So the subject of this—well, let’s go to 
the—let’s go to a second one. 

Would you give her the second document? 
And we will pause and give you time to read it. 
Ms. INGRAM. Thank you. 
Chairman ISSA. This one is from you directly, so hopefully you 

recall it. 
Ms. INGRAM. I recall—— 
Chairman ISSA. Do all Members have the document in front of 

them? 
Can we have the clerk distribute the documents? I want to make 

sure everyone has them in front of them. Do we have enough cop-
ies? Okay. They will be distributed. 

If the gentlelady will just pause for a moment. 
Do all the Members now have the document? 
I think down in the front row they will need more. 
Ms. Ingram, do you recall the second document, in which you are 

the author? 
Ms. INGRAM. I remember the conversations. Since my name is on 

the email, I assume it is—— 
Chairman ISSA. Okay. 
Ms. INGRAM. —me. 
Chairman ISSA. Do you know the names underneath any of these 

black blocks, or the information? 
Ms. INGRAM. No. I am sorry. I couldn’t remotely remember what 

might have been underneath. 
Chairman ISSA. So you don’t know what is underneath there. 
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As an expert at the IRS, many times awarded by both Repub-
lican and Democratic administrations, do you know what 6103 indi-
cates? 

Ms. INGRAM. Yes, I understand 6103. Yes, sir. 
Chairman ISSA. Okay. And is it true that that, in fact, is sen-

sitive information that is not to be distributed outside people per-
mitted to have it within the IRS and a very limited amount of peo-
ple here in Congress? 

Ms. INGRAM. I understand the rules of the 6103, yes, sir. 
Chairman ISSA. Well, you understand that you can’t distribute 

6103 information outside of people authorized to see it. Is that cor-
rect? 

Ms. INGRAM. Correct. 
Chairman ISSA. So why are political appointees in the Office of 

the President receiving 6103 information? On what basis would you 
be allowed to discuss the information, which is a form of classifica-
tion under 6103, with political appointees at the White House? 

The IRS is a nonpolitical organization. You are not a political 
person. But isn’t it true that political appointees are not allowed 
to see this information unless specifically cleared, correct? 

Ms. INGRAM. I am not familiar with what process was used to 
put the markings on this document. My understanding from look-
ing at the document is that these are names that were offered to 
us as examples of how the—— 

Chairman ISSA. Yeah, no, I understand. But you have been with 
the IRS a long time. 6103 information—did you share 6103 infor-
mation with people at the White House? 

Ms. INGRAM. I am not conscious of ever sharing 6103 information 
with the White House, so I—but I cannot speak to what the process 
was for putting these labels on this document. 

Chairman ISSA. Okay. So your testimony today is that you have 
never shared confidential information with political appointees at 
the White House, but—in your 75 or 79 trips to the White House, 
the meetings in small and not-so-small groups with political ap-
pointees at the White House. 

Then I have to understand, either this is 6103 information, as 
the IRS has said it is, and you have shared it with political ap-
pointees at the White House, or it is not 6103, in which case some-
one at the IRS is abusing the redaction and keeping this committee 
from getting the information it needs for its proper and lawful dis-
covery. 

I think we will have Danny Werfel back here on this subject. 
Did you participate in redaction decisions at all? 
Ms. INGRAM. No, sir, I did not. 
Chairman ISSA. Okay. 
Now, I guess one of the—this is a serious matter, but it appears 

from this that you were part of the discussion at a time in which 
a controversial rule was going into effect that included a number 
of conservative and religious groups and that you were providing 
back-and-forth advice to White House personnel on that implemen-
tation. 

Is that correct? 
Ms. INGRAM. My recollection of this exchange had to do with 

what the current IRS rules are under regulations, under 6033, in 
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case policymakers wanted to use any definition that existed al-
ready in the Tax Code and that they understand what they would 
cover or not cover depending on which definitions they chose to em-
ploy. It was not a discussion about their decision about what to 
use. 

Chairman ISSA. So you were providing technical information on 
how the administration could determine whether or not church and 
non-church groups, schools sponsored by churches and other affili-
ated groups, whether or not they could be compelled under the Af-
fordable Care Act to do certain things. Is that correct? 

Ms. INGRAM. It was a discussion about what the current defini-
tions under 6033 mean and have been for some decades. 

Chairman ISSA. But the questions from political appointees at 
the White House to you in your nearly 80 trips back and forth, and 
apparently a large amount of emails, had to do with their desire 
to compel religious groups to do certain things under the Affordable 
Care Act, and you were advising them as to what the law would 
be and how they might implement it. And in the case of one of the 
emails, you said, ‘‘Hoping there is a quick answer while I prep for 
something else. Please copy me on the answer.’’ 

So this was something where you wanted to be aware of and par-
ticipate in the decision process by political appointees at the White 
House. Is that correct? 

Ms. INGRAM. I think that portion of the email is addressed to 
staff at the IRS, hoping that they could take care of answering the 
questions about 6033. 

Chairman ISSA. Right. I was reading, actually, your quote. ‘‘Hop-
ing there is a quick answer while I prep for something else. Please 
copy me on the answer.’’ That is your portion of that first email. 

Ms. INGRAM. Yes. It was an ACA-related question, and I wanted 
the staff to do the analysis. 

Chairman ISSA. So you have been intimately involved in ACA im-
plementation questions, including whether or not somebody would 
receive a waiver, whether or not somebody under current law could 
or could not be forced to do something they did not want to do. Is 
that correct? 

Ms. INGRAM. I have been involved in answering questions about 
how the rules work, and that is what this exchange is about. It was 
not about what rule they, the policymakers, ought to adapt. 

Chairman ISSA. And one last time: The information underneath 
here, if it is not 6103, you certainly would agree that we should 
know what it is. And if it is 6103, then it is something you have 
said you have never done, which is to transfer 6103 information to 
political appointees at the White House. 

Ms. INGRAM. I would have to refer you to the people who did the 
redactions. 

Chairman ISSA. No, I just—— 
Ms. INGRAM. I don’t know what is underneath, sir. I am sorry. 
Chairman ISSA. Neither do we. Neither do we. 
I now recognize the ranking member. 
Oh, I now recognize the gentlelady from New York. 
Mrs. MALONEY. Thank you. 
And I would like to thank Ms. Ingram for your public service and 

congratulate you on earning a reward, an award, for your work on 
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combatting terrorism financing. As one who lost 500 constituents 
on 9/11, I know how important this work is. It is vital to our home-
land security and vital to saving American lives. So I wanted to 
thank you for that. 

I also think that it is important that we realize the impact the 
government shutdown is having on our economy. Because an im-
portant part of homeland security is economic security, and our 
economic security is falling. The stock market is closing at the low-
est level in a month. The Dow Jones average fell 136 points. The 
Standard & Poor’s 500 Index fell 14 points. The NASDAQ fell 37 
points. And consumer confidence is at an all-time low due to the 
threat of a default on our debt, on American debt. 

I do want to make an important point, that 195 Democrats have 
signed a petition saying that they will vote today, they will vote in 
10 minutes, to open up the government. And I feel if a vote was 
allowed on the floor, there would be enough like-minded Repub-
licans that would vote, as we did on the Violence Against Women 
Act and other areas, jointly in a bipartisan way to open up our gov-
ernment. 

And I would say that, instead of having a hearing on unfounded 
allegations, we should be looking at what the impact of this shut-
down is on the IRS and other government agencies and their abil-
ity to provide services to the American people. 

So I would like to ask you, Ms. Ingram, what is the percentage 
of people that have been furloughed in the IRS? 

Ms. INGRAM. I have been informed that it is roughly 90 percent. 
Mrs. MALONEY. Ninety percent. Well, who is left? 
Ms. INGRAM. A small number of people trying to keep essential 

things moving. 
Mrs. MALONEY. Well, do you think the government shutdown will 

impact the agency’s ability to carry out your mission, to enforce the 
tax laws of our country in a fair process with great integrity? 

Ms. INGRAM. Overall comments on issues about such shutdown 
and budget I need to defer to folks back at the IRS. 

Mrs. MALONEY. Well, I want to focus on one area that the IRS 
plays a critical role in in our economy, and that is the approval of 
mortgage loans. 

And, regrettably, due to the recession, homeownership is at the 
lowest level in 18 years. But home sales are finally beginning to 
tick up until we got to this shutdown, and now they have again 
fallen backwards, even though housing finance is considered by 
some economists to be as high as 20 to 25 percent of our economy, 
with the related industries. 

Mrs. MALONEY. So this slowdown in the approval of mortgage 
loans is going to have a dramatic effect on our economy. 

And the shutdown of the IRS has a specific responsibility. Be-
cause, as I understand it, the IRS has to approve or provide tax 
records for 1 year for any mortgage approval. Is that correct? 

Ms. INGRAM. I am not the right person to answer detailed ques-
tions about that program. I am sorry, ma’am. 

Mrs. MALONEY. Well, I looked at the IRS Web site just in case 
you couldn’t answer, and, by law, any mortgage loan approval is 
subject to the review by the mortgage lender of at least 1 year’s 
worth of Federal tax returns. 
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This process of verifying income requires the assistance of an 
IRS employee. Therefore, a third-party mortgage firm cannot verify 
a borrower’s income via his or her tax return and the sale cannot 
be closed. So, therefore, even though the FHA is continuing to proc-
ess loans and some banks are processing loans, they need the IRS 
to approve these tax returns. So, therefore, the sale and the mort-
gage cannot go through. 

And it had on the Web site commonly asked questions. And it 
said, can a third party obtain a tax transcript during the shut-
down? And the answer was clearly no. So we can’t move forward 
in this vital area of approving home loans and mortgages that 
could help our economy move forward. 

And consumer confidence continues to decline the longer this 
shutdown lasts. And as a result of lackluster expectations, Real-
tor.com also notes that the number of mortgage applications is also 
decreasing dramatically, after experiencing an uptick prior to the 
shutdown of the Federal Government. 

So I would say that what we should be focusing on is what we 
can do to open up the government. We are now in day 9 of the gov-
ernment shutdown. My time has expired. Let’s work together to 
open up the government and get our economy moving again. 

Chairman ISSA. I thank the gentlelady. And I will take her open-
ing statement as a recommendation that we hold a hearing on 
whether, in fact, essential personnel at the IRS should have in-
cluded people for that department. 

Mrs. MALONEY. Thank you. 
Chairman ISSA. With that, we go to the gentleman from Ohio, 

Mr. Jordan. 
Mr. JORDAN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Ms. Ingram, you have been at the IRS how long? 
Ms. INGRAM. I am sorry, I was adjusting the mic, sir. 
Mr. JORDAN. You have been at the IRS how long. 
Ms. INGRAM. Over 31 years. 
Mr. JORDAN. And you take the—I want to go back to where the 

chairman was. You take the 6103 confidentiality statute pretty se-
riously at the IRS? 

Ms. INGRAM. Very seriously. 
Mr. JORDAN. In fact, let’s put up the definition here, just the 

statute itself. 
It says, ‘‘No officer or employee of the United States shall dis-

close any return or return information obtained by him in any 
manner in connection with his or her service as such an officer or 
employee or otherwise or under the provisions of this statute.’’ 

This is the statute itself. It is pretty straightforward. You can’t 
share personal taxpayer information, correct? 

Ms. INGRAM. True. 
Mr. JORDAN. Okay. 
And then you gave the—I cited it in my opening statement. You 

gave a presentation to the IRS Oversight Board where you high-
lighted this as you were talking about the Affordable Care Act. 

If we can put that slide up. 
This is from the presentation you gave according to the minutes 

of that meeting in front of the IRS Oversight Board. And I want 
to show, ‘‘Federal tax law imposes privacy protections that bar IRS 
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from disclosing Federal tax information.’’ Down to the final sen-
tence, ‘‘This encompasses both the release of the data and the safe-
guarding of the data in the hand of the recipient.’’ 

So if you are conveying—you can’t pass this back and forth, you 
have to protect it. This was the presentation you gave in front of 
the IRS Oversight Board. 

Now, let’s go back to the email the chairman had in front of you, 
if we could. It is addressed to Ms. Jeanne Lambrew. Who is Jeanne 
Lambrew? 

Ms. INGRAM. She is—my understanding is that she is on the Do-
mestic Policy Council. 

Mr. JORDAN. Your understanding? You don’t know this lady very 
well? 

Ms. INGRAM. No, I don’t know her very well. No. 
Mr. JORDAN. Well, according to the White House visitors log, we 

just—I mean, we do this all the time. We grabbed the White House 
visitors log. In a 17-month timeframe, you visited with her 75 
times. That is more than once a week. It says, Sarah H. Ingram, 
8:26, Jeanne Lambrew, Deputy Assistant to the President for 
Health Care. 

Seventy-five different times it is in the log that that is who you 
visited with, and you would say you don’t really know her? 

Ms. INGRAM. Those are the times that I was cleared to attend, 
not necessarily the times that I actually attended. 

Mr. JORDAN. Do you know how many times you did attend of 
those 75 you were cleared. 

Ms. INGRAM. Many fewer. 
Mr. JORDAN. Many fewer. Okay. So something below 75, but po-

tentially you could have been there 75 times. Okay. 
And your testimony to Mr. Issa was that you did not disclose any 

6103 information, correct? 
Ms. INGRAM. I have not. 
Mr. JORDAN. Okay. So who, then, at the IRS decided that you did 

and blacked out all they blacked out on that email? I mean, so— 
we got this from the IRS. We didn’t black it out. We actually want 
to know what is underneath. 

Ms. INGRAM. There is a difference between whether somebody 
gives me information about a taxpayer to which I can respond 
versus releasing an email to other members, such as the Members 
of Congress. But I defer to the people at the IRS—— 

Mr. JORDAN. Well, wait. So are you saying you are allowed to 
give 6103 information to the White House? 

Ms. INGRAM. It is not 6103 information. It is coming—— 
Mr. JORDAN. Well, can you look at—just look at that email real 

closely. And do you see where all the black print is, see where it 
is all blacked out? There is a number written on each of those 
blacked-out areas. And what is the number written there? Can you 
just say for the record what the number is? 

Ms. INGRAM. ‘‘For the release of the documents’’—— 
Mr. JORDAN. No, no, no. What is the number? 
Ms. INGRAM. 6103. 
Mr. JORDAN. 6103. So someone at the IRS decided this was con-

fidential taxpayer information. And when we got these documents, 
when the committee got these documents, they said, ‘‘Oh, you know 
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what? That is information you are not allowed to see, committee.’’ 
But yet it was fine for you to communicate to the White House and 
release that information and give that information. 

Ms. INGRAM. I would refer you to the people at the IRS who 
can—— 

Mr. JORDAN. So we want to know—— 
Ms. INGRAM. —better explain the difference between—— 
Mr. JORDAN. That would be great. We would like to know who 

that person is who made that decision. Because you certainly didn’t 
think it was. Someone did. 

Ms. INGRAM. I believe the committee is interacting with people 
at the— 

Mr. JORDAN. Let me ask you a question. This is your email. So 
go down there—put that back up, if we could. 

I just want to ask you one question. If it is not 6103—and this 
is your email. Let’s just go right below the line, there is one little 
sentence, ‘‘The large, well-known’’—blank—‘‘university.’’ Do you see 
that little sentence there? ‘‘The large, well-known’’—blank—‘‘uni-
versity.’’ What is underneath that? 

Ms. INGRAM. I don’t know, sir. 
Mr. JORDAN. You wrote it and you don’t know? You can’t remem-

ber? 
Ms. INGRAM. I don’t remember every email that ever crosses—— 
Mr. JORDAN. You remembered the subject. This is about the law-

suits a number of Christian-affiliated universities had against the 
government regarding their religious liberty rights, correct? That is 
what the subject matter of all these emails are in this exchange 
with Ms. Lambrew, right? 

Ms. INGRAM. It is about the definition under 6033—— 
Mr. JORDAN. So you can’t tell me, is that Christian University? 

Is that Catholic University? You can’t tell me what is underneath 
that word even though you wrote it? 

Ms. INGRAM. No, sir. I do not know what is underneath the 
blanks. 

Mr. JORDAN. You can’t tell me what is underneath the blanks 
even though you wrote it. You can’t tell me who decided to black 
this out and redact this so the committee couldn’t get it. But your 
testimony is also, I did not share any confidential taxpayer infor-
mation with the White House, even though 75 times you were 
cleared to meet with Ms. Lambrew, and you had this correspond-
ence back and forth with all kinds of redactions, and all the 
redactions say the same thing, 6103. 

It sure looks like someone broke the law here, Ms. Lambrew— 
or Ms. Ingram. 

Ms. INGRAM. I would refer the Congressman to the team with 
which this committee—— 

Mr. JORDAN. Would you provide—— 
Ms. INGRAM. —is already working on this document. 
Mr. JORDAN. Will you provide—Mr. Chairman, if I could, please. 
Will you provide us the person or persons who decided that this 

committee couldn’t see this information and wrote ‘‘6103’’ on this 
email? 
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Ms. INGRAM. I will take the word back that the folks who are 
working with the committee on the production of documents clarify 
with you—— 

Mr. JORDAN. But that should—— 
Chairman ISSA. Would the gentleman—— 
Mr. JORDAN. Or you should be able to give us the information. 

If it is not 6103, then just tell us, give us the clean email. 
Chairman ISSA. Would the gentleman yield? 
Mr. JORDAN. I would be happy to yield. 
Chairman ISSA. Would the individuals behind Ms. Ingram who 

are from the IRS please identify yourself for the record? 
I just want to know if there is somebody there that could commu-

nicate back to the IRS that we would like these documents in 
unredacted format so that we could go forward and have a con-
versation. Is there anyone in that group who can correspond with 
the IRS? 

I apologize. Maybe Danny Werfel should have been here. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. Yeah, he should have been here. That is my 

point. 
Mr. JORDAN. Mr. Chairman? 
Chairman ISSA. So is there any one of you who has the ability 

to correspond to Leg Counsel or to Legislative Affairs or to the IRS 
to let them know that we would like the unredacted documents so 
we could go forward and ask Ms. Ingram what her involvement 
was and what organizations were being targeted or answered in 
this case? Will one of you raise your hand if you can? 

Ms. INGRAM. Mr. Chairman, we would be glad to take your ques-
tions—— 

Chairman ISSA. No, we don’t want your ‘‘I will come back for the 
record.’’ You will be back here if that is the case. 

Okay. I would instruct the clerk—I will recognize the gentleman 
in a second. 

I will instruct the clerk to get a call in to the IRS. I would like 
those documents delivered before this hearing is over so that we at 
least can ask the witness details about her own emails she doesn’t 
seem to be able to recognize. 

Mr. JORDAN. Mr. Chairman? 
Mr. CUMMINGS. Mr. Chairman? 
Chairman ISSA. Go ahead. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. Hopefully they are not on furlough. 
Mr. JORDAN. Two quick things, Mr. Chairman. First of all—— 
Ms. INGRAM. They are. 
Chairman ISSA. Well, in this case, they are essential. 
Mr. JORDAN. Mr. Chairman, first of all, remember what took 

place here. The White House and the IRS are communicating back 
and forth, potentially giving away confidential taxpayer informa-
tion, to get lawsuits dismissed from Christian universities suing 
the government over their religious liberty rights, number one. 

Number two, remember this: This law compels every single 
American, individual mandate, to go to this exchange and give per-
sonal information to the IRS. They are compelled to do that. 

Chairman ISSA. I thank the gentleman. 
Mr. JORDAN. And this lady was sharing personal information 

with the White House. 
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Chairman ISSA. Would the gentleman—— 
Mr. JORDAN. That is why this law is so scary. 
Chairman ISSA. The gentleman’s time has now expired. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. Thank you very much. 
Chairman ISSA. Would the gentleman like to be recognized? 
Mr. CUMMINGS. Yes. Thank you. 
Chairman ISSA. The gentleman is recognized for 5 minutes. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. May I have 7 since 

you had 7? 
Chairman ISSA. The gentleman is recognized for 5 minutes. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. Thank you very much for your courtesy. 
Ms. Ingram, unlike the last questioner, I am going to allow you 

to answer my questions. 
Ms. Ingram, you have—not you, Mr. Chairman. 
Chairman ISSA. I am glad I wasn’t the last one there. I hope you 

have questions for her answers. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. I certainly—no, I have questions. I don’t answer 

questions—ask and answer. 
Ms. Ingram, you have been attacked by several Members of Con-

gress for personally directing the so-called targeting of Tea Party 
groups applying for tax-exempt status. For example, a Republican 
Congressman, Tim Griffin, accused you of being directly in charge 
of this targeting. Similarly, Republican Congressman Tom Price ac-
cused you of systemic harassment of conservative and religious or-
ganizations and argued that you should be suspended. 

Ms. Ingram, let me ask you to respond to these accusations di-
rectly. Did you play any role whatsoever in developing the inappro-
priate criteria used to screen applicants for tax-exempt status? 

Ms. INGRAM. No, I did not. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. The Inspector General didn’t find you responsible 

either, because the Inspector General understood that you were not 
in the chain of command during the relevant time period. 

It appears that many of the accusations against you are based 
on a misunderstanding about your title and your position. Although 
you left your previous position in December 2010, your job title did 
not officially change until 2013. So if someone looked up your job 
title, they might think that you were still at TEGE. Is that right? 

Ms. INGRAM. That is true, sir. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. Now, Ms. Ingram, it is my understanding that 

when you began your new position implementing the ACA in De-
cember 2010, you were no longer functioning as the Commissioner 
of Tax Exempt and Government Entities. Is that correct? 

Ms. INGRAM. Yes, sir. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. When you took the ACA job in 2010, your former 

deputy, Joseph Grant, became the Acting Commissioner of TEGE. 
Is that correct? 

Ms. INGRAM. Yes. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. Ms. Ingram, did Mr. Grant fully assume those 

responsibilities in December 2010? 
Ms. INGRAM. Yes, he did. It was announced that he would act as 

Commissioner. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. Did Lois Lerner report to Mr. Grant when he be-

came the Acting Commissioner of TEGE? 
Ms. INGRAM. Yes. 
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Mr. CUMMINGS. So after 2010, Ms. Lerner did not report to you 
anymore. Is that right? 

Ms. INGRAM. Only on paper, not in function. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. So she was no longer in your chain of command? 
Ms. INGRAM. That is right. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. The Inspector General determined that Ms. 

Lerner learned about the inappropriate screening criteria in June 
of 2011. That was 6 months after you moved to your full-time ACA 
position. Is that right? 

Ms. INGRAM. I understand that is the timing, yes, sir. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. Since you no longer reported—since she no 

longer reported to you, did Lois Lerner tell you about the use of 
inappropriate criteria in 2011? 

Ms. INGRAM. I don’t recall hearing anything about it until I sat 
in on a meeting requested by my boss in the spring of ’12. 

Mr. CUMMINGS. Now, in fact, Mr. Grant, who was her direct su-
pervisor, told us that Ms. Lerner did not tell him anything in 2011 
either. I just want everyone to be clear on the fact, because I think 
there are some people are clearly confused about this timeline. 

And I want to go back to some things Mr. Jordan was asking 
about. I take it that you are very concerned about 6103 informa-
tion, right? I mean, you guard—I mean, how do you view that? And 
how have you operated—first of all, how long have you been with 
the IRS? 

Ms. INGRAM. Over 31 years. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. And so tell me about your view with regard to 

6103 information and protecting it. And I remind you that you are 
under oath. Have you ever, to your knowledge, released inappropri-
ately 6103 information? 

Ms. INGRAM. I have never, as far as I know, ever violated any 
portion of 6103, which is a basic tenet from day one of employment 
at the IRS, to protect the confidentiality of the data that the citi-
zens give us. 

Mr. CUMMINGS. So you have spent 31 years at IRS. 
Ms. INGRAM. Yes, sir. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. That is a long time. 
Well, I just want to thank you for your service. And I know this 

is a difficult situation today. I am hoping the committee will be 
courteous to you. You are the face of our public servants, who give 
their blood, sweat, and tears and sacrifice for a bigger good. And 
so I just appreciate you. 

And, with that, I will yield back. 
Mr. JORDAN. [presiding.] The gentleman from Florida is recog-

nized for 5 minutes. 
Mr. MICA. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Ms. Ingram, have you ever heard of Henry Chao, C-h-a-o, Chief 

Information Officer of Medicare and Medicaid Services? 
Ms. INGRAM. Yes, sir. 
Mr. MICA. You have? He said—before October 1st, he said the 

rollout was not ready for October and hoped it would not be a 
third-world experience. Are you familiar with his evaluation of the 
ability to roll this out? 

Ms. INGRAM. No, sir. 
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Mr. MICA. Okay. Well, it is kind of funny. In the newspaper 
today, it was reported that it is easier to blog from Kenya, a third- 
world country, than to sign up for Obamacare. Would you say that 
that is an accurate assessment of where we are? 

Ms. INGRAM. All I can speak to, sir, is whether our part is work-
ing as planned, and it is. 

Mr. MICA. Well, your part is a couple of things. We talked a little 
bit about income verification. And you don’t have the ability to do 
that now; is that correct? 

Ms. INGRAM. We are operating a system that, when we are asked 
for the limited tax data on—— 

Mr. MICA. When somebody applies now, there is no verification 
of their income? Or will there be? Do you have that capability? 

Ms. INGRAM. There is currently operating an income query proc-
ess, whereby the marketplaces go through the data hub to us 
to—— 

Mr. MICA. But can you now—— 
Ms. INGRAM. Yes, we are successfully—— 
Mr. MICA. Can you now, when someone goes online, you can 

verify their income? 
Ms. INGRAM. When we get the request, we are successfully and 

in all cases returning timely answers. I cannot speak to stages be-
fore us. 

Mr. MICA. So the people that have so far signed up, you can 
verify their income now? 

Ms. INGRAM. There have been requests—— 
Mr. MICA. And you will. Now, if—— 
Ms. INGRAM. It is not the IRS’s role in the application process to 

do the total verification. 
Mr. MICA. But you are enforcement, though, right? 
Ms. INGRAM. Pardon me. 
Mr. MICA. Are you enforcement? 
Ms. INGRAM. We are worried about—— 
Mr. MICA. IRS is the enforcer? 
Ms. INGRAM. —the tax compliant—— 
Mr. MICA. Tax compliant. 
Ms. INGRAM. —the tax provisions, yes, sir. 
Mr. MICA. Right. Well, the court said this is a tax—— 
Ms. INGRAM. Yes, sir. 
Mr. MICA. —process. 
Are you ready in 2014? When are you going to announce to folks 

that in 2014 they have a $95 individual penalty or a $285 family 
penalty if they haven’t complied with signing up? 

Ms. INGRAM. We have final regs, we have materials on our Web 
site, and that has been part of our—— 

Mr. MICA. So you ready to go—— 
Ms. INGRAM. —part of our public outreach. 
Mr. MICA. When do you plan to send out notices? Will that be 

in 2014? 
Ms. INGRAM. I am sorry, sir. Notices? I am trying to track you. 
Mr. MICA. Well, that you have not complied and individuals have 

not complied. 
We eliminated the employer mandate temporarily. I guess the 

President suspended that. But you have—folks are going to get a 
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sticker shock when they find out that they are going to have this 
obligation. 

But you are prepared to send that out? 
Ms. INGRAM. We already have information about that provision 

in our outreach materials, in public meetings, on the Web site, et 
cetera. 

Mr. MICA. But you haven’t sent that out. You are not ready; you 
are just preparing for that. 

Ms. INGRAM. May I ask for a clarification about which notice the 
Congressman is referring to? 

Mr. MICA. Again, if you haven’t complied, there is a $95 indi-
vidual—— 

Ms. INGRAM. Yeah. 
Mr. MICA. —payment, $285 per family. At some point, that has 

to kick in, right? 
Ms. INGRAM. So after the returns are filed in early 2015 would 

be the first time—— 
Mr. MICA. Okay. 
Ms. INGRAM. —that we would have any information. 
Mr. MICA. Not until then. 
All right, another thing is, can you tell us how many have signed 

up for Obamacare? 
Ms. INGRAM. No, sir. That is not part of the IRS role, and we 

have no insight into those numbers. 
Mr. MICA. You have no insight. 
You know, all the reports I have—I read, you know, a little bit 

of who was responsible for setting this up. It says the system was 
developed by CGI Group. 

Then I got a list of who—if you could put the list up of who got 
the obligation contracts to put this system together. 

This is a partial list. It is about a quarter of a billion dollars 
these folks received. I didn’t know them, but they have a pretty 
good reputation, I understand. I did recognize Booz Hamilton. 

Were you involved in either deciding on any of these contracts 
being awarded at all or involved in picking who put this together? 

Ms. INGRAM. These are all HHS contracts. We have—— 
Mr. MICA. I know. 
Ms. INGRAM. —nothing to do with those. 
Mr. MICA. No, I asked you—yeah. 
Ms. INGRAM. No, we have nothing to do with that. 
Mr. MICA. And would there be political people, appointees that 

would have made that, or other people in HHS? 
Ms. INGRAM. I would have to refer you to the other agency, sir. 
Mr. MICA. Well, I was just a little surprised by that. 
And I will just show the committee. I went to one of my recog-

nized, Booz Hamilton, and then just checked the political contribu-
tions. 

If you would put up the political contributions. 
It is quite revealing. Over almost a quarter of a—let’s see, that 

is a million dollars to the Democrat side, $287, and $63,000 to the 
Republican side. It looks like some of these contracts—and this is 
on opensecret.com—which is to political folks. 

But you are not aware of any of that activity, right? 
Ms. INGRAM. We have no part of any of this. 
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Mr. MICA. And, again—and it might be interesting to go back, for 
the media and other folks, to see who got contracts and who were 
the big players. 

Finally, are you aware of any requirements for hiring additional 
personnel or additional space needed to house IRS personnel who 
will be involved in Obamacare? How much space and how many 
people? 

Ms. INGRAM. I am not aware of space issues, but the 2014 Presi-
dent’s budget includes the need to have additional IT specialists 
come in and help us finish the work for 2015. 

Mr. MICA. Finally, the amount of capacity, I am told, of your core 
data center, for most of our 400 IT core data centers, we only use 
about 8 to 12 percent of capacity. 

Do you know what percent of capacity for the data centers, or 
could you provide it to the committee, is used by IRS currently? 

Ms. INGRAM. That is certainly beyond my—— 
Mr. MICA. Well, I am asking if—— 
Ms. INGRAM. —knowledge, but we can take the question back. 
Mr. MICA. —you could provide it. Because we find very little has 

been used for most of those, again, according to reports Mr. 
Connolly and I have gotten. 

Thank you. I yield back. 
Mr. JORDAN. I thank the gentleman. 
The gentleman from Virginia is recognized. 
Mr. CONNOLLY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Now, let’s get a few things out of the way here, Ms. Ingram. 
Have you ever read ‘‘The Crucible’’ by Arthur Miller? 
Ms. INGRAM. I have not read it. I have seen it performed. 
Mr. CONNOLLY. And you know what it is about? 
Ms. INGRAM. Yes, sir. 
Mr. CONNOLLY. What is it about? 
Ms. INGRAM. Well, I am from New England, so I am familiar 

with the original story. 
Mr. CONNOLLY. So it is about? 
Ms. INGRAM. It is about the Salem witch trials. 
Mr. CONNOLLY. Ah. So let’s get—you are under oath. Have you 

been consorting with the devil? 
Ms. INGRAM. Not to my knowledge, sir. 
Mr. CONNOLLY. Are reports that you can fly accurate? 
Ms. INGRAM. Greatly exaggerated, sir. 
Mr. CONNOLLY. Have you been involved in any way in trying to 

pervert our youth in Salem or anywhere else? 
Ms. INGRAM. I certainly hope not, sir. 
Mr. CONNOLLY. You are sure? 
Ms. INGRAM. Yes, sir. 
Mr. CONNOLLY. Well, all right. 
You received an award in the Bush administration for excellence 

in public service, the highest award I think for anyone in the IRS; 
is that correct? 

Ms. INGRAM. It is the highest award given to members of the 
Senior Executive Service, yes. 

Mr. CONNOLLY. Did the devil have anything to do with that 
award? 
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Ms. INGRAM. I was not part of either the nomination process or 
the awarding. I can’t say, sir. 

Mr. CONNOLLY. We now know that the Bush administration 
manufactured evidence about weapons of mass destruction to jus-
tify the invasion of Iraq. Were you involved in that? 

Ms. INGRAM. Uh—— 
Mr. CONNOLLY. Because you received an award from President 

Bush. So there is a connection. 
Ms. INGRAM. No, sir. 
Mr. CONNOLLY. Really? Hmm. All right. If that is your testimony, 

Ms. Ingram. 
In your testimony, you said that the IRS is permitted to disclose 

tax return information to other Federal agencies and State tax au-
thorities to facilitate efficient tax administration. And you cited the 
fact that the ACA provides a specific exception—and we are talking 
about 6103 here—for information-sharing activities. 

Could you explain what that means? That sounds very ominous. 
It sounds like the devil is involved here. 

Ms. INGRAM. So, from time to time, Congress puts exceptions in 
the 6103 rule to permit or in some places require us to share tax 
data in narrow circumstances to forward some policy that Congress 
has in mind. As part of the ACA, there was an amendment made 
to 6103 to require us to share data upon request—— 

Mr. CONNOLLY. For what purpose? 
Ms. INGRAM. For the purpose of the recipients’ using it to deter-

mine eligibility for the benefits of the marketplaces and Medicaid. 
Mr. CONNOLLY. So the recipient would be who? The White 

House? Political operatives? The devil? Who is it? 
Ms. INGRAM. It is the individual marketplaces and Medicaid of-

fices who are using the data under the new part of 6103 to make 
income-based determinations on eligibility for their programs. 

Mr. CONNOLLY. So it is not political activity? 
Ms. INGRAM. No, sir. 
Mr. CONNOLLY. It is not partisan political activity? 
Ms. INGRAM. No, sir. We are required by statute. 
Mr. CONNOLLY. By statute. You mean we wrote it? 
Ms. INGRAM. Yes, sir. 
Mr. CONNOLLY. Oh. 
Ms. Ingram, I just want to say that, at least on this side of the 

aisle, you are an esteemed public servant. We deeply appreciate the 
service you have provided to your country. We are glad that you 
have stepped up to try to make affordable care available to all 
Americans, pursuant to the statute written by this Congress. 

And, at least speaking for myself, I deeply regret the fact, going 
back to ‘‘The Crucible,’’ that you are going to be pilloried here 
today. And I very much appreciate, as a fellow New Englander, 
your sangfroid and your willingness to put up with it. But don’t for 
a minute think that the pillorying to which you are going to be sub-
jected speaks for all of us. It does not. And, frankly, if the Amer-
ican people are watching this hearing, they are going to be 
ashamed of the treatment to which you are subjected. 

Thank you for your service. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. Will the gentleman yield? 
Mr. CONNOLLY. I will yield. 
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Mr. CUMMINGS. Just one question, Ms. Ingram. You have been 
asked several questions about your responsibility under the IRS 
with regard to the Affordable Care Act. 

Are you where you were scheduled to be—in other words, with 
regard to the development of everything that you all were supposed 
to do under your section of the IRS? 

Ms. INGRAM. Yes. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. Are you following my question? 
Ms. INGRAM. Yes, we are on—for the business operational parts 

that I am responsible for contributing to the team, we are on 
schedule. 

Mr. CUMMINGS. Thank you very much. 
Mr. JORDAN. The gentleman from Tennessee is recognized. 
Mr. DUNCAN. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. 
And I will make it clear that I have no complaints about or criti-

cisms of Ms. Ingram. But in Forbes magazine just this morning, a 
columnist named Avik Roy wrote this. He said this: ‘‘One week into 
the launch of Obamacare, however, it is not a joke. It is literally 
easier to blog from the Kenyan border than to sign up for insur-
ance on Obamacare’s Federal exchange. Why is this happening? 
Politics. The Obama administration was more afraid of delaying 
the launch of Obamacare than they were of botching it. 

‘‘All you need to know about the rollout of Obamacare’s sub-
sidized insurance exchanges is that so far the toughest questions 
posed to the Obama administration have come from Comedy Cen-
tral. ’We are going to do a challenge,’ Jon Stewart told Kathleen 
Sebelius on ’The Daily Show.’ ’I am going to try and download 
every movie ever made, and you are going to try to sign up for 
Obamacare, and we will see which happens first.’’ 

Some of the last questions made it seem that maybe they were 
done sort of in a joking manner, but this really is nothing to joke 
about. It is really kind of sad that this law was signed into effect 
in March of 2010. Forty-two months the government employees 
have had to prepare for this, 3–1/2 years. Ms. Ingram has been 
working on this since December of 2010. And, once again, I have 
no complaints about Ms. Ingram. But I think it is kind of ridicu-
lous, kind of sad that, after all this time, things are in the shape 
that they are in. 

And, also, I find out this morning that the taxpayers have paid 
over $400 million in sweetheart deals to government contractors to 
help all the government employees who have been working on this 
to try to get this in shape. I mean, this is the most messed-up, con-
voluted, confusing law that I think that has ever been passed. 

And even before this rollout, as bad as it has been, thousands 
and thousands of citizens across this country have written and 
emailed and called Members of Congress. I have to just—I can 
bring so many examples, but I have one that says, ‘‘I am a retired 
TVA employee and received notice of a more than $500 increase in 
monthly health insurance. Starting in 2014, monthly premiums 
will be $1,495 per month for me and my wife. Went into the Afford-
able Care site and premiums are about the same, except none of 
my doctors are on the list. I encourage you to keep voting to defund 
Obamacare, vote against increasing the debt ceiling, and vote to in-
clude everyone in Obamacare—no waivers or credits. My slogan for 
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President Obama is: ‘‘Be a man, sign up for your own plan.’’ That 
was from Jack H. Weiss. 

Then another man, Joseph Schmitt, emailed me, ‘‘I remember 
our President saying the new healthcare bill will reduce costs. I 
have my healthcare renewal forms, and the premium has increased 
about 15 percent, a $700 deductible is added, and my copayment 
is increased. Drug coverage is also increased. Maybe you can do 
nothing about this, and I understand. I just want you to know that 
I feel as if the truth was not told.’’ 

And another example from Bruce Christopher, it says, ‘‘My 2011 
health insurance premium is going up 11 percent for less coverage. 
Copay and deductibles have doubled. Just thought you would want 
to know.’’ 

Now, you have your responsibilities. And the IRS Commissioner, 
Mr. Shulman, was here earlier, and also he said that—he noted 
that the statute does not allow traditional enforcement methods. 
But he said that the IRS will, quote, ‘‘communicate with the tax-
payer and attempt to resolve the outstanding liability.’’ 

Can you tell us, since you are in charge of this office, Ms. 
Ingram, how will the IRS communicate that information to tax-
payers? 

Ms. INGRAM. I believe then-Commissioner Shulman was referring 
to the individual payment provision. 

Mr. DUNCAN. Right. That is correct. 
Ms. INGRAM. So the traditional parts that are not available to us 

per the statute is that, if there is a liability related to that provi-
sion, liens and levies and any criminal steps cannot be used for 
that provision. And we are operationally making sure that that is 
absolutely true as it rolls out. 

For the if somebody is not covered, which most Americans are, 
or they are not eligible for an exemption, a statutory exemption, 
which another group is, if they actually have a liability and do not 
pay it as part of their return-filing process, it would be a balance 
due like other balance dues. 

And we are very conscious that, in the early times, there is edu-
cation to be done and—— 

Mr. DUNCAN. Well, how will you identify the people who haven’t 
complied? I mean, are they supposed to check a box on their tax 
return, or what is going to happen? 

Ms. INGRAM. We received a great deal of feedback that it would 
be helpful to Americans who are covered to be able to check a box 
and know that they were done. So our intention is to give people 
an easy way as part of their tax-filing process to check a box or in-
dicate the exemption that they qualify for or to calculate the pen-
alty as part of their return-filing process. 

Mr. DUNCAN. And now you know that all these employer man-
dates have been delayed. And it was my understanding that the 
IRS was going to use the information obtained in these employer 
mandates to do your required compliance work. So were you going 
to use the information that these employers provided? 

Ms. INGRAM. So the information that is relevant to this provision 
is the information coming from the insurer information reports. 
And for the first year, the Congressman is correct that that is not 
mandatory in the first year. 
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We are making sure citizens have the information they need to 
fill out their returns correctly and honestly, which most taxpayers 
do, I would like to emphasize. And we will be looking to see wheth-
er there are other ways to look at the filing patterns. 

But our main concern in the first year is to make sure people are 
educated and know what they need to do. 

Mr. DUNCAN. Well, let me—my time has expired, and I just—— 
Ms. INGRAM. In second year, we will have the returns. 
Mr. DUNCAN. I just want to say that I feel it is really—this is 

not a joke to the American people. And it is sad that we would 
have laughter and jokes here in this committee hearing, in my 
opinion. 

Thank you. 
Mr. JORDAN. I thank the gentleman. 
The gentleman from Pennsylvania is recognized. 
Mr. CARTWRIGHT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
And, Ms. Ingram, thank you for coming here today and putting 

up with our committee, especially right now in an atmosphere on 
Capitol Hill where there is an utter frenzy to do everything people 
can think of to get rid of Obamacare before it takes effect, includ-
ing this hearing. 

But, Ms. Ingram, in my 4–1/2 minutes left, I want to see if we 
can cover the big picture. 

You are a 31-year employee of the IRS; is that correct? 
Ms. INGRAM. Yes. 
Mr. CARTWRIGHT. You were not working at the Tax Exempt and 

Government Entities part when the targeting of the both conserv-
ative and progressive political groups came to light. Am I correct 
in that? 

Ms. INGRAM. I was not working at TEGE, though I will note that 
it is true that on paper I still had that title. 

Mr. CARTWRIGHT. I saw that. But you didn’t know that targeting 
was going on until after you stopped working in that area? 

Ms. INGRAM. Yes. The first I heard was in the spring of 2012. 
Mr. CARTWRIGHT. And you now work on the IRS piece of part of 

the implementation of the ACA. Is that correct? 
Ms. INGRAM. Yes, sir. 
Mr. CARTWRIGHT. All right. You are working 60 or 70 hours a 

week at that, aren’t you? 
Ms. INGRAM. Ah, yes. 
Mr. CARTWRIGHT. All right. And you are working in one of the 

four offices of the IRS having to do with implementation and han-
dling of the ACA. Am I correct in that? 

Ms. INGRAM. Yes, sir. 
Mr. CARTWRIGHT. Okay. So one office is the Information Tech-

nology Division. That has been tasked to provide overall direction 
and day-to-day management and oversight of ACA-related IT deliv-
ery for new and modified systems. Is that right? 

Ms. INGRAM. That is true. 
Mr. CARTWRIGHT. You are not in that office, right? 
Ms. INGRAM. No, sir. 
Mr. CARTWRIGHT. Another one is the Privacy, Governmental Liai-

son, and Disclosure Office, which has been tasked to monitor al-
most 300 Federal and State agencies currently approved to receive 
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tax data and to ensure compliance with Section 6103, the one that 
had been bandied about a bit this morning, right? 

Ms. INGRAM. Yes, sir. 
Mr. CARTWRIGHT. And you are not in that office, are you? 
Ms. INGRAM. No, sir. 
Mr. CARTWRIGHT. One is the Office of Healthcare Counsel. This 

office has been tasked to coordinate the ACA across the Office of 
Chief Counsel in collaboration with the ACA, ACIO, ACA Safe-
guards, and ACA S&E PMO. You are not in that office either, are 
you? 

Ms. INGRAM. No, I am not, sir. 
Mr. CARTWRIGHT. Okay. 
The one you are in is ACA Services and Enforcement Division, 

the one that has been tasked to coordinate ACA across S&E oper-
ations in collaboration with ACA, ACIO, Associate Chief Informa-
tion Officer, Healthcare Counsel, and ACA Safeguards. Am I cor-
rect in that? 

Ms. INGRAM. Yes, sir. 
Mr. CARTWRIGHT. All right. 
Well, now, if you had questions about those offices that you are 

not in, it would be more appropriate to bring the people from those 
offices and question them, would it not? 

Ms. INGRAM. Yes, sir. There is a limit as to what I can provide 
as to their operations. 

Mr. CARTWRIGHT. So, for example, exactly how 6103 information 
blocking comes up, you would want to ask the Privacy, Govern-
mental Liaison, and Disclosure Office about that, wouldn’t you? 

Ms. INGRAM. Yes, sir, and the lawyers that advise them. 
Mr. CARTWRIGHT. Right. 
But now let me ask you this. There is an October 4, 2013, letter 

that Ranking Member Cummings wrote to Chairman Darrell Issa 
asking that people from all four of those divisions be brought here 
to testify. That was declined; they only wanted you. And they have 
asked you about all of these other subjects. 

Do you have any information at your disposal as to why Chair-
man Issa declined the participation of all these other people who 
know about these subjects? 

Ms. INGRAM. I have not been a part of any of those conversations, 
sir. 

Mr. CARTWRIGHT. In fact, in the same letter, Ranking Member 
Cummings asked pointedly if Chairman Issa would also invite Act-
ing IRS Commissioner Danny Werfel, who is charged with over-
seeing this entire effort at the IRS, and that also was declined. 

Ms. Ingram, do you know why Chairman Issa declined bringing 
Acting IRS Commissioner Werfel to answer those questions here 
today? 

Ms. INGRAM. Again, I haven’t been part of any of those conversa-
tions, sir. 

Mr. CARTWRIGHT. And I guess, even larger picture, Ms. Ingram, 
you don’t work at the HHS, which is responsible for the overall 
rollout of the Affordable Care Act, do you? 

Ms. INGRAM. No, sir. 
Mr. CARTWRIGHT. And they weren’t invited here to answer ques-

tions today. Do you know why that was? 
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Ms. INGRAM. I am not familiar with how the decisions were 
made, sir. 

Mr. CARTWRIGHT. Well, if you have a question about a subject, 
wouldn’t you want the person there that knows the most about 
that subject to answer those questions? Wouldn’t a tribunal that 
wants to get to the truth of things act that way, instead of putting 
it all on somebody who is only working in one specific area? 

Ms. INGRAM. I defer to the committee. Sorry, sir. 
Mr. CARTWRIGHT. Thank you very much for your time. 
And I yield back. 
Mr. JORDAN. I thank the gentleman. 
The gentleman from Utah is recognized. 
Mr. CHAFFETZ. I thank the chairman. I would actually yield to 

the gentleman from Ohio. 
Mr. JORDAN. I appreciate the gentleman yielding. 
Just real quick, in answering Mr. Cartwright’s line of ques-

tioning, I would just remind the committee again: We have the 
ACA implementation IRS Oversight Board briefing May 2nd, 2013, 
the document we got from the IRS Oversight Board. Ms. Ingram 
did that briefing. Page 7 of the minutes says, ‘‘Affordable Care Act 
update, led by Sarah Hall Ingram.’’ She discussed the security and 
safeguard programs the IRS has in place regarding the sharing of 
data among its partners. 

So it was, again, good enough for her to brief the IRS Oversight 
Board. It seemed like it would be appropriate for her to brief this 
committee in Congress. 

I want to go back to the email real quickly, if I could. Let’s go 
back. I just want to stress for the committee, the underlying issue 
here was about 58 different institutions who were suing the gov-
ernment because they believed their religious liberty rights, their 
First Amendment religious liberty rights, were being infringed 
upon by the Affordable Care Act. 

Isn’t that correct, Ms. Ingram? This regarded the lawsuits that 
were in place, that were filed, regarding infringement of religious 
liberty. 

Ms. INGRAM. I am sorry, Congressman. I don’t see where the liti-
gation is mentioned. 

Mr. JORDAN. Not mentioned. This is what you are talking about. 
Ms. INGRAM. No, sir. I am explaining how—— 
Mr. JORDAN. Only schools below college level that are affiliated 

with a church or operated by a religious order, these schools, while 
exempt from filing, would not meet their religious employer unless 
they are a church—this is all about institutions. Because, again, re-
member what was going on at this time. The administration was 
concerned about all these entities suing the government. 

Ms. INGRAM. This is about 6103 rules—6033 rules in the Internal 
Revenue Code and how they work. 

Mr. JORDAN. Used to define who qualifies and who doesn’t, who 
would be exempt and who wouldn’t be. 

And the end result was, from your discussions and the way the 
ruling was changed, most of these lawsuits were dismissed, law-
suits like Colorado Christian University v. Sebelius, Priests for Life 
v. Sebelius, Roman Catholic Archbishop of Washington v. Sebelius, 
Wheaton College v. Sebelius, Hobby Lobby—most of these cases 
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have been dismissed because of the change in the definition that 
was being discussed in these emails, correct? 

Ms. INGRAM. All I know, to respond to you, Mr. Congressman, is 
that I was answering questions about how current tax definitions 
worked under 6033. I was not involved in litigation or regulation 
decisions. 

Mr. JORDAN. You were answering—the White House wanted to 
know if they could change the definition. You were giving them in-
formation about the definition, and the end result was most of 
these suits were dismissed. That is what happened. 

Ms. INGRAM. I can’t speak to that, sir. I can only explain— 
Mr. JORDAN. You don’t have to speak to it; it is the fact. And part 

of that was determined by the back-and-forth between the White 
House and you. And our concern, of course, is, in that correspond-
ence that resulted in most of these cases being dismissed, you 
shared, at least by someone’s definition at the IRS, you shared per-
sonal taxpayer information with the White House. 

And now, under the Affordable Care Act—and now, under the Af-
fordable Care Act, Americans have to give personal information to 
the IRS, to the same lady, to the same organization that poten-
tially, at least by someone’s definition, shared all kinds of personal 
information with the White House political people at a time—this 
took place, again, at a time when religious institutions were suing 
the government because the Affordable Care Act infringed on their 
religious liberty rights. 

That is what people are nervous about. That scares a lot of peo-
ple. You guys working back and forth, personal information going 
in emails; the end result is lawsuits get dismissed, religious institu-
tions don’t get their day in court. And now all of America has to 
send the same kind of personal information to you and the IRS in 
order to get health care. 

Ms. INGRAM. May I have a minute to respond, sir. 
Mr. JORDAN. Sure. 
Ms. INGRAM. First, I will let the committee and the specialists in 

6103 law provide the explanation as to why it would not have been 
a 6103 problem for me to have this email but a 6103 issue vis— 
vis the committee. And I will let you and they work that out. 

Mr. JORDAN. Oh, wait, wait, wait. Just stop right there a second. 
So it was okay—that is amazing. It is okay for the White House 

to get the unredacted version, political people at the White House, 
from the same entity that targeted groups who came into existence 
because they opposed the Affordable Care Act, but Congress can’t 
get it. That is just what—that is unbelievable. 

You just told us it is okay—you said you didn’t do anything 
wrong, it is okay for the White House to get this information, but 
we on the Government Oversight Committee can’t get the same in-
formation. 

Ms. INGRAM. I cannot answer what is under those blocks, so I 
cannot answer whether the information originated with the White 
House or not. And I would refer you—— 

Mr. JORDAN. This is phenomenal. You wrote it. You don’t know 
what is underneath those blocks. But it was okay for the White 
House to get it, but it is not okay for us to get it. And Americans 
are supposed to rest assured the IRS will treat their personal infor-
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mation—when they are forced by the law to sign up for the Afford-
able Care Act, Americans are supposed to rest assured you guys 
will treat that in a confidential fashion. Unbelievable. 

Mr. CUMMINGS. Time is up. 
Mr. JORDAN. My time has expired. 
Mr. CHAFFETZ. I will go ahead and yield back. 
Mr. JORDAN. I thank the gentleman for yielding. 
Mr. Tierney is recognized. 
Mr. TIERNEY. Thank you. 
Thank you, Ms. Ingram, for subjecting yourself to this today. I 

appreciate you being here. 
So, look, I mean, a lot of the Members in this Congress, Repub-

lican Members, including some of the ones on this committee, have 
sort of been alleging that the White House orchestrated the so- 
called targeting of Tea Party groups. 

For example, on May 14th, 2013, Chairman Issa stated on na-
tional television, ‘‘This was the targeting of the President’s political 
enemies effectively, and lies about it during the election year so 
that it wasn’t discovered until afterwards.’’ 

So our committee has now heard from over 30 witnesses in inter-
views or in hearings, and none of them have indicated that the 
White House was involved in the treatment of applications for tax- 
exempt status. 

Ms. Ingram, do you have any reason personally to believe that 
the White House directed targeting of Tea Party organizations? 

Ms. INGRAM. I have never heard anything that would indicate 
that. 

Mr. TIERNEY. Did anyone in the White House directly or indi-
rectly ever instruct you to treat the Tea Party organizations dif-
ferently from any others? 

Ms. INGRAM. I have never had any such conversation with the 
White House. 

Mr. TIERNEY. So, to be clear, you have no knowledge of any 
White House role in these cases whatsoever. Is that correct? 

Ms. INGRAM. None whatsoever, sir. 
Mr. TIERNEY. Now, there have been press accounts claiming that 

since 2009 you visited the White House 165 times. Is that correct? 
Ms. INGRAM. I have been told of the press accounts. 
Mr. TIERNEY. Okay. 
Ms. INGRAM. Those have to do with clearances, not attendance. 
Mr. TIERNEY. So most of us realize that those logs can often in-

clude scheduled visits that didn’t actually take place. So how many 
times did you actually visit the White House complex during the 
timeframe, in 2009 area? 

Ms. INGRAM. I am sorry, sir. From when to when. 
Mr. TIERNEY. From 2009 on. 
Ms. INGRAM. Well, I don’t have a number, sir, but once I started 

the ACA work, from time to time I would accompany Treasury to 
the Old Executive Office Building to provide administrability anal-
ysis for an issue that is being discussed amongst the multiple agen-
cies. And that put me on a list for building clearances that was a 
repeating invitation, but I only went when I could add value from 
an administrability point of view. 

VerDate Aug 31 2005 09:06 Jan 17, 2014 Jkt 000000 PO 00000 Frm 00048 Fmt 6633 Sfmt 6633 C:\DOCS\86195.TXT APRIL



45 

Mr. TIERNEY. On any of those visits that you made, were they 
about the applications for tax-exempt status that are under inves-
tigation by this committee? 

Ms. INGRAM. Never, sir. 
Mr. TIERNEY. Okay. In fact, these regularly scheduled inter-

agency meetings are on the Affordable Care Act is primarily what 
you were invited to participate in; is that correct? 

Ms. INGRAM. As far as I know, always Affordable Care Act. 
Mr. TIERNEY. And they took place in the Old Executive Office 

Building, not in the actual residential White House or the Office 
of the White House itself? 

Ms. INGRAM. I would say yes, except that I have a vague memory 
that for one meeting I went through a—somewhere in the sub-base-
ment, I went through a second checkpoint. So I don’t really know 
where I was at that point, but I just want to be open and complete 
about that. 

Mr. TIERNEY. Sure. 
Well, look, you know, some people have attempted to paint these 

meetings as evidence of a political bias on your part, so I want to 
give you an opportunity to respond to that. Have any of your ac-
tions at the IRS implementing the Affordable Care Act been moti-
vated by any of your personal political views? 

Ms. INGRAM. Absolutely not. Those—there is no place for per-
sonal political views in my work at the IRS. 

Mr. TIERNEY. In your tenure at the IRS, have you ever treated 
organizations differently based on their political views? 

Ms. INGRAM. Absolutely not. 
Mr. TIERNEY. Have you seen any evidence that political bias has 

motivated the actions of any other IRS employee? 
Ms. INGRAM. I have not seen bias in the work at the IRS. 
Mr. TIERNEY. Okay. 
I mean, we should be troubled by the baseless and partisan at-

tacks that have been lobbed not just against you but others during 
the course of this investigation. So, hopefully, the record will be 
clear now and that it has been recognized that your duties have 
been exemplary conducted on that. And I thank you for your serv-
ice. 

I yield to Mr. Cummings. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. I am just sitting here listening to all of this. And, 

you know, I was listening to what Mr. Jordan just asked you. It 
is troubling. 

Do you have a family? 
Ms. INGRAM. Yes, sir. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. Are you married? 
Ms. INGRAM. Yes, sir. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. Do you have children? 
Ms. INGRAM. Not my own. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. Uh-huh. 
And the reason why I asked you that is sometimes I think we 

forget that public employees are human beings simply trying to do 
a job, people who could probably go out in the private sector and 
make more money. And the idea that you gave 31 years—that 31 
is just ringing in my head. That is a lot of time. 
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And I want to go back to something Mr. Connolly said. I want 
you to know, you may very well be attacked here today, but this 
is really not about you. This is bigger than you. And I want you 
to understand that. 

Thank you very much. 
Mr. JORDAN. I appreciate the gentleman’s comments. And he is 

exactly right. It is not just about Ms. Ingram. It is about Americans 
who have to comply with this act. 

And I would just point out this, too: Lots of people underneath 
these redactions have families, as well, and they had their personal 
information bandied about like it was nothing. That concerns all of 
us. 

The gentleman from Michigan is recognized. 
Mr. WALBERG. I thank the chairman. 
And, Ms. Ingram, I also thank you for being here to testify. We 

need to ask questions of a lot of people, and you are one of those. 
I appreciate the fact of concern from my colleagues on the other 

side of the aisle that we treat Federal employees like human beings 
as well. And that is right; it ought to be that way. 

But I also think about the 59-year-old woman in Jackson, Michi-
gan, who calls my office in tears, a single mother, single-parent 
mother, who was just informed by her employer that she was being 
cut back from her part-time job of 35 hours as a home caregiver 
to 25 hours. And the additional revenue she made as a waitress on 
the weekends now would not come anywhere near covering her 
mortgage. That is a human being, as well. And that is why we are 
trying to get answers in hearings like this, and that is why we ap-
preciate you being here. 

It is also the employer of 54 individuals, human beings, in my 
district who was told by his insurance carrier that they could not 
provide coverage for them anymore for their employees because 
they wouldn’t meet the requirements of Obamacare. 

And so that is why we these hearings are important: to get to 
the issues that get the human beings, citizens, taxpayers, people 
that have dreams and aspirations just as you, Ms. Ingram, and I 
and my colleagues have, as well. And that is important to do this, 
and not to have a battle that continues to go on about shutdowns. 
Though I believe, very clearly, leadership on the other side of the 
aisle relishes this shutdown taking place and the pain that it 
brings about for political reasons. 

I ask you a question, moving on, dealing specifically with the em-
ployer mandate in the Affordable Care Act and the constitutional 
opinions that are out there all over the place that the President did 
not have the authority to delay the employer mandate. And we are 
asking for the individual mandate to be delayed for fairness, so 
they can get it right. 

But, Ms. Ingram, were you involved with discussions about the 
employer mandate delay prior to the announcement of the delay in 
a July 2nd blog post? Were you aware of that? 

Ms. INGRAM. I was asked during that early summer about my 
views about the administrability of going forward with no relief or 
going forward with various kinds of relief and including the input 
that was coming in from the employer community about wishing to 
have more time to analyze their data and IT needs and from the 
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insurer community and to consider administrability, which I al-
ways do, not only from the point of view of the IRS but from the 
individual and from the information reporter. 

Mr. WALBERG. Do you know why the administration chose to 
wait as long as July 2nd to post this delay in a blog, why that deci-
sion was made? 

Ms. INGRAM. I was not in the decision-making process. I provided 
administrability analysis. 

Mr. WALBERG. Were you involved in the discussions regarding 
the administration’s legal rationale behind the delay? 

Ms. INGRAM. No, sir. 
Mr. WALBERG. So you don’t know what factors were considered 

for our President to ultimately make that decision? 
Ms. INGRAM. I was not involved in the discussion, and I was told 

that the decision was made by the Assistant Secretary. 
Mr. WALBERG. Is it true that the IRS will collect Obamacare’s 

employer mandate penalty? 
Ms. INGRAM. In—when, sir? I am sorry. In what—— 
Mr. WALBERG. When it is in effect. Will you, the IRS, collect the 

employer’s—Obamacare’s employer mandate penalty? 
Ms. INGRAM. Yes. Once the information reporting commences, 

there will be the sufficient information to be able to calculate the 
tax. 

Mr. WALBERG. So the employer mandate penalty amounts to 
$2,000 or $3,000 penalty per worker, as I understand what is in 
the law. Can you explain why the penalty would be $2,000 per 
worker and when it would be $3,000 per worker? 

Ms. INGRAM. The difference between the two parts of that statute 
refer to whether the employer offers coverage at all. And that is the 
smaller amount. But it is a multiple of the number of workers, 
with some subtractions. 

If the employer offers adequate insurance, then the only question 
is whether an employee got a premium tax credit who was entitled 
to it, despite the employer offer. And, in that case, the number of 
people who get the premium tax credit would be a multiple of the 
$3,000. 

Mr. WALBERG. Does the IRS have to offer the employer an oppor-
tunity to review and contest the determination prior to assessing 
the penalty. 

Ms. INGRAM. As we put in our Q&As on the Web and have talked 
about publicly, the employer has very little ability to calculate that 
themselves because it requires knowledge of the 1040s and who got 
a premium tax credit. So we will provide a proposed bill for the em-
ployer, including the underlying information, and let them help us 
correct the data. 

Mr. WALBERG. When does the correction take place? After the 
payment of the penalty? 

Ms. INGRAM. No, sir. After we propose an amount and they can 
work with us on correcting any errors in that calculation, and then 
there would be a bill. 

Mr. WALBERG. Okay. 
I thank the chairman. I yield back. 
Mr. JORDAN. I thank the gentleman. 
I now recognize the gentleman from Wisconsin. 
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Mr. POCAN. Great. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
And, Ms. Ingram, thank you very much for being here. I want 

to echo the comments of both people, and your patience has been 
tremendous. 

I don’t really know where to begin, so let me start with, are you 
of Libyan descent? 

Ms. INGRAM. Not to my knowledge, sir. 
Mr. POCAN. Have you ever lived in Libya? 
Ms. INGRAM. No, sir. 
Mr. POCAN. Have you ever traveled through Libya? 
Ms. INGRAM. No, sir. 
Mr. POCAN. All right. How about, on the zodiac, are you a Libra? 
Ms. INGRAM. No, sir. 
Mr. POCAN. Okay. You know, if you were at all involved with 

Benghazi, we would have hit the GOP trifecta: the IRS, the Afford-
able Care Act, and Benghazi. I mean, you would have made anyone 
who is frowning on the other side of the aisle just absolutely ec-
static. Unfortunately, I guess we don’t have a trifecta today. 

I guess what we do have is a Whac-A–Mole hearing. We are just 
going to keep pounding at different things, hoping we hit some-
thing. 

And I think it has been pretty clear from people on this side of 
the aisle, Mr. Cartwright and our ranking member, but I just want 
to verify: You were not in charge, your job was not in charge of any 
targeting of Tea Party or progressive groups that this committee 
has discussed. 

Ms. INGRAM. No. My functional assignments did not include any 
of that. 

Mr. POCAN. Okay. And we have seen lots of emails with redact-
ing. You are not in charge of redacting at the IRS, are you? 

Ms. INGRAM. No, sir. 
Mr. POCAN. Okay. 
They brought up some financial donations to Presidential cam-

paigns. Is your job at the IRS to oversee somehow financial dona-
tions? 

Ms. INGRAM. No, sir. 
Mr. POCAN. Okay. 
They brought up your travel schedule a number of times, how 

many you were at the White House. I assume we are going to have 
some of the janitorial staff at the White House coming in pretty 
soon, too, because they have been there an awful lot. 

How about—a number of areas we have brought up in the ACA 
you are not responsible for. Let’s go to what specifically, I mean, 
you are here for, which is your supervision within the IRS of the 
Affordable Care Act. 

Specifically, it has been 9 days into implementation. Have there 
been any problems specifically in your area with the IRS portion 
of the implementation of the Affordable Care Act? 

Ms. INGRAM. We have successfully taken in and turned around 
all the requests that we have received from the hub. And as far as 
we can tell—and we are looking on a daily basis—it is operating 
well. 
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Mr. POCAN. Are there any areas based on, again, the oversight 
from your department that you see as potential areas that you are 
watching very closely that could have some issues? 

Ms. INGRAM. Having to do with the supporting services that we 
are doing right now? 

Mr. POCAN. Correct. 
Ms. INGRAM. Well, we have two kinds of activities that I would 

refer you to in general, because I know about them in general. 
One is looking at transactions on a sampling basis to keep reas-

suring ourselves they are working as intended and that when—not 
only in the testing phase, but also now that we are operational. 

The other thing we are doing is that there are two parts of Safe-
guard work. One is before data is—agreements are approved, and 
the other is once data flows are operational, we go back out and 
do operational reviews of practices. And that operational review 
cycle has started this week. 

Mr. POCAN. So just as a final, you know—ask the question again, 
just because it is what—‘‘Examining the IRS’s Role in Imple-
menting and Enforcing Obamacare,’’ what the headline of this is, 
as of 9 days now, we don’t have problems that you are aware of 
at this point in your responsibilities within the implementation of 
the Affordable Care Act? 

Ms. INGRAM. The IRS team is very comfortable that things are 
operating well at the IRS. 

Mr. POCAN. All right. That is great to hear. 
Again, Ms. Ingram, we really appreciate your willingness to field 

a wide variety of questions, both relevant and, more often than not, 
not relevant. 

And I just have to say one thing to the last committee member 
who said Democrats relish the shutdown. Actually, we are pretty 
disgusted by the shutdown. 

You know, the fact that my small businesses can’t get SBA loans 
right now. About $80 million went into my community last year. 
That is pretty disgusting, that they can’t, you know, grow jobs and 
grow the economy. 

The fact that veterans may not get benefits because we are hold-
ing our breath right now in Congress is pretty disgusting to me. 

The fact that Head Start kids in my district, including in Beloit, 
Wisconsin, where, the day after I was there visiting, a bullet went 
through their window—it is in a pretty tough neighborhood. The 
fact that they are going to not have funds is pretty disgusting. 

The fact that I have so many Federal employees who are fur-
loughed and aren’t working, I don’t relish that, and I am pretty dis-
gusted by it. 

And the fact that this country, it is costing $160 million a day 
while we are in closedown is not something the Democrats relish. 

And I just think that—I just want to clear the record. I don’t 
think there is a single person here who would say they relish the 
shutdown. 

RPTS HUMISTON 
DCMN SECKMAN 
[11:35 a.m.] 
Mr. WALBERG. Would the gentlemen yield? 
Mr. POCAN. Sure. 
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Mr. WALBERG. Thank you. I thank the gentleman. Just to clarify, 
my comments about that relishing go to the leadership in the Sen-
ate as well as the White House, the President, who are unwilling 
and made it very clear they will not negotiate. 

We have worked together to pass bills to deal with all of the 
things you mentioned. We passed them, sent them in a bipartisan 
fashion over to the Senate. It is time for us to stand together and 
ask the Senate and the President to show leadership and negotiate 
to a solution, and I want to see that as well. 

Mr. POCAN. Sure. And all I would add to that, if I can, to re-
spond—thank you, Mr. Chairman—is the fact that, you know, I be-
lieve—and I serve on the Budget Committee. For 6 months, we 
have been asking people, since March 23rd, when the Senate 
passed a budget, to sit down and have a conference. And when, at 
20 minutes to midnight on September 30th, finally, the idea comes 
together to sit down, I don’t know if the finger pointing goes to the 
Senate leadership or the President. 

Mr. JORDAN. Thank the gentleman. 
Now recognize the gentleman from Oklahoma, Mr. Lankford. 
Mr. LANKFORD. Thank you, Ms. Ingram. 
Thank you for being here. Give me a chance to walk through 

some questions. I want to talk to you about some of the process 
issues of the implementation on this. 

Was the IRS ready to be able to implement the business man-
date, the employer mandate, as far as tracking through penalties, 
tracking through whether they are covering employees? Were they 
prepared for that? 

Ms. INGRAM. Because the transition relief mentions that we will 
be ready to take in information returns from anybody who would 
like to voluntarily try the—doing that in the transition year, the 
work is the same for us either way. 

Mr. LANKFORD. Okay. So, right now, the IRS is fully prepared to 
be able to do what it needs to do? Obviously, you are taking in vol-
untary information now or you will in the months ahead—— 

Ms. INGRAM. No. 
Mr. LANKFORD. So—— 
Ms. INGRAM. I am sorry. 
Mr. LANKFORD. No. But I am saying the IRS was ready for it ei-

ther way. The administration made the decision, business mandate, 
we are not going to do it this year, based on businesses were not 
ready to do that, insurance companies were not ready to do that, 
not because the IRS was not prepared? 

Ms. INGRAM. That is right. But it is—it would have been 15 
months away in any case before anything was being filed. 

Mr. Lankford. Correct, because of the forms and such things com-
ing out. Is the expectation from the IRS that, starting in 2015, let’s 
go 2016, whatever year we’ve got full roll-out, that individual busi-
nesses will have to list or report individuals within their company 
that were offered qualified health plans during the course of the 
year and what months that they were offered those plans? 

Ms. INGRAM. If the business is of a sufficient size, yes, sir. 
Mr. LANKFORD. So if you’re 50 or more, is that the size we’re 

dealing with? 
Ms. INGRAM. Roughly, yes. 

VerDate Aug 31 2005 09:06 Jan 17, 2014 Jkt 000000 PO 00000 Frm 00054 Fmt 6633 Sfmt 6633 C:\DOCS\86195.TXT APRIL



51 

Mr. LANKFORD. So if they’re 50 or more, they’re going to have to 
report, starting in 2015 or 2016, whatever year that may be when 
we’re in full implementation, every individual that was offered 
qualified health insurance, the months that they were offered that? 

Ms. INGRAM. Every full-time employee, per the statute. 
Mr. LANKFORD. So, again, going back to the $2,000 or $3,000 

penalty, you said that business really won’t know that until the 
1040s are in for the individuals. So there is an expectation that the 
business will report what individuals are there, if they were offered 
qualified health insurance. The 1040 from the individual will then 
show whether they got the subsidies. Those come together, and 
then, at some months later, it comes back to the business, you owe 
an additional amount of penalty because an employee of yours re-
ceived a subsidy and was not eligible for that. Is that correct or not 
correct? 

Ms. INGRAM. We would provide them with the results of that 
matching. 

Mr. LANKFORD. How long do you think that would take? 
Ms. INGRAM. There are a number of different ways that we might 

do it. We haven’t settled on exactly how we would do it, but we 
have heard from the business community that it would be helpful 
to them to know relatively promptly. 

Mr. LANKFORD. I would assume that is—that is the challenge, as 
far as business, to try and budget and plan for the next coming 
year to see how that—see how it works. If an individual starts re-
ceiving the subsidy, and I understand the subsidy is going to the 
insurance company, not the individual, I understand that; indi-
vidual signs up, begins to get the premium supports, that goes to 
the insurance company to help provide for that, but the individual 
stops paying their portion. How long will it be before the IRS is no-
tified that this individual has stopped paying their portion, wheth-
er they got a job and they just didn’t call the insurance company, 
their new job provides insurance, or whether they just decided, you 
know what, I don’t want to pay this anymore. How long will pay-
ments continue to move to that insurance company? 

Ms. INGRAM. So the entire process for the setting of those credit 
payments and the process for what happens when somebody stops 
to pay or the insurance goes out of effect is all a process that goes 
on between HHS and the marketplaces and the insurance compa-
nies. The IRS is not involved in that. 

The information the IRS receives is from the marketplaces, 
which will have the record of what amounts had been paid appro-
priately, which is based on—— 

Mr. LANKFORD. So is Treasury notified at some point to stop 
doing payments? They are notified by HHS; they’re notified by IRS, 
or how are they notified? 

Ms. INGRAM. They’re not notified by IRS. We’re not involved in 
the advance portion, but, yes—— 

Mr. LANKFORD. All right. 
Ms. INGRAM. —the information will flow—is supposed to flow up 

and down, and I refer you to HHS on the specifics. 
Mr. LANKFORD. Okay. Let me ask you this question as well. This 

$2,000 fee, penalty, tax, whatever you want to call it, if an em-
ployer does not provide healthcare at all to an employee, if an em-
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ployer provides full healthcare, everything, except some of the 
things on the preventative services list that’s been identified by 
HHS, that penalty, if I’m reading this correctly, is $36,500 per em-
ployee. 

So it’s $2,000 if they provide nothing, but if they don’t provide 
any one thing on the preventative list, but they provide everything 
else, it’s $100 a day. That’s $36,500. Is that correct or not correct? 

Ms. INGRAM. I’m not entirely clear on what the second amount 
is that you’re referencing. 

Mr. LANKFORD. Well, there’s a $100-a-day penalty for not pro-
viding everything on the preventative services list, and that pre-
ventative services list is rather long for men, women and children; 
here are the things that have to be provided in your employer-pro-
vided healthcare. 

So there’s a lot of questions out there from a lot of employers 
that if they miss one of those or if, for religious reasons, they 
choose not to provide one of those, if they don’t provide it at 100 
percent coverage, paid for by the employer, they’re not fined 
$2,000; they’re fined $36,500. It’s $100 a day. 

Ms. INGRAM. I’m going to have to take the question back for the 
lawyers, including the Justice Department. 

Mr. LANKFORD. I would very much appreciate this, because this 
same question has been asked by multiple employers in my dis-
trict. They can’t get anyone at IRS to answer the question. They 
continually ask this question, is this really $100 per day, per per-
son? In fact, it’s actually per person that is affected; it’s not even 
per employee. So if that employee has children, their assumption 
is also $36,500 per child as well. No one will give them an answer 
from IRS on what that penalty is and how it stacks up. All that 
they get is a stall from it. 

And we’ve got to get some clarification, because there are an 
awful lot of businesses that are out there that do have a problem, 
whether for religious reasons or for other reasons, and if they miss 
one, that’s a pretty big hit. That’s no longer just a fee or a penalty; 
that’s actually punitive, $36,500 per person. 

Ms. INGRAM. What I can say, sir, from the perspective of my 
planning, that’s not in my current work plan to address that issue. 
So that doesn’t necessarily answer your question, and I will take 
it back. 

Mr. LANKFORD. We would—if we can get—any guess on timing 
when we get that, because they’ve asked for months for clarifica-
tion on that? So can we get a time period when we might get an 
answer to that? 

Ms. INGRAM. If it relates to matters that are in litigation, there 
are a number of places I have to stop to get the answer. 

Mr. LANKFORD. So—— 
Ms. INGRAM. I’m sorry. 
Mr. LANKFORD. So do they. Thank you. 
I yield back. 
Mr. JORDAN. The gentlelady from California is recognized. 
Ms. SPEIER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Ms. Ingram, thank you for your incredible service to our country 

for 31 years. 
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I am pretty disappointed in this hearing today, Mr. Chairman. 
We have a shut—a shutdown, we have 800,000 furloughed Federal 
employees. At the IRS, 90 percent of the staff have been fur-
loughed. October 15th is the deadline for all tax returns to finally 
be submitted, and we are talking about Ms. Ingram, not how the 
IRS is going to process all the paper that is going to be coming in 
in the next week. Instead of having a hearing on the impact the 
shutdown on Federal employees and the public, the committee ma-
jority has decided to re-enact the movie ‘‘Groundhog Day’’, holding 
yet another hearing to try and find political bias or wrongdoing by 
the administration; only this version of ‘‘Groundhog Day’’ isn’t 
funny at all. 

The committee has decided to bully a civil servant with a long 
and distinguished career with the IRS. In fact, members of this 
committee on the other side have made their intentions clear, ac-
cusing Ms. Ingram of responsibility for a scandal and political bias 
they have not been able to prove. 

Let’s be clear. Ms. Ingram is not a political appointee. She re-
ceived the Distinguished Service Award from President George 
Bush in 2004. She was given the job of implementing the ACA pre-
cisely because she is competent and able to get the job done, a 
thankless task for sure. 

So, Ms. Ingram, let’s go to your credentials. You have been a 
staff person within the IRS for 30 years. Is that correct? 

Ms. INGRAM. Since late 1982. 
Ms. SPEIER. And in 1982, you graduated from the distinguished 

law school at Georgetown, correct? 
Ms. INGRAM. Yes, ma’am. 
Ms. SPEIER. And you probably had the opportunity of going to K 

Street for the big bucks, but chose, rather, to support your country 
by joining the IRS. Is that correct? 

Ms. INGRAM. Yes, ma’am. 
Ms. SPEIER. And you’ve served in that capacity since the admin-

istration of President Reagan. Is that correct? 
Ms. INGRAM. Yes, ma’am 
Ms. SPEIER. So every administration since then, Republican and 

Democrat, you have been in service to this country at the Internal 
Revenue Service? 

Ms. INGRAM. Yes, ma’am. 
Ms. SPEIER. It has been charged that you are responsible for tar-

geting Tea Party organizations seeking tax-exempt status. In fact, 
Republican House Member Tim Griffin accused you of being: ‘‘di-
rectly in charge of this targeting.’’ He said this: ‘‘she provided hor-
rendous customer service under her watch, and now she’s gonna do 
the same implementing Obamacare.’’ 

Ms. Ingram, I want to give you a chance to respond to that at-
tack. Were you directly in charge of targeting Tea Party groups? 

Ms. INGRAM. No, ma’am. 
Ms. SPEIER. Were you involved in any way, shape or form in tar-

geting of Tea Party or other groups at the IRS? 
Ms. INGRAM. No, ma’am. 
Ms. SPEIER. So where would Mr. Griffin get that kind of flawed 

information? 
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Ms. INGRAM. I think the fact that on paper I was left on the prior 
position confused many people, and the fact that, in the spring of 
2012, Steve Miller asked me to sit in on a few meetings and listen 
has caused some confusion for some people, but I had a more than 
full-time job at ACA starting in December of 2012 and only on an 
occasional basis performed particular tasks when requested by Mr. 
Miller, usually having nothing to do with EO. 

Ms. SPEIER. It was December 2010, was it not? 
Ms. INGRAM. I’m sorry. 2010, yes. 
Ms. SPEIER. All right. So, in 2004, President George Bush award-

ed you the Nation’s highest, I repeat, highest civil service award, 
the Distinguished Executive Presidential Rank Award. Is that cor-
rect? 

Ms. INGRAM. Yes, ma’am. 
Ms. SPEIER. And this award was for your outstanding tax law 

leadership and highly effective efforts to combat terrorism financ-
ing. Is that correct? 

Ms. INGRAM. Yes, ma’am. 
Ms. SPEIER. I think we have a picture of you with President 

Bush. Can we put that up? Probably hard to see where you are, 
but I’ve been told that you’re right under the—— 

Chairman ISSA. Would the gentlelady yield? Is that the personal 
meeting that she had with the President? Who are those people 
that are watching that one-on-one personal meeting? 

Ms. SPEIER. I didn’t say it was a personal meeting. 
Chairman ISSA. Oh. Okay. So—— 
Ms. SPEIER. I said she was being awarded this Distinguished 

Service Award, the highest civil service award that you can receive 
in national service. 

Chairman ISSA. Were all the other people receiving the same 
award in that picture? 

Ms. SPEIER. I am not sure. 
Chairman ISSA. Well, the gentlelady’s lawyers provided it. Maybe 

she could tell us. Were they all recipients? 
Ms. INGRAM. Every year rough—somewhere, but—I believe my 

year, it was roughly 55 or 60 recipients. 
Ms. SPEIER. Okay, 55 or 60 recipients out of how many members 

of the Federal employment, or is this within the IRS? 
Ms. INGRAM. No, not just IRS. 
Ms. SPEIER. So this was within the entire Federal employment 

of 800,000 people, there are 50 that are selected, and she was one 
of them. Is that correct? 

Ms. INGRAM. This is an award given to a small number of people 
who are part of the Senior Executive Service. I don’t have the exact 
number of the total Senior Executive Service in the Federal Gov-
ernment. 

Ms. SPEIER. But it is an extraordinarily large number of people, 
and you were recognized as one of a handful of people who has 
done extraordinary work. 

And while my time has expired, Mr. Chairman, I would like us 
to explore maybe in greater detail her work in combating terrorism 
financing, because we know that that is a profound, profound risk 
that we are dealing with in this country. 

I yield back. 
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Mr. JORDAN. Thank the gentlelady. 
We now recognize the gentleman from Arizona, Mr. Gosar. 
Mr. GOSAR. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Ms. Ingram, you know, in my district in Arizona, my constituents 

are becoming increasingly concerned with the Federal Govern-
ment’s overreach and their ability to keep their personal informa-
tion secure. In fact, earlier this year, the Environmental Protection 
Agency leaked personal information of hundreds of cattlemen and 
farmers in rural Arizona to special interest groups, which put their 
financial security at risk. Additionally, the IRS’s political targeting 
of individuals earlier this year just underscores our constituents’ 
skepticism. 

Now, my question to you is, to implement the insurance ex-
changes, the IRS will have to share taxpayer information much 
more broadly than it ever has before. How do you plan to make this 
information fully protected and not misused? 

Ms. INGRAM. Thank you, sir, for letting me clarify something that 
was said earlier this morning, and that is, when our information 
flows upon request of the applicant that it be provided, flows to the 
exchange or the Medicaid office, it is secured behind the scenes. It 
is not shown to anybody who is applying or who is assisting them 
or to the general employees in those two offices. It’s a backroom 
data feed that is then mixed with other data available to the entity 
to come up with determinations that are then shared. And that is 
an arrangement that we worked out quite specifically to reduce the 
risk that unauthorized people might see the data. 

Mr. GOSAR. You know, the administration has recently stated 
that the data hub is ready and finished in its security testing, yet 
there were all kinds of technical problems when the exchanges oc-
curred last week. In fact, the Arizona Republic, the largest paper 
in my State, actually wrote, but despite years of planning, 
healthcare experts predicted some consumers may experience tem-
porary setbacks when applying for coverage today through the new 
government-run Web site, healthcare.gov, and they were right. 
Some Arizonian residents discovered delays Tuesday when at-
tempting to log on to healthcare.gov. The Web site made users wait 
to access the login page, siting a high volume of users on the na-
tionwide exchange. Users in other States reported a similar prob-
lem. 

Given these technical struggles, why should we have confidence 
in the IRS testing? 

Ms. INGRAM. I’m sorry. If I could get clarification. On the IRS’s 
testing of its own system or—— 

Mr. GOSAR. Yes. 
Ms. INGRAM. —on the security of the data that’s going out? 
Mr. GOSAR. Yes. Why would we trust the IRS’s testing on their 

security mechanism? 
Ms. INGRAM. Well, the IRS historically has a very good track 

record about our own systems. Again, I would emphasize that when 
our data goes to the marketplaces and the Medicaid offices, it does 
not interface with the Web site, which I believe is what you were 
discussing, if I was listening correctly. 
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Mr. GOSAR. Yes. So when—let me give you a follow up. When did 
the IRS finish its testings of Obamacare data hub prior to October 
1st? When did it? 

Ms. INGRAM. I have to take back the question of exactly when, 
but testing continue—various types of testing went on all year. 

Mr. GOSAR. And that was one of the many comments—that the 
IRS has functioned very, very well in what they’ve been asked to 
do. Can you tell me how many inquiries they actually—you actu-
ally processed from the IRS’s aspect to date? 

Ms. INGRAM. So remember these are inquiries for data, not en-
rollments. So I would want to be very clear that those are two dif-
ferent things, but we have—— 

Mr. GOSAR. But they’re tied to enrollment? 
Ms. INGRAM. Well, they’re—— 
Mr. GOSAR. In order to fully enroll, you have to go—— 
Ms. INGRAM. If you want financial assistance—— 
Mr. GOSAR. Yes. 
Ms. INGRAM. —then you—they have to ask us if it’s—if it’s a 

marketplace, they must, by statute, ask us for the data. If it’s a 
Medicaid office, it’s optional under the statute—— 

Mr. GOSAR. So how—— 
Ms. INGRAM. —however, in total, to date, we’ve processed several 

hundred thousand requests. 
Mr. GOSAR. Okay. From all over the country? 
Ms. INGRAM. From all over the country. 
Mr. GOSAR. Okay. Now, at a hearing before this committee in 

July, Alan Duncan, the assistant inspector general for the audit at 
the Treasury inspector for the tax administration said that TIGTA 
was concerned with lack of adequate testing that could result in 
significant delays, errors in accepting and processing ACA applica-
tions for healthcare insurance. Despite having 3 and a half years 
to prepare for these exchanges, the Web—for the Web site launch, 
was there adequate time to test the system, to your knowledge? 

Ms. INGRAM. We’re very comfortable that any of the testing that 
was about our systems or our interface with the data hub, we 
would not have turned on if we were not comfortable. 

Mr. GOSAR. I’m going to end with one real quick question. I’m— 
I’m amazed at your detail. You’re a very detail oriented person, are 
you not? 

Ms. INGRAM. It depends on the topic, sir. 
Mr. GOSAR. Well, I’m a dentist, so I’m very detail oriented. I’m 

amazed at your detail and your familiarity with what I saw on 
these email tracks. I suspect with your dialogue back and forth, 
you do know who—what’s below 6103, do you not? 

Ms. INGRAM. I see hundreds of emails a day for most of my ca-
reer. I cannot remember what is in a particular one. 

Mr. GOSAR. And—but your recollection in regards to the discus-
sion back into this committee was very astute to specifics within 
that documentation of email. You know who’s below 6103, do you 
not? 

Ms. INGRAM. I do not know who’s below those blocks. 
Mr. GOSAR. Okay. 
Thank you very much. Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. JORDAN. The gentleman from Nevada is recognized. 
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Mr. HORSFORD. Thank you, Ms. Ingram, for appearing before our 
committee today. I understand that the IRS had a number of im-
portant steps that it needed to take in preparation for the October 
1st deadline that made the healthcare.gov Web site operational. In 
addition to getting the technology ready so that the IRS could 
share the data required to determine eligibility for premium tax 
credits, the IRS also had to ensure that the exchange of informa-
tion would protect the privacy of taxpayer information. 

So I want to ask, you are one of four senior executives at the IRS 
who run different parts of the implementation of the Affordable 
Care Act, and you’re one of them, correct? 

Ms. INGRAM. Yes. I’m one of four principal ones, but there are 
people all over the IRS. 

Mr. HORSFORD. And out of the four executives, one of those ex-
ecutives is responsible for getting the technology operational and 
another is responsible for ensuring that the taxpayer information 
remains protected. Is that correct? 

Ms. INGRAM. Yes. 
Mr. HORSFORD. So Ranking Member Cummings asked the chair-

man to invite your counterparts at the IRS to attend this hearing 
today to testify as to their responsibilities, but the chairman de-
clined that request. He also apparently directed them not to attend 
the hearing or even sit behind you in case questions came up. 
Nonetheless, I have questions, and I’m just going to forge ahead 
and hope that you can answer some of them. 

First, the ACA requires the IRS, HHS and other Federal agen-
cies to share taxpayer information. Can you explain why that data 
sharing is necessary? 

Ms. INGRAM. My understanding, but I—my understanding is that 
the reason that the IRS was put into that process of the enrollment 
process was to provide a data foundation for most recently filed tax 
returns to start the conversation at the—at the marketplace about 
what the best prediction of the following year’s income would be, 
but the statute also contemplates that marketplaces would have— 
might have multiple sources of income data and also take into ac-
count what the individual says. All of—all we have—are required 
to do is when asked, provide the limited data points. 

Mr. HORSFORD. So given the different agencies involved, what 
measures has the IRS implemented to ensure that taxpayer infor-
mation is protected? 

Ms. INGRAM. Well, I’m going to stay very high level, and if there 
are more detailed questions, I will have to take them back and 
would be glad to provide the committee with more detail. 

In general, the IRS has a safeguarding program that has been 
around for decades and does—does and oversees agreements hav-
ing nothing to do with ACA with over 300 or something State and 
Federal entities, and that program was brought as it—as normal 
to a new data sharing mandate in the statute. And in addition, I 
understand the safeguards people were involved in conversations 
with HHS and the states very early on to ensure that what they 
needed to see before they certified would be in place, a lot of edu-
cational stuff, helping them build stuff into the design of their sys-
tems, onsite visits, whatever, but for—there’s a whole lot of stuff, 
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and further detail, I would prefer to take the question back to get 
a fuller response or something. 

Mr. HORSFORD. On one of my other committees, the Cyber Secu-
rity Subcommittee of Homeland Security, we’ve learned that the 
data hub will not actually store information but, instead, will es-
sentially be a pass-through that routes information to authorized 
users. Is that correct? 

Ms. INGRAM. That’s right. Think of it as an envelope being car-
ried by a mailman. 

Mr. HORSFORD. So will the applicant or the person on the other 
end of the computer screen be able to see the taxpayer’s informa-
tion, or do they just get a ruling on eligibility of income? 

Ms. INGRAM. The agreement that we insisted on for anybody re-
ceiving this data was that the tax data would not be displayed. Ex-
actly—and we have looked at how the Web sites at the recipient 
level are being built in order to assure ourselves of that. I can’t an-
swer the question of whether—there’s a variety of how the bottom 
line determination is communicated on the screen. 

Mr. HORSFORD. Are there—— 
Ms. INGRAM. It’s—— 
Mr. HORSFORD. —criminal penalties for the misuse or wrongful 

disclosure of personal tax information in regards to the ACA? 
Ms. INGRAM. My understanding is that the tax safeguards, in-

cluding sanctions, travel with the data, so whoever receives that 
data is subject to the same provisions. 

Mr. HORSFORD. So there are civil and criminal—— 
Ms. INGRAM. Yes. 
Mr. HORSFORD. —penalties for—— 
Ms. INGRAM. Yes. 
Mr. HORSFORD. —misusing. 
So, Mr. Chairman, I’ll conclude by just saying that I hope that 

members on the other side will avoid reckless and, in my opinion, 
irresponsible assertions that personal information will be com-
promised under the Affordable Care Act. Just as current tax law 
requires, individual and corporations share this information with 
the IRS every day, and there are professionals at the IRS who han-
dle this information with the care and caution that they should 
each and every day, and if they fail to do so, there are criminal and 
civil penalties that they can be held against them for any breach 
of that information. 

Chairman ISSA. Would the gentleman yield? 
Mr. HORSFORD. No. I’d like to conclude my comment. And so the 

point I’d like to make is that it’s irresponsible and reckless to 
somehow suggest that this personal information is going to be com-
promised. You all file your tax returns every year. It’s information 
that these professionals handle with care. And we need to not raise 
these alarmist concerns when the data doesn’t support the asser-
tion. 

I yield back my time. 
Mr. JORDAN. Yeah. I would just say this. We don’t know that it 

will be compromised. What we do know is that someone at the IRS 
thought it already was. 

And I yield to the gentleman from North Carolina. 
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Mr. MCHENRY. I thank the gentleman for making that important 
point. I appreciate my colleague going very far out on the line to 
pledge to the American people that their personal data will not be 
breached, and I hope the gentleman’s right. I hope the gentleman’s 
right, but I fear that it is not going to be right. 

The question with data security is a very major one for—not just 
for government, but private corporations in America and around 
the globe. The question of data security is a complex one, obviously, 
and it’s oftentimes not a question of if you’ll have a data breach, 
but when, and the depth and the breadth of that data breach. 

Chairman ISSA. Would the gentleman yield for just a question? 
Mr. MCHENRY. Sure. 
Chairman ISSA. I thank the gentleman. 
You know, the other gentleman wouldn’t—wouldn’t yield, but, 

you know, I couldn’t help but remember the National Organization 
for Marriage that saw their donors list released by the IRS, and 
the answer was it was inadvertent. And my understanding is no 
civil or criminal penalties occurred; nobody was punished for inad-
vertently releasing and then those contributors being contacted and 
harassed. I thank the gentleman for yielding. 

Mr. MCHENRY. Thanks. 
You know, recent media reports reveal that the health insurance 

exchanges, I mean, for—the words I get from my constituents 
about how long it takes to first log on to even get a Web site avail-
able so they can log on—I tried for 3 days to actually get to a log- 
on page and was unsuccessful. But once they get in, there—there’s 
a concern about whether or not the rates and the subsidy amount 
are correct. Do you have concerns about that? 

Ms. INGRAM. The IRS does not have a role in that part of the op-
eration, so I’d have to refer you to HHS. 

Mr. MCHENRY. So, in terms of the subsidy amounts, you would 
not have any role? 

Ms. INGRAM. Whether our responses when we are queried are 
correct, I have a high confidence level. I don’t know exactly what 
part of the—— 

Mr. MCHENRY. Does the IRS—— 
Ms. INGRAM. —is being referred to. 
Mr. MCHENRY. Does the IRS calculate the subsidy amount? 
Ms. INGRAM. We offer a service that the marketplaces are not re-

quired to use to, based on anonymous inputs, do a math calculation 
as a service. That’s all we do. 

Mr. MCHENRY. Oh, you don’t—you have—so, in my State in 
North Carolina, we’re under the Federal exchange because we 
chose to not create one at the State level. So the calculations that 
they’re receiving, my constituents are receiving, after they log on 
and give all their personal identifying information, the IRS has no 
role in that? 

Ms. INGRAM. I believe that the Federal exchange is using our 
computation service. 

Mr. MCHENRY. Oh, so you are involved—— 
Ms. INGRAM. But we are not—we get anonymous set of data 

points, provide the math and give it back. We’re not part of either 
the citizen selection of how much of that they want to take or how 
that interacts with the actual premiums on the policy they select. 
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So I just want to be clear about what part we do and what happens 
after we respond. 

Mr. MCHENRY. Okay. So—all right. So—so if you’re saying you’re 
not involved, it sounds like you are somewhat involved in this. 

Ms. INGRAM. I don’t under—I don’t—I’m not familiar with what 
part of what you are discussing is not working, so I can’t speak to 
whether our part—— 

Mr. MCHENRY. Okay. 
Well, then—then let me just give you a few stories—— 
Ms. INGRAM. Okay. 
Mr. MCHENRY. —as a result, because I—I—— 
Ms. INGRAM. Okay. 
Mr. MCHENRY. I didn’t find that—your answer in any way satis-

fying, but there—here are the stories from my constituents. Mi-
chael from Conover waited for hours to first log on, and then it 
took him hours to set up an account on the Federal exchange and, 
then, unfortunately, with the repairs over the weekend, saw it de-
leted, so he had to start over again this week. 

Mike from Hickory saw his premiums rise from $388 to $650. 
Phil from Forest City saw an increase, even though the policy 

was unchanged, saw an increase of 42 percent; Phil from Forest 
City. And he’s determined that the policy may actually be worse 
than it was previously. 

Erica and her three kids saw their premiums rise from $481 to 
$847. 

Matthew from Ashville saw his premiums rise 285 percent. 
Curtis from Shelby saw his premiums double from—essentially 

double from $549 to $1,077. 
So, when people talk about Obamacare and all the rhetoric here 

in Washington and what we see out of the IRS and implementation 
here, I’m more concerned about the families that are impacted in 
my district. We don’t—we want people to have access to affordable 
health insurance, but these rates are simply not affordable, and the 
fact that the IRS is a huge implementing agency does not actually 
give my constituents any great deal of reassurance about the Fed-
eral role here. 

And so, with that, I yield back. 
Chairman ISSA. [Presiding.] I thank the gentleman. 
Recognize the gentleman from Illinois, Mr. Davis. 
Mr. DAVIS. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. 
Under the Affordable Care Act, the Federal Government—— 
Chairman ISSA. Would the gentleman turn his mic on, perhaps? 
Mr. DAVIS. I think I just turned it off rather than on. Thank you 

very much. 
And let me thank our witness for being here. 
Ms. Ingram, under the Affordable Care Act, the Federal Govern-

ment, State governments, insurers, employers and individuals are 
given shared responsibility to improve the availability, quality and 
affordability of health insurance coverage in the United States. 

Starting in 2015, the individual share of responsibility provision 
calls for each individual to have minimum essential health cov-
erage. Individuals will report on their tax returns whether or not 
they have health insurance in 2014. 
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Let me ask you this: Suppose I have employer-provided insur-
ance that I have enjoyed for over 5 years. I like my coverage. I 
have no desire to change my coverage. When I file my taxes, will 
it be easy as checking a box on the form to say that I have em-
ployer coverage and am therefore in compliance with the require-
ment? 

Ms. INGRAM. Like most Americans, you’ll be able to just check a 
box. 

Mr. DAVIS. So, many individuals in the United States have 
health coverage today that would count as minimum essential cov-
erage and will not need to do anything more than continue the cov-
erage that they have. For those who do not have coverage, who an-
ticipate discontinuing coverage or who want to explore more afford-
able options, the health insurance marketplace has opened this 
month for every State and the District of Columbia. Can you ex-
plain what qualifies as minimum coverage? 

Ms. INGRAM. If somebody does not have employer coverage or 
does not have coverage through a government program, like the 
Veteran’s Administration or Medicaid or Medicare and—I would 
suggest they do two things. I would suggest they check out the 
marketplace that they have access to, depending on where they 
live, what kind of marketplace that is, and see whether something 
there works. 

I think the other thing that is worth noting is that there are a 
series of exemptions from the individual shared responsibility re-
quirement, and before somebody worries about paying a penalty, 
they ought to—I would recommend they try to have insurance to 
hedge their personal economic liabilities and also to check out, if 
they cannot do that, make sure they understand the exemptions. 
And the information that’s on our Web and as part of our con-
tinuing education process reaching out to people through lots of 
channels, and in our work with HHS in their operations and mate-
rials, we want to make sure people understand those three pieces. 
If they have something now, they’re fine. If they want to access 
something, here’s some opportunities. If they meet one of the ex-
emptions, then they should consider—they should still consider 
having insurance, but they should understand that. And only the 
very small number of people, according to the CBO, who need to 
worry about the penalty, they’ll have what they need to meet their 
obligations on their return. 

Mr. DAVIS. And let me ask you. If an individual receives their in-
surance through their spouse’s employer, are they considered to 
have minimum coverage? 

Ms. INGRAM. Insurance is insurance no matter where you get it. 
Mr. DAVIS. Thank you very much. And—— 
Mr. CUMMINGS. Will the gentleman yield? 
Mr. DAVIS. Yes. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. The—let me ask you, when you—you talk a lot 

about education and how important it is in this first stage to do 
that. Can you just tell us what role you all play with regard to edu-
cating? 

Ms. INGRAM. Certainly. We’ve—we’ve approached the education 
path in a number of time periods. And certainly for 2013, a great 
deal of the cross-Federal agency education has had to do with the 
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opening of the marketplaces, but we have worked closely with our 
colleagues to make sure that any discussions about tax provisions 
and tax rules were correctly and accurately portrayed in their ma-
terials or their Web sites or their public presentations, and we 
have partnered with the Small Business Administration and HHS 
on a number of outreach events, including tax practitioner forms, 
Chamber of—local Chamber of Commerce events, and Webinars 
since we’ve been leveraging the Webinar format. 

As we go into 2014 and certainly as we approach the 2015 filing 
season, a great deal of the education is specifically about tax provi-
sions and specifically about the tax returns that would be filed in 
early 2015, and so the focus shifts over time about which pieces of 
topic and which avenues of outreach and the volume of educational 
efforts. So it evolves over time. I just want to be clear, there are 
phases. 

Chairman ISSA. Okay. The gentleman’s time has expired. 
We now go to the gentleman from Tennessee, Mr. DesJarlais. 
Mr. DESJARLAIS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Thank you, Ms. Ingram, for being here today. I want to ask you 

some questions about to the healthcare exchanges, but first if you 
would indulge me for a second. We’ve had a lot of our colleagues 
on the other side of the aisle praising your service and defending 
your integrity at the IRS, and I—I’m not sure I have any reason 
to doubt that. I don’t know you very well. 

Do you believe, just as an American—I know you’ve worked for 
the IRS for 31 years, you’re probably proud of the organization that 
you work for and serve. Do you believe that Tea Party groups were 
indeed targeted? 

Ms. INGRAM. From what I understand at this point, and I have 
not followed all of the discussions or certainly not the press and so 
forth, I am—I do not ever think it is okay to use people’s political 
viewpoints in the managing of inventory in the tax agency. I am 
not familiar enough with exactly what had happened, but when I 
sat in on a meeting in the spring of 2012 and when I skimmed the 
TIGTA report this past spring, I was upset at the way activities 
were described. 

Mr. DESJARLAIS. So you think it’s appropriate, then, that this 
committee continue to pursue investigation and find out who is re-
sponsible, if this indeed happened? 

Ms. INGRAM. I would never voice an opinion about the preroga-
tives of this committee, sir. 

Mr. DESJARLAIS. Okay. Well, that’s probably fair. But nonethe-
less, it seems like we’re under fire today for wanting to get answers 
for people for just what you said; it’s never right for the IRS to tar-
get anyone for political reasons. President spoke out against it. 
Now it’s being called a phony scandal. Do you think it’s a phony 
scandal, or do you think it warrants further investigation, as an 
American? 

Ms. INGRAM. Sir, I don’t personally engage in the public debates 
either about investigations or—— 

Mr. DESJARLAIS. Do you have an opinion? 
Ms. INGRAM. Over my career, when there have been any ques-

tions or allegations about something not going right and particu-
larly if there is a whiff of any kind of personal bias, which I have 
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not heard, but any concerns about allegations about the appro-
priate handling of cases, I have always thought that TIGTA was 
the appropriate place for me to turn to ask them to look into 
things, and I understand that they are part of this process. 

Mr. DESJARLAIS. Okay. Well, let’s talk about some of the prob-
lems that we’re encountering with the roll-out of the healthcare ex-
changes. 

I’d like to ask unanimous consent to enter a Wall Street Journal 
article, dated September 19th, 2013, into the record, ‘‘Pricing 
Glitches Affect Rollout of Online Health Exchanges.’’ 

Chairman ISSA. Without objection, so ordered. 
Mr. DESJARLAIS. This article references the fact that less than 2 

weeks before the launch of insurance marketplaces created by the 
Federal health overhaul, the government software can’t reliably de-
termine how much people need to pay for their coverage, according 
to health insurance executives and people familiar with the pro-
gram. Four people familiar with the development of the software 
that determines how much people would pay for subsidized cov-
erage on federally run exchanges said it is still miscalculating 
prices. Test calculators initially scheduled to begin months ago only 
started this week at some insurers, and there was a statement that 
there’s a blanket acknowledgement that rates are being calculated 
incorrectly. According to a senior health executive, who didn’t want 
to be named, said, Our tech operations—our tech and operations 
people are very concerned about the problems they are seeing and 
the potential of them to stick around. 

So, according to the GAO, the Federal Government spent $400 
million to develop the Federal exchange data hub. After 3 and a 
half years and $400 million, why did the Web site fail so dramati-
cally last week? 

Ms. INGRAM. The IRS isn’t part of any of those activities, sir. I’m 
sorry. 

Mr. DESJARLAIS. Okay. Are there any plans to provide relief from 
the individual mandate for individuals who are unable to access 
the Federal exchange and obtain minimal coverage or essential cov-
erage? 

Ms. INGRAM. I would posit that it’s a little early to even have 
that conversation. 

Mr. DESJARLAIS. Well, let me ask this. Do you think that you 
could have been better prepared to implement all of this if you had 
another year? 

Ms. INGRAM. The IRS? No. 
Mr. DESJARLAIS. Do you think everything’s as good as it’s going 

to get right now? 
Ms. INGRAM. I think the IRS—the responsibilities that were as-

signed to the IRS, we planned, we built, we turned it on, and it’s 
working. 

Mr. DESJARLAIS. What will you do to people who can’t pay their 
portion? If you subsidize a family, say an average family of four 
that gets $5,000 and they have to pay, let’s say, $5,000, what if 
they can’t pay that? What are you going to do to them punitively? 

Ms. INGRAM. What is—the only thing that is of interest to the 
IRS in administering the individual responsibility payment is 
which months that family has insurance in effect. We are—we’re 
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not directly involved in whether the individual is behind on their 
payments to the insurance company. What we get told is which 
months are their insurance in effect, and that’s the only question 
that’s relevant for us. 

Mr. DESJARLAIS. Does that determine the penalty that they pay 
or the extra taxes that they pay? 

Ms. INGRAM. That’s the underlying piece of data that goes into 
that calculation. 

Mr. DESJARLAIS. Okay. 
Chairman ISSA. I thank the gentleman. 
We now go to the gentlelady from New Mexico for 5 minutes. 
Ms. LUJAN GRISHAM. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
And thank you very, Ms.—Ms. Ingram. I’m going to focus on the 

Affordable Care Act components and some of the statements about 
implementation made by my colleagues. 

Today, every Federal employee that is furloughed or government 
program that is disrupted as a result the government shutdown is 
a casualty in my colleagues on the other side of the aisle’s effort 
or their war to kill the Affordable Care Act and prevent millions 
of Americans from signing up for affordable healthcare insurance. 
And today I’ve listened to the focus really on the HHS component 
of the Web design and whether or not people can get on. 

And I’m just going to go back to a couple other issues. One, while 
I wasn’t here in Congress, I’m clear that there had been several 
congressional mandates and significant, in the billions, appropria-
tions to both DOD and VA. And as part of those investments, 
they’re required to share information that would address the back-
log. They’re supposed to do electronic medical records. And they 
have not and, as far as I know, are really nowhere close to getting 
that resolved, but I’ve not seen this sort of effort to repeal or pull 
back any efforts to make sure that you’re assisting veterans in that 
regard. 

As part of the stimulus package in 2009, all public and private 
healthcare providers have to adopt electronic—electronic medical 
records if they’re going to participate in Medicare and Medicaid, 
and that is virtually every healthcare provider, and they have to 
do that by 2014. And, in fact, if hospitals don’t do that, as an exam-
ple, they will be penalized in 2015. 

And I can tell you that as recent—as a new Congress Member 
having to navigate my healthcare from my district in Albuquerque 
and here, I still had to go get a hard copy, if you will, of an x-ray 
to get it here, despite these mandates and the incentive payments 
made available to these healthcare providers to be able to share 
electronic medical information and to provide it to me. So, like the 
Forbes article, I can be in a third world country and access my 
bank records, but I still can’t get an electronic medical record or 
my personal medical records. 

The point being—one more, maybe. Medicare, the enrollment for 
Medicare Part D was a nightmare. I was running the Department 
on Aging in New Mexico, and I got hundreds of phone calls a week 
from seniors who were dismayed, who were upset, who couldn’t fig-
ure out which plan that they had to enroll in. They got limited en-
rollment phases. It was difficult to enroll. They got kicked off. They 
picked a plan; then that plan changed their formulary, so the drugs 
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that they needed were not on. Folks that were getting benefits from 
their States and their Medigap plans were dropped from those ben-
efits. It was really awful. 

And the big complaint still is the donut hole, which is now being 
addressed in the Affordable Care Act. Point being, we ought to re-
peal Medicare Part D. Enrollment is tough, and I expect that this 
committee and others will make sure that the IRS and HHS get 
their jobs done, do it well, and that we ask you what we can do 
to assist in the best possible implementation and to deal with all 
of the glitches that have been identified to date and make sure that 
the millions of people who have attempted to enroll can enroll. 

And so my last, with just—because I’ve made a statement that’s 
way too long trying to make sure that this anomaly that my col-
leagues identify with just the Affordable Care Act exists in almost 
every large reform that we have done, but I have seen no effort to 
pull back and repeal. 

Is it your understanding typically that most Americans are 
happy when they know they can get a tax credit of any kind? 

Ms. INGRAM. Yes. 
Ms. LUJAN GRISHAM. And when they’re applying for those tax 

credits, that they’re pretty effective at figuring them out and con-
tacting you or their accountants and getting whatever help, or 
going even to AARP to make sure that they get their access to that 
credit or that subsidy? 

Ms. INGRAM. We try to make sure that everybody knows what ob-
ligations and what benefits they may be eligible for. And we try to 
equip them and their advisors to make that process as easy as we 
can, just like the rest of the tax return, that we make a similar ef-
fort. 

Mr. DESJARLAIS. Will the gentlelady yield? 
Ms. LUJAN GRISHAM. I will. 
Mr. DESJARLAIS. Do the taxpayers ever see any of that subsidy, 

or does it go directly to the insurance companies? 
Ms. INGRAM. There are two ways the taxpayer can access the as-

sistance. If they need help meeting their premiums on a month-to- 
month basis as they go along, then they may find the advance pay-
ments convenient. Those payments go to the insurance company, 
and they are billed by the insurance company only for the balance. 
If for some reason somebody thinks from whatever source that they 
can make their payments themselves, there’s also an opportunity 
to—if they qualify when they file their return, to ask for the credit 
at that point. It’ll depend on someone’s personal economic decision 
which way they want to do it. 

Mr. DESJARLAIS. I thank the gentlelady for yielding. 
Ms. LUJAN GRISHAM. Absolutely. 
Mr. Chairman, with your—thank you—permission, I’ll just—and 

I’ll be brief. 
And so given that, and recognizing that the benefit will go to-

wards the premium, but now my premium’s reduced, and I ran the 
high-risk pool, so in the State, we were one of the only States, 
maybe the only State, that provides a low-income tax premium 
benefit to individuals with pre-existing conditions today who 
couldn’t otherwise afford insurance, my experience was they were 
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genuinely happy about paying less for their premium regardless of 
the effort to make that happen. 

Is that what you expect to occur by those Americans, and—and 
thousands of New Mexicans, who will have access to that benefit 
under the Affordable Care Act? 

Ms. INGRAM. We understand that one—that the principal pur-
pose of the credit is to make it possible for people to get insurance 
who couldn’t otherwise afford it. 

Ms. LUJAN GRISHAM. Thank you. 
I yield back. 
Chairman ISSA. I thank the gentlelady. 
We now go to the gentleman from South Carolina, Mr. Gowdy. 
Mr. GOWDY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Good afternoon, Ms. Ingram. 
What is the legal authority by which a President can sua sponte 

decide to enforce or not enforce certain provisions of a law? 
Ms. INGRAM. I’m not in the—in the group of people who analyze 

the legal underpinnings of that, but it is—I will say as an adminis-
trator, it is not uncommon when there are large, new, particularly 
information reporting related things. 

Mr. GOWDY. I’m actually asking for the legal basis. Can you site 
a case? 

Ms. INGRAM. I’m probably the wrong person. I understand—— 
Mr. GOWDY. Well, you’re an attorney. 
Ms. INGRAM. There has been—but I have not done the analysis 

in these cases. 
Mr. GOWDY. Well—— 
Ms. INGRAM. I haven’t—— 
Mr. GOWDY. Let’s simplify the analysis. Can a President unilat-

erally increase a fine that Congress set? 
Ms. INGRAM. I’m sorry. I’m confused by—— 
Mr. GOWDY. It’s not a—— 
Ms. INGRAM. —the question. 
Mr. GOWDY. It’s not a trick question. Can any chief executive 

unilaterally increase a fine or a statutory maximum? 
Ms. INGRAM. I don’t know of any example of that. 
Mr. GOWDY. So the answer would be no. 
Ms. INGRAM. I hesitate to respond for all of the agencies and all 

of the statutes on the books. 
Mr. GOWDY. Just, despite the fact that I’m a lawyer, too, I’m 

going to say, trust me. The answer to that question is no. You 
can’t. You can’t decide that we think the maximum for burglary 
should be life instead of 30 years, so we’re going to sentence some-
body to 40 years. You can’t do that. 

Ms. INGRAM. Right. I understand, sir. 
Mr. GOWDY. All right. And you would also agree a President can-

not unilaterally suspend a mandatory minimum. If the law says 
you have to spend 5 years in prison for a 924(c) violation, the Presi-
dent can’t just decide he doesn’t like that law and suspend it. Cor-
rect? 

Ms. INGRAM. Again, I—— 
Mr. GOWDY. Again, it’s not a trick question. It’s not even a legal 

question. It’s more of a civics question. 
Ms. INGRAM. I’m trying to get my head around the parameters. 
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Chairman ISSA. Mr. Gowdy—Mr. Gowdy, would you let a 
layperson intersect for a moment? 

Mr. GOWDY. If the gentleman would be gracious enough to toll 
my time. 

Chairman ISSA. I’ll do my best. 
Mr. GOWDY. Thank you. 
Chairman ISSA. As a layperson—— 
Ms. INGRAM. Yes. Thank you. 
Chairman ISSA. —in your 31 years at the IRS, have you ever 

looked at the letter of the law on which you are executing IRS re-
quirements and then seen an executive order that is inconsistent 
with that and gone with the executive order? In other words, do 
you ever consider, as a lawyer and as a 31-year professional, that 
the President can usurp IRS law or regulation through executive 
order? I didn’t say, fill in the gaps. I said usurp, go—contravene ex-
isting law. 

Ms. INGRAM. Would the chairman indulge me in taking that in 
two parts? 

Chairman ISSA. That would be the gentleman from South Caro-
lina’s decision. 

Mr. GOWDY. My time is being tolled. 
Chairman ISSA. Not anymore. I’m done. 
Mr. GOWDY. Well—— 
Ms. INGRAM. May—may I respond? 
Mr. GOWDY. You—you may. 
Ms. INGRAM. Thank you. The executive order President part, I 

don’t understand in the question, but let me put that aside. 
I will say it is not uncommon in my 31 years, particularly when 

a statute is new or particularly when the constituency is having 
logistical, operational problems meeting their obligation under a 
statute, that the IRS has given people either additional time, an 
additional year, or tried to tailor, on a temporary basis, what peo-
ple have to do with that statute. 

Mr. GOWDY. And my question is—— 
Ms. INGRAM. It’s not uncommon. 
Mr. GOWDY. —what is the legal basis for that? What is the legal 

basis—have you ever seen an instance when an executive unilater-
ally increased the marginal tax rate? 

Ms. INGRAM. No. In—increase? No. 
Mr. GOWDY. So you will agree that there are certain categories 

where the executive can’t change the law even if the executive may 
not agree with the law? 

Ms. INGRAM. It’s never a question of whether we agree with the 
law. The law—that’s not relevant to the decision. The question is, 
particularly in the information reporting area, that—— 

Mr. GOWDY. I’m not talking about information reporting. I’m 
talking about a statute passed by Congress. And I want the legal 
authority by which an executive can decide which portions of that 
law he or she wants to enforce and which provisions of that law 
that executive sua sponte decides not to enforce. 

Ms. INGRAM. If there is any variation from the bare letter of the 
statute, it is never a single person and it is—always includes legal 
analysis by someone, not me. 
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Mr. GOWDY. Well, the most recent legal analysis from the De-
partment of Justice is only if a—an executive believes that a law 
is unconstitutional, i.e., DOMA, can he or she refuse to enforce it. 

I want to read an exchange to you back when the President from 
time to time did get difficult questions from the media, so let’s go— 
we’re going to go back a while, but I want to read an exchange 
where he was asked this question: People question your legal and 
constitutional authority to delay the employer mandate. Did you 
consult with your lawyer? 

And this was the President’s response: If you heard me on stage 
today, what I said was I will seize any opportunity I can to work 
with Congress to strengthen the middle class, improve their pros-
pects, improve their security, but where Congress is unwilling to 
act, I will take whatever administrative steps I can in order to do 
right by the American people. 

I did not hear a legal authority for suspending the law. I heard 
a political justification. Did you hear a legal authority in his re-
sponse? 

Ms. INGRAM. I don’t know anything about his response, sir. 
Mr. GOWDY. Well, I just read it to you. 
Ms. INGRAM. Yes. 
Mr. GOWDY. Did you hear a legal justification for suspending cer-

tain provisions of the law? 
Ms. INGRAM. I only heard what you read. It speaks for itself. I 

can’t really interpret it. 
Mr. GOWDY. Can you cite me a legal justification for determining 

which portions of a law you want to summarily turn off and turn 
on? 

Ms. INGRAM. I—I’m not familiar with anything in the way that 
we administer the Tax Code where we would be changing things 
in the way that you previously mentioned, changing a tax rate, in-
creasing a tax amount, reducing a tax amount. 

The situations in which I’ve been involved, both in ACA and 
prior to ACA over the years, have had to do with taking into ac-
count requests from the community who need more time or more 
logistical help in meeting their obligations under—— 

Mr. GOWDY. So your testimony is there is no provision of the 
ACA, which was passed by Congress, that is not being imple-
mented precisely as it was passed by Congress? Is that your testi-
mony? 

Ms. INGRAM. As we understand it to be passed by Congress. 
Mr. GOWDY. What does that mean, ‘‘as we understand it’’? 
Ms. INGRAM. I—— 
Mr. GOWDY. Have—have you failed to meet any deadlines? Has 

any portion of the ACA as passed not been implemented on the 
timetable under which it was passed? 

Chairman ISSA. The gentleman’s time has expired. The 
gentlelady may answer. 

Ms. INGRAM. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
There are several provisions where at the request of the taxpayer 

community, we have taken into account their need to have a de-
layed phase-in of provisions passed by Congress. I would point you 
to the W–2 provisions, which were logistical, administer-ability re-
quests from the community, and the information filing require-
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ments for employers and insurers were based on extensive and per-
suasive requests from them that they needed more time to arrange 
their data and build their systems. The actual employer tax can’t 
be figured out without some of that reporting. 

Mr. GOWDY. Mr. Chairman, I would ask unanimous consent to 
ask just one more question, because something in her response 
prompted another question. 

Chairman ISSA. Without objection, so ordered. 
Mr. GOWDY. You said you had heard from the taxpayer commu-

nity. I’m not familiar with that entity in our—in our tripartite 
branch of government. How about Congress? My question is, what 
is the role of Congress when the executive decides he or she wants 
to sua sponte not enforce a provision of the law heretofore passed? 
Not the taxpayer community. What’s the role of Congress? 

Ms. INGRAM. Congress from time to time will enact statutes, with 
due respect to this body, that the community tells us are difficult 
to administer on that exact time frame. We try to listen to the com-
munity. We do not always do what they ask, but where it’s reason-
able to us and we think that it’s a temporary accommodation and 
does not do lasting damage to the actual enactment of Congress 
and the ongoing implementation and phase-in of the law, we will 
take their views into consideration. And we take very seriously our 
obligation to listen to that community as part of our job. 

Mr. GOWDY. Mr. Chairman, I’m out of time. 
Chairman ISSA. Yes. 
Mr. GOWDY. I just find it stunning, I literally found that answer 

stunning, and it’s hard to stun me, that—that a—that an executive 
branch entity would not enforce the law because some constituency 
group decided it was hard to implement it. That is not the way this 
works. Either Congress changes it, or you live with the con-
sequences of it. But can you imagine the community just deciding 
they didn’t like some other provision of our criminal code being en-
forced? Can you imagine that, Mr. Chairman? I just found that re-
sponse—— 

Chairman ISSA. Mr.—— 
Mr. GOWDY. —stunning—— 
Chairman ISSA. Mr. Gowdy—— 
Mr. GOWDY. —but I’m out of time. 
Chairman ISSA. Mr. Gowdy, you are out of time. 
And I guess one of the problems is that unions, large companies 

are a community, and the individual taxpayers apparently not get-
ting a delay when they can’t even get on the Web site are not a 
community. 

With that, we go to the gentlelady from Illinois, Ms. Duckworth. 
Ms. DUCKWORTH. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
I have great concerns about the data-sharing network that was 

created by the Department of Health and Human Services that just 
became operational a few days ago. 

Ms. Ingram, I understand that you don’t run this data sharing 
network and that its head does not report to you. Is that correct? 

Ms. INGRAM. That’s right. 
Ms. DUCKWORTH. Thank you. I wish we could have those folks 

here so we could actually ask them some questions about how that 
program is running. 
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With that, I yield my time to the ranking member. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. Thank you very much. 
You know, I was just listening to yourexchange with Mr. Gowdy, 

and I—you know, I guess I’m—I’m—I hear all the complaints about 
IRS. And I remember when I practiced law, one time I was audited 
for 5 years in a row. I mean, at one time. And it was—— 

Chairman ISSA. Will the gentleman suspend for a second? 
I ask unanimous consent that the remaining time be fully yielded 

to the gentleman. You’re now recognized for the remaining time. 
She can’t actually yield and then leave under the rules. 

Mr. CUMMINGS. All right. 
Chairman ISSA. So it’s now your—your time. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. 
And I represented a number of people, and they—when they got 

a notice of audit from the IRS or they got certain letters from the 
IRS, they base—would get very upset and very nervous. And I was 
listening to what you just said, and it sounds like you’re talking 
about a situation where sometimes it can be an IRS that may try 
to work with folk, the community, as you call them, to show some 
consideration. Is that—is that what you’re trying to say? I 
mean—— 

Ms. INGRAM. Yeah. I’m trying to distinguish between whether 
somebody likes or doesn’t like a law, which is irrelevant to our 
work, but whether there are logistical, practical problems with peo-
ple’s ability to do the mechanics of what they need to do, and I 
would just like to distinguish those two points. 

Mr. CUMMINGS. Yeah. You know, you—I guess sometimes you’re 
damned if you do and damned if you don’t. We’ve heard a lot about 
IRS, and certainly we’ve had some bad actors, and, you know—and 
I know that Members have applauded you for what you’ve done, 
but the word on the street is that you’re a superstar. I know. You 
don’t have to shake your head. I’m telling you what I heard. And 
that they get you to take on the tough assignments. Did you ask 
for this one? 

Ms. INGRAM. No, sir, I did not. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. The—and the reason why I mention this is be-

cause, you know, the more as I listen, and I say to myself, it 
sounds like the IRS has put it—I mean, the piece that you have, 
you’ve been able to put it together. And could you kind of tell us 
about how that came about? In other words, did you have timelines 
and were you constantly hitting those timelines and—you know, 
because there are some other problems in some other areas. Maybe 
some people need to listen to what—how the IRS did this. And I’m 
not trying to put you on the spot. I’m just—I mean, in my office, 
I constantly say two words: effectiveness and efficiency. I tell them 
we’ve got one life to live. It’s a limited amount of time on this 
Earth. We’ve got a limited amount of time where we are. We’ve got 
to get things done; we’ve got to get them done well. So I’m just— 
I’m just curious. Can you talk about the process of getting to where 
you’ve gotten to? 

Ms. INGRAM. I think a very basic part of our success to date and 
our confidence in our planning going forward is that we recognized 
that we needed talent from across the IRS, and we identified that 
talent. We set up a governing committee that’s chaired by the two 
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deputy commissioners and to which we all report in. And if some-
body wants more detail about that, there are a couple of GAO re-
ports from 2011, 2012, that go into that in more detail. 

But we tried to set up very early on the best governing mecha-
nism and project management mechanisms that we could to ensure 
that the various phased implementation—implementation of the 
various phases of the ACA, depending on effective dates and when 
it would hit tax administration, could be well organized, scheduled 
and simultaneously worked on in parallel paths. And I think per-
sonally that our effort to get that organized well has meant every-
thing about our collective ability as a team to be ready for October 
1st and for our confidence going forward towards the 2015 filing 
season. 

Mr. CUMMINGS. And just one other question. These furloughs, 
how does that affect—when you’re talking the subject matter of 
these hearings, where we are with regard to IRS and your relation-
ship to all this, how does this—these furloughs, if at all, affect the 
things that you’re doing, you know, the process—well, we forgot— 
I mean, your shop. I’m just—I’m just curious. 

Ms. INGRAM. Well, what we’ve paid attention to is the need to 
have our computer systems be operational on 10/1 and the min-
imum number of people needed to either operate them or, from my 
shop, business people in order to support that work, so there is a 
small number of people from my shop who have been on duty to 
support the operations of the IT portion. 

Mr. CUMMINGS. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. 
Chairman ISSA. Thank the gentleman. 
Because we can never tell how many members are going to come 

and go and we have up to 10 additional members who may ask be-
tween both sides, Ms. Ingram, would it be appropriate to take 
about a 5-minute break or—— 

Ms. INGRAM. I’m happy to. Yeah. 
Chairman ISSA. Why don’t we go ahead and do that just so that 

we not take you in a—because I can’t tell you how much longer be-
yond the people sitting here. So we’ll stand in recess for just a few 
minutes. 

[Recess.] 
Chairman ISSA. The committee will come back to order. 
We will now go to the gentleman from Texas, who has been pa-

tiently waiting. The gentleman, Mr. Farenthold, is recognized. 
Mr. FARENTHOLD. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
And, Ms. Ingram, I appreciate you being here. I know that is not 

the most comfortable seat to be in, in Washington, D.C. 
I want to take a step back and take a 30,000-foot view of what’s 

going on right now. Now, when people think about the IRS, I would 
imagine their primary responsibility is to collect taxes, the bulk of 
which is income tax. Is that correct? 

Ms. INGRAM. That’s the primary purpose, yes. 
Mr. FARENTHOLD. And the IRS relies on people who voluntarily 

comply with the income tax. Sure we have the audits here and 
there, but the vast majority of what the IRS does is based on the 
public complying with the laws, correct? 

Ms. INGRAM. Yes. That’s a cornerstone of our democracy. 
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Mr. FARENTHOLD. Now, with the current scandals that—that are 
going on, it is my feeling that the American public is losing con-
fidence in the government. You had the—some of the leaks within 
the IRS with respect to member lists of organizations. You had the 
whole targeting scandal. Do you think these mis-cues, and I’m—I’m 
trying to pick a benign word here, have a negative impact on how 
the Americans perceive the entire government and the IRS in par-
ticular? 

Ms. INGRAM. Without speaking to particular examples, I am 
deeply saddened, as a veteran of the civil service, at anything that 
damages the confidence of the American people and the tax admin-
istration of the—— 

Mr. FARENTHOLD. And would you agree it’s inappropriate for the 
IRS to share information with anybody for political purposes and— 
would you agree with that? 

Ms. INGRAM. I don’t think political purposes should ever be part 
of our work. 

Mr. FARENTHOLD. And, in fact, that was one of the articles of im-
peachment against President Nixon was—that eventually led to his 
resignation was a—was a charge that he was improperly using that 
information. 

Let me go to—so I think we’ve got a problem here that needs to 
be addressed in a big picture way. I also want to talk for a second 
about data security. As a former computer consultant, I know no 
matter how good a job you do at securing your own network, once 
you open up a hole for somebody else to get in and share data with 
them, you can no longer really have control over the ultimate secu-
rity there. 

So despite—assuming the IRS were perfect, in this age, I don’t 
think there’s such a thing as perfect in cyber security, but as you 
start sharing personally identifiable information, including poten-
tial medical information, with third parties, is there any—anything 
in place to where if somebody’s not being careful with that, you can 
cut them off? I mean, how do you deal with the security from your 
third party folks that you’re sharing data with? 

Ms. INGRAM. I think there are a couple of pieces to keep in mind 
about the situation. One is I think we’d be glad to provide a more 
detailed briefing later on the whole data security at the IRS piece, 
and I think that could be arranged. 

Mr. FARENTHOLD. And that’s something I would like to do. 
Ms. INGRAM. That’s—— 
Mr. FARENTHOLD. You do agree that as more people have access 

to the information, the more difficult security gets? 
Ms. INGRAM. Which is why in the arrangement of how we were 

going to share data in this instance, we insisted that the data not 
be displayed outside of the machine—— 

Mr. FARENTHOLD. Okay. 
Ms. INGRAM. —to individuals looking at a screen or the people 

helping them. 
Mr. FARENTHOLD. All right. And I want to get to something the 

ranking member said. He was talking about the government shut-
down, and you mentioned that you furloughed quite a few people 
in yours. And my understanding is 91 percent of the IRS has been 
furloughed. Does that sound right to you? 

VerDate Aug 31 2005 09:06 Jan 17, 2014 Jkt 000000 PO 00000 Frm 00076 Fmt 6633 Sfmt 6633 C:\DOCS\86195.TXT APRIL



73 

Ms. INGRAM. I’m not an expert on the details. It sounds roughly 
right. 

Mr. FARENTHOLD. And my understanding, again, is that the peo-
ple who take the checks and cash them for people who will be filing 
on the last minute, October 5th, are there, but the people who proc-
ess the refunds for the people who are owed them are not. Are you 
aware of that? 

Ms. INGRAM. I’m not an expert on the criteria for which people 
stay or not, but there is a life and property—— 

Mr. FARENTHOLD. All right. 
Ms. INGRAM. —aspect to that. 
Mr. FARENTHOLD. I appreciate it. 
And I promised Mr. Gowdy, I would give him my last minute, be-

cause he didn’t get everything, so I yield to Mr. Gowdy. And thank 
you very much. 

Mr. GOWDY. Thank the gentleman from Texas. 
Ms. Ingram, we’re told from time to time on this side of the aisle 

that the Affordable Care Act is the law of the land, it’s been af-
firmed by the Supreme Court, and that we ought to just get used 
to it. You may from time to time have seen some of my colleagues 
on the other side of the aisle sharing that sentiment with us. 

I want to read another quote to you. And this is not from you, 
so I’m not going to ask you when you said it, but the quote is im-
portant, I think. ‘‘Everyone is up in arms, because they don’t like 
it. They can’t do anything about it. They want the IRS to fix the 
problem, so everybody is screaming at us right now, fix it before 
the election.’’ 

Do you know who said that? 
Ms. INGRAM. I have no idea, sir. 
Mr. GOWDY. Lois Lerner said that before she invoked her Fifth 

Amendment privilege, and she said it in connection with Citizens 
United. The President’s been very vocal himself in calling for the 
overturning of Citizens United. So, in conclusion, I guess some of 
our frustration is this: If the President doesn’t like Citizens United, 
Lois Lerner doesn’t like Citizens United, my colleagues on the 
other side of the aisle doesn’t like Citizens United, so they can ad-
vocate for its repeal and its legislative remedy and not following it, 
and they’re not called arsonists or terrorists or anything else, but 
those of us who may think the Affordable Care Act is costing peo-
ple jobs or may be offended that the HHS would mandate people 
violate their religious views, somehow the analysis is different 
when we ask that it all be changed or repealed or not enforced. So 
the duplicity of that, of Citizens United versus the Affordable Care 
Act, I think is what’s fueling some of the frustration. 

With that, I would yield back. 
Chairman ISSA. And I thank the gentleman. 
We now have the gentlelady from Illinois, Ms. Kelly. 
Ms. KELLY. Thank you, Mr. Chair—— 
Chairman ISSA. I think your mike, please. 
Ms. KELLY. Thank you, Mr. Chair. 
And thank you, Ms. Ingram, for being here today. 
I would like to ask you about the allegations that have been 

lodged against you. Republican Congressman Tom Price accused 
you of systematic harassment of conservative and religious organi-
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zations. He also argued that your employment at the IRS should 
be suspended. 

I would like to give you an opportunity to respond to those com-
ments directly, because Congressmen and women can say a lot of 
things to the press and smear your name, and never give you a 
chance to respond. 

Did you engage in systematic harassment of conservative and re-
ligious organizations? 

Ms. INGRAM. No, ma’am. 
Ms. KELLY. Throughout your 31-plus-year career at the IRS, 

have you ever treated a taxpayer differently based on your own po-
litical or personal beliefs? 

Ms. INGRAM. Absolutely not. 
Ms. KELLY. And I want to again talk about the timeline. I know 

we’ve discussed your move from the commissioner of Tax Exempt 
and Government Entities to your new position at the ACA in De-
cember 2010. Is that correct? 

Ms. INGRAM. I’m sorry. I was distracted by the sign. If you could 
ask me again. 

Ms. KELLY. That you moved from the commissioner of Tax Ex-
empt Government Entities to your new ACA position in December 
2010. Is that correct? 

Ms. INGRAM. Yes, ma’am. 
Ms. KELLY. And during your transcribed interview with com-

mittee staff, you said that during your tenure as commissioner, Ms. 
Lerner never told you about the allegations related to the Tea 
Party cases. 

Ms. INGRAM. I have no memory of hearing about them while I 
was there. 

Ms. KELLY. And you became aware of the general allegations in 
2012 really from press releases. Is that correct? 

Ms. INGRAM. I heard some things in the press, which is—you 
know, I heard that. And then, in the spring, my boss asked me to 
sit in on a couple of meetings he had called. 

Ms. KELLY. So that’s Deputy IRS Commissioner Steven Miller? 
Ms. INGRAM. Mr. Miller, yes. 
Ms. KELLY. Right. Asked you to attend a meeting about the alle-

gations in 2012? 
Ms. INGRAM. Yes. In the spring. 
Ms. KELLY. And that’s when he decided to send the team to Cin-

cinnati to conduct an internal review of what happened. Is that 
right? 

Ms. INGRAM. Yes. That was what I was observing going on when 
I sat in on the meeting. 

Ms. KELLY. And were you on that team? 
Ms. INGRAM. No, ma’am. 
Ms. KELLY. Did you conduct any internal review? 
Ms. INGRAM. No. I had no role in between the few meetings I at-

tended other than to help persuade Ms. Marks to participate in the 
team. 

Ms. KELLY. Okay. But when the review was completed, you were 
informed by the internal review team that some applications for 
tax-exempt status had been screened using inappropriate criteria 
and experienced delays? 
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Ms. INGRAM. Mr. Miller asked me to sit in on a meeting where 
they reported back, and I heard at that time that there were seri-
ous concerns based on their on-the-ground review about the delays 
in cases, the handling of cases, the filter criteria for organizing in-
ventory. 

Ms. KELLY. Were you involved in any way in the action plan to 
address the—these problems? Were you involved in any way? 

Ms. INGRAM. I sat in on a couple of meetings that Mr. Miller 
asked me to join that—at which the team presented their proposal 
of what they would recommend happen next in terms of analyzing 
and moving cases, educating staff and so forth. So I sat in on some 
of those meetings, and that was kind of my role. 

Ms. KELLY. Okay. But you weren’t a part of developing or over-
seeing or implementing—— 

Ms. INGRAM. No. I did—I never developed nor supervised the exe-
cution. 

Ms. KELLY. And why do you think you weren’t a part of it? 
Ms. INGRAM. Because I had a more than full-time job. I know 

many people in this room work long hours, but 60 or 70 hours 
seems like a full-time job to me, and that job was ACA. And I was 
not having any of my ACA duties taken off me. So when I could 
sit in when I was requested, I tried to cooperate, but it was only 
a few times, and I didn’t make a lot of the times I was invited. 

Ms. KELLY. Okay. And did you play any role in Lois Lerner’s de-
cision to reveal the IG’s findings at the ABA meeting? 

Ms. INGRAM. None. 
Ms. KELLY. Okay. So let me just see if I have this right. You 

were not responsible for conducting the internal review. You were 
not charged with implementing the corrective measures. And you 
had no interaction with Lois Lerner about her decision to discuss 
the allegations at the ABA meeting. 

Ms. INGRAM. Correct. 
Ms. KELLY. Thank you very much. 
I yield back. 
Chairman ISSA. Thank the gentlelady. 
We now go to the gentleman from North Carolina, Mr. Meadows. 
Could you yield me just 30 seconds? 
Mr. MEADOWS. I’ll—I’ll be glad to, Mr. Chairman. 
Chairman ISSA. I just want to shake sure I follow up on Ms. 

Kelly. Let’s understand this, for the first 10 months of the tar-
geting of conservative groups, you were there, and it was your job 
between February and December of 2012. And then until May of 
2013, you held the title, meaning that you had a responsibility 
even if you were doing another full-time job. So, for 10 months, you 
were Lois Lerner’s boss and in residence; for the next 2 years, you 
were Lois Lerner’s boss, but not in residence, but still, ultimately, 
if she—she or her people were doing something wrong, it was still 
something that you should have either relinquished the title or 
taken some action. And in May of 2012, when you—when you knew 
that, having regularly come up here, you never informed Congress 
of the targeting even after you described it. 

I just want to make sure that Ms. Kelly’s statement that you 
were somehow not part of it be understood that for 10 months, 
you—you owned it as the boss; for the next 2 years, you owned it 
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by title and did not relinquish the title; and for a period of time 
after you discovered the scandal, you did not reveal it. And that— 
that just—I find that concerning. 

Mr. CUMMINGS. Mr. Chairman, ask unanimous consent that the 
gentleman be given an additional 3 minutes and she be allowed to 
answer the allegations that you just made against her. 

Chairman ISSA. These are not allegations. These are facts. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. Well, why won’t you let her answer? 
Chairman ISSA. These are the dates. 
Mr. MEADOWS. I—I object. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. You object to a lady defending herself? 
Chairman ISSA. The gentleman—— 
Mr. CUMMINGS. I mean, you guys are sitting here—— 
Chairman ISSA. The gentleman—— 
Mr. CUMMINGS. —making allegations that the lady—— 
Chairman ISSA. The gentleman asked for a—— 
Mr. CUMMINGS. —a 31-year employee. You’re making—— 
Chairman ISSA. The gentleman will suspend. 
Mr. CUMMINGS. Let her answer it. That’s not right. 
Chairman ISSA. The gentleman will suspend. The gentleman—— 
Mr. CUMMINGS. I’ll suspend. 
Chairman ISSA. You asked for unanimous consent because of a 

statement that there had been allegations. I stated a chronology of 
facts. The chronology of facts are for 10 months, she was on the job 
during the period of this scandal. Additionally, for the next several 
years, she had the title but was not in residence, and she, by her 
own testimony, testified that she became aware of it; however, did 
not inform the Congress or take measures to make it public, and 
it became public through other means. That—none of that is in 
controversy nor is it an allegation. 

Mr. CUMMINGS. But she’s sitting here and she’s shaking her 
head, and I just want to her to have an opportunity to say what-
ever she was thinking. I—maybe she doesn’t have anything to say, 
but the whole time she’s shaking her head like this, and I’m just 
trying to—I’m just trying to be fair to the witness. That’s all I’m 
asking. I want the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the 
truth, so help me God. 

Chairman ISSA. I’m sure—I’m sure you want the truth if, in fact, 
it vindicates somebody who for 10 months—— 

Mr. CUMMINGS. This is not vindicating. It’s about allowing some-
one—when you make allegations like that, when you make allega-
tions, a person should have an opportunity to defend themselves. 
That’s why I asked unanimous consent that she—that he be given 
more time and that she simply have an opportunity to respond. 
Now, if she does not want to respond, fine. 

Chairman ISSA. I thank—— 
Mr. MEADOWS. If the rank—— 
Chairman ISSA. —the gentleman. 
Mr. MEADOWS. If the rank—— 
Chairman ISSA. Would the gentleman please suspend. Reset it to 

5 minutes. 
If the gentlelady would like to respond as to the chronology, par-

ticularly as to the first 10 months, in which you were on the job 
while conservative groups were being targeted, that’s fine. I’d be 
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happy to have it. I was responding to Ms. Kelly’s essential state-
ment that, well, you didn’t, you didn’t, you didn’t, when in fact the 
timeline is different. It’s not the subject of today’s hearing, but if 
you have some further input, we’d certainly be glad to hear it. 

Ms. INGRAM. Well, with your indulgence, Mr. Chairman, I just 
would like to put a few points on the record, one of which is during 
the 10 months that I was—more than 10 months. During the 2010 
year, before I went to ACA, at TEGE, I had five discrete areas that 
I was responsible for and a lot of very big things going on, includ-
ing EEO, that had nothing to do with the determination letter pro-
gram as it relates to 501(c)(4)’s. 

I have no recollection of hearing about the incidents that are con-
tained in the TIGTA report. We were very busy with some issues 
that affected tens of thousands of exempt organizations, such as 
the statutory requirement that after 3 years of non-filing, organiza-
tions become non-qualified. That was taking a lot of time. We were 
working on the implementation of the charitable hospital rules that 
the ACA imposed on the charitable hospital sector. That was a 
great deal of work. There were a lot of other things going on, and 
I just want to put that in context, for 2010. 

When I was assigned to go to the ACA, in the same announce-
ment, the commissioner announced an acting commissioner in 
charge in my absence, and it was made quite clear to me that my 
responsibilities laid at the ACA project. And since that was a more 
than full-time job and there were people in charge of operating the 
TEGE division, that is where I was told to concentrate, and I did. 

From time to time, where, because of my previous experience, 
such as in Indian tribal governments, I could be helpful by very 
briefly helping out with a particular task, I was asked to do that. 
I—it was always on top of my ACA duties. So if you talk about 60 
or 70 hours when I had to do that, it was on top of that. 

In the spring of 2012, the few meetings I was asked to sit in on, 
I saw in those meetings people, including my own boss, who were 
focused on the issues that they were learning about, upset about 
what they were hearing, wanting to get to the bottom of it, wanting 
to make sure they understood what was going on, and I assured 
myself that TIGTA had become involved. And knowing that that 
team was in charge of it and driving it and having very clear in-
structions that my job was ACA, and knowing that TIGTA was in 
the mix, who I trust to get to the bottom of these kinds of questions 
or allegations of this nature, I continued to work on ACA. 

So although I understand that the fact that my title on paper 
was not changed for some time and despite the fact that I repeat-
edly offered to my bosses, you know, put me wherever you need me 
to be to do the work I come in every day to do as an impartial civil 
servant, the fact that the title did not change, I understand some-
times confuses people, but I would like people to understand the 
nature of what my responsibilities were and my knowledge were at 
those various periods. 

Chairman ISSA. Well, I appreciate that. 
Ms. INGRAM. Thank you for the opportunity. 
Chairman ISSA. And I appreciate that. And hopefully, you’ll ap-

preciate that what you said, and I take it as completely accurate, 
100 percent, is not inconsistent with the three statements I made, 
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that you were in charge for the first 10 months, in which this scan-
dal was going on without your knowledge; that you had the title 
for the next 2 years; that you became aware of it, and, by your own 
statement, you felt that TIGTA was taking care of it, so you felt 
no responsibility to inform Congress or in any other way go public 
with it. I’m not faulting you. I’m saying you didn’t know it was 
going on while this bad service was going on for the beginning of 
it. You maintained the title. That’s not a disparagement of you. 
The fact that you said maybe somebody else should get the title, 
in fact probably is part of the challenge is that an acting should 
have been a confirmed, if you will, individual so that you would get 
past the question of—of somebody handling this. And then, of 
course, lastly, while many people at the IRS knew about this well 
before the election, as it was being asserted, it was kept private. 

Not blaming you, but as Ms. Kelly was going through her—her 
series, I saw these three timelines that I thought I could accurately 
state, and I believe I did. I think you’ve accurately confirmed, 
through no fault of yours, that these were accurate timelines, and 
that part of what is an investigation of this committee is, in fact, 
all the various elements that went into people at 501(c)(4)’s, dis-
proportionately conservative groups, from 2000—well, before 2010 
until today, many of them have not received an approval or a de-
nial. And that’s what I think some Members of Congress have 
called bad customer service. I wouldn’t call it bad customer service. 
I have other terms for it. But hopefully, we’ve—we’ve settled that. 

Mr. Meadows, I appreciate your patience. You’re recognized for 
the full 5 minutes. 

RPTS BLAZEJEWSKI 
DCMN SECKMAN 
[1:05 p.m.] 
Mr. MEADOWS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
I do want to give you a chance, because earlier in the testimony, 

Mr. Cartwright was asking a question; you responded, and I think 
you misspoke briefly because his question was, were you employed 
during the time in that particular position while targeting was 
going on? And your answer was no, and I believe that we know 
from the timeline that was just shared that, indeed, you were there 
for at least 8 to 10 months while the targeting was going on, ac-
cording to what has been reported with the TIGTA report. Is that 
correct? 

Ms. INGRAM. May I state that I have not studied the TIGTA re-
port? 

Mr. MEADOWS. I have. 
Ms. INGRAM. I respect that. 
Mr. MEADOWS. I have read it probably five times. 
Ms. INGRAM. I respect that, sir. So—— 
Mr. MEADOWS. Assuming that the TIGTA report is correct and 

the targeting began in February to April of 2010, were you indeed 
employed and in direct management capacity at that particular 
time? 

Ms. INGRAM. If that’s the time frame that you’re—— 
Mr. MEADOWS. That’s what they report, yeah. 
Ms. INGRAM. Okay. Then I was—— 
Mr. MEADOWS. Because in that report—— 
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Ms. INGRAM. —formally and functionally the commissioner until 
December. 

Mr. MEADOWS. Okay. Because in that report they gave a 
chart—— 

Ms. INGRAM. Okay. 
Mr. MEADOWS. —that was not just a chart in name only. It actu-

ally—that’s where I first learned of your name was from the 
TIGTA report. 

Ms. INGRAM. Okay. 
Mr. MEADOWS. And so, in doing that, they put in that there was 

systemic management failures or lack of management that would 
directly implicate you, and so today you are correcting your testi-
mony, you were there during that first part of 2010 while targeting 
was going on? 

Ms. INGRAM. If that’s the period you’re talking about, I was at 
TEG as commissioner, yes. 

Mr. MEADOWS. Okay. Were you upset that Lois Lerner prior to 
your meeting that you were brought back in with, with Mr. Miller, 
were you upset that she never told you about any of this targeting? 
Because she was right in the middle of the storm. You had a per-
sonal relationship, not just a professional relationship. Were you 
not upset that she didn’t share any of this? 

Ms. INGRAM. So once I was on ACA, I wouldn’t have been nec-
essarily a logical person for her to turn to. I wish I had been. 

Mr. MEADOWS. But it happened under your watch. So you 
wouldn’t be upset with her that she didn’t share it with you? 

Ms. INGRAM. If I may finish, sir. I wish I had known information 
during 2010 that I could have helped deal with that in a better 
way, but I don’t recall ever knowing about the kind of stuff that 
I understand the TIGTA report covers, and after I went to ACA I 
would not have been the right person. 

Mr. MEADOWS. So what did you know? You say the kind of stuff. 
So what did you know during that period of time? Those are care-
fully chosen words. 

Ms. INGRAM. No, sir, I’m sorry, they weren’t particularly carefully 
chosen. I apologize. I was aware that there was a lot of noise out 
in the public about the Citizens United case. I was aware that 
there were a lot of other critical EO projects that affected lots and 
lots of EO’s and some of which had mandatory implementation 
dates from the legislation, and I know that traditionally the kinds 
of cases in which questions would arise about political activity or 
campaign intervention had come up in the (c)(3) area and had come 
up in the exam stream and the process for selecting cases for exam 
based on letters that members of the public write to us all the time 
suggesting that we look at their opponents. 

Mr. MEADOWS. So let me ask you this: If you were called to tes-
tify back then, would you have given the same statement that you 
have today with regards to the implementation of ACA that every-
thing is good, it’s copacetic, everything is going along the way it 
should? Because obviously, I guess you were under that belief then. 
So could you be wrong today, as you were wrong in assuming that 
everything was going well under your previous management? 

Ms. INGRAM. The oversight of the division involves a different 
management process and set of reporting up and division of labor 
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than a project management office does. In a project management 
office—— 

Mr. MEADOWS. So you are definitely sure you are right today, 
and that’s because your role has changed? 

Ms. INGRAM. Because in a project management office, my role is 
very hands on because of the structure and nature of the project. 

Mr. MEADOWS. Okay. 
Ms. INGRAM. I have more personal knowledge. 
Mr. MEADOWS. All right. Well, let me ask you then, with 

Obamacare and the data hubs, I know a lot of that is HHS, are 
you involved in the nature of their testing from a security stand-
point on going back and forth? Is the IRS involved in that, or is 
it all on the HHS side of things? 

Ms. INGRAM. My understanding is that our testing with them is 
as to their connection, the handshake between their machine and 
our machine to make sure that the handshake works. We are not 
involved in the testing they do with others. 

Mr. MEADOWS. I am out of time. I yield back. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Chairman ISSA. I thank the gentleman. 
We now go to the gentleman from Massachusetts, Mr. Lynch. 
Mr. LYNCH. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
I want to thank the ranking member as well. I just have one 

matter that I want to just address. A number of speakers ago, one 
of the gentlemen from the other side suggested that it was com-
parable, what the Republicans were doing in attacking the Afford-
able Care Act, to the President’s opposition and Democratic opposi-
tion to the Citizens United decision. And it is true that the Presi-
dent and many Democrats, including myself, have called for the re-
peal or the overturning of the Citizens United decision. 

However, importantly I think, it is important to say that neither 
the President nor I have shut down the government in pursuit of 
our goals. And neither the government—neither the President nor 
Democrats in Congress have suggested that we default on the na-
tional debt in pursuit of our goals, and I think that is an important 
distinction that has to be made. 

Ms. Ingram, thank you very much for your willingness to come 
before this committee and help us with our work, and I appreciate 
your patience. I do have some questions regarding the role of the 
IRS’s privacy governmental liaison and disclosure office and your 
role in implementing the ACA. Ranking Member Cummings earlier 
requested that a representative from this office appear as a witness 
today. However, that has not happened. The chairman refused that 
request, and so I’ll direct these questions to you. 

According to the IRS organizational chart that I’m reading, the 
Office of Safeguards has the responsibility for monitoring nearly 
300 Federal and State agencies that currently are permitted to re-
ceive taxpayer data to ensure that they are complying with privacy 
laws. Under the Affordable Care Act, the IRS, HHS, State and Fed-
eral exchanges, and other Federal agencies will share taxpayer in-
formation in order to determine an individual’s eligibility for the 
premium tax credits. 

Ms. Ingram, is the sharing of Federal taxpayer information with 
State and Federal agencies a new task for the Office of Safeguards? 
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Ms. INGRAM. Well, for a more complete answer, we can provide 
that through that office, but we have decades of experience with 
the sharing of tax data under the long list of exceptions to 6103 
that Congress has from time to time added to that section. This is 
a new one, and we’ve taken the same kind of care, if not more, in 
making sure that the safeguards are in place and that our over-
sight is launched. 

Mr. LYNCH. Very good. So it sounds like this office has a long-
standing experience in overseeing the transmission of taxpayer 
data? 

Ms. INGRAM. Yes, sir. 
Mr. LYNCH. Okay. And what kind of policies and procedures 

must State and Federal agencies have in place in order to receive 
taxpayer information? Could you describe that? 

Ms. INGRAM. So I’m going to give you a high level answer be-
cause I am not an expert on the details of it. For example, the over-
sight board document, those pages were prepared by the Disclosure 
Office, but in general, there are very detailed—it’s a very detailed 
publication, pub 1075, that sits on our Web site. There’s an exten-
sive multi-page template that is the foundation for the safeguards 
procedures report, there are also a number of other kinds of data 
sharing agreements under various statutes. Those have all been 
implemented with the appropriate entity, whether that entity, as 
I said in my testimony, is HHS or whether the entity is the ulti-
mate recipient of the data. 

Mr. LYNCH. Okay. Now, these Federal agencies and State agen-
cies, do they have to get a, go through a certification process in 
order to receive this information? 

Ms. INGRAM. Yes. We do not release any data to anybody that we 
are not comfortable that they have sufficient safeguards in place 
following all the detailed procedures in those requirements. 

Mr. LYNCH. Okay, and were the State and Federal exchanges 
certified pursuant to this process prior to October 1st? 

Ms. INGRAM. Yes, the data hub, the federally facilitated ex-
change, the individual exchanges at the State level, and several of 
the Medicaid offices had also asked to be certified by October 1st. 

Mr. LYNCH. Okay. Well, my time is short. I do want to thank you 
for your service, and I appreciate you coming to this committee and 
helping us. Thank you. 

I yield back. 
Chairman ISSA. I thank the gentleman. 
We now go to the gentleman from Michigan for 5 minutes, Mr. 

Bentivolio. 
Mr. BENTIVOLIO. Mr. Chairman, thank you for holding this im-

portant hearing today. 
Since I came to Congress, I have heard from every sector of the 

economy, and they all tell me the same thing: Obamacare is mak-
ing it difficult to create more jobs and making it more costly to buy 
insurance. From the city manager of Plymouth, Michigan, who told 
my staff that he’s unsure if the city parks can be maintained be-
cause it might put the city over 50 employees to nearly every single 
business owner who comes into my office worried about the insur-
ance they currently provide their employees skyrocketing in price. 
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Obamacare is hurting a lot more people than appear to be helped 
by it. 

At this time, Mr. Chairman, I would like to enter for the record, 
if I may, today’s Washington Post, a particular article, ‘‘Many Fore-
saw Health Site Jam.’’ 

Chairman ISSA. Without objection, so ordered. 
Mr. BENTIVOLIO. Thank you. It says basically two allies of the 

administration, both of whom spoke on the condition of being anon-
ymous because of the controversy surrounding the rollout, said 
they approached White House officials this year to raise concerns 
that the Federal exchange was not ready to launch. In both cases, 
Obama officials assured them there was no cause for alarm. 

Outside the White House, people familiar with the setup efforts 
had been warning of chaos in the days and months leading up to 
October 1st. 

On September 18th, Louisiana’s Health and Hospitals Secretary 
Kathy, if I get this right, Kliebert, testified before Mr. Lankford’s 
subcommittee that the administration was giving confusing infor-
mation and making last minute changes that left the States scram-
bling. 

John Engates, chief technology officer at service provider 
RackSpace, said the government should have been able to prepare 
for the type of traffic that the site has experienced. I think that any 
modern Web company would be well prepared for a launch of this 
scale, said Engrates. We’re not talking about hundreds of millions 
of people and we’re not talking about complex transactions; this 
isn’t downloading full movies off of NetFlix. The question I have is, 
did they have enough time to prepare, and did the people doing the 
work know what they were doing, end of quote in the newspaper. 

My question today, your testimony today, Ms. Ingram, sounds 
like testimony this committee heard earlier this year from CMS 
Administrator Marilyn Tavenner and Director of the Center for 
Consumer Information and Insurance Oversight Gary Cohen that 
everything was fine and that the administration would be prepared 
for October 1st. We now know that the administration was not pre-
pared for October 1st. How can we know that the IRS is adequately 
prepared and that there was enough time for IRS to conduct the 
checks and make sure the safeguards were in place to protect all 
the sensitive information flowing through Obamacare data hub? 

Ms. INGRAM. So I think one piece of that question, if I understood 
it correctly, sir, could be answered by the fact that our systems 
have come up on time and operated as planned and are turning 
transactions around when they reach our door as the IRS. 

The other part of the question, having to do with ensuring that 
data safeguards are adequately in place and that we have reas-
sured ourselves as to that point, we would be glad to arrange a sep-
arate briefing to take you through more detail of what that team 
did, but that team started, as I understand it, very early on in im-
plementation working with States and the HHS about what would 
be required, how the design of their systems could take the safe-
guards into account, and again on limiting where that data can go 
and how it has to be walled off and protected. I am not an expert 
on all the pieces that they did, but we would be glad to provide a 
separate briefing if that would be of help. 
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Mr. BENTIVOLIO. Okay. Recently it was reported that the Min-
nesota exchange accidentally released the names, addresses, and 
Social Security numbers of over 2,400 brokers. Exchanges will store 
significant amount of sensitive data, including income and employ-
ment information. If it comes to IRS’s attention that an exchange 
improperly handles sensitive data, data like Minnesota has done, 
what steps will the IRS take to ensure sensitive taxpayer data is 
protected? 

Ms. INGRAM. Two pieces. One that because it’s restricted from 
view to so many people that might raise your concern, we think we 
have greatly reduced the likelihood, but if it comes to our attention, 
we actually can turn the switch off on the computer within minutes 
to cut off a feed to a particular recipient if we have reason to think 
that that recipient doesn’t merit the approvals they received pre-
viously. 

Mr. BENTIVOLIO. Thank you. 
I think my time has expired. I yield back. 
Chairman ISSA. I thank the gentleman. 
We now go to the gentlelady from the District of Columbia who 

I was with earlier working on the issues of reopening the District 
of Columbia, and I want to personally thank her for her efforts. 

Ms. NORTON. Well, Mr. Chairman, you have stolen my thanks, 
because I wanted to thank you for coming to the swamp site, tak-
ing a respite from the hearing, which you, of course, are obligated 
to chair and considering that the District of Columbia’s local budg-
et, which is fast—where we are fast running out of contingency 
funds, was important enough to leave a hearing that I know you 
have shaped, and I very much appreciate that you did. 

I want to—and of course, the chairman, as he spoke and had to 
leave, so I didn’t get a chance to thank him in the manner to which 
he deserves, was quick to tell me that the hearing is going on, and 
I realized I was AWOL. 

I did want to attend this hearing because the gentleman’s ques-
tion about being adequately prepared is—goes to my question. 

Ms. Ingram, you are a senior civil servant of considerable intel-
ligence and long experience. If anything, I have great fears that we 
will lose people like you as civil servants are going through the 
issues that now confront all of you. 

Now, here is a new function. I imagine that you were given this 
function because of that long record, because of your great ability. 
We have a major change in the Tax Code, in the tax laws of the 
United States. In your experience, have you ever seen a change as 
major as the change that you now confront, where you have every-
thing from your regulations to your IT infrastructure, new tax 
forms—that is not unusual—to come forward with? 

Ms. INGRAM. I think people debate whether this or the Tax Act 
of 1986 or the 1974 passage of the Employee Retirement Income 
Security Act, how those would all stack up. I will say that this is 
certainly one of the largest pieces of legislative implementation 
that the IRS has tackled in recent years, but we are confident that 
we have it organized and we’re on track. 

Ms. NORTON. Now, with respect to those other two large tax over-
hauls that you mentioned, were you given increase in funding be-
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yond your normal funding in order to handle the new workload in 
those two instances? 

Ms. INGRAM. I will confess I was not employed in 1974, so I don’t 
know what was done then, and in 1986, I was not in a position to 
know that, so I’m not—— 

Ms. NORTON. Well, let me know that. I have information that be-
tween 2010 and 2012, the budget of the IRS was cut by 3 percent. 
Now, that is one thing you would wonder, if you have a major new 
function on the order of the two you discussed, why cuts would be 
in order rather than some increase, particularly given concerns, I 
think quite legitimate concerns that have been raised here about 
privacy, not to mention difficulty. 

Let me ask you, then—well, first, let me tell you, I happen to be 
sitting in the financial services appropriation—no, in the Appro-
priations Committee when the financial services appropriation 
went through, and I was just stunned because the Appropriations 
Committee passed a 24 percent reduction in the IRS budget for 
2014. I need to know, particularly in light of concerns, privacy and 
other concerns that have been raised here, whether you will be able 
to meet your benchmarks, the internal ones that you say have thus 
far been met, and to afford the protections with a quarter of your 
budget being cut at a moment when you’re seeing—we’re seeing 
one of the most major increases in responsibility ever given the 
IRS? 

Ms. INGRAM. Well, I would like to leave the budget discussions 
to Acting Commissioner Werfel and his budget team, so I am a lit-
tle hesitant to opine on the elements that Congresswoman—— 

Ms. NORTON. But I am not asking about the elements. I am just 
asking whether or not here—I am speaking as a layman. Can an 
agency which is given a major new responsibility simply move for-
ward, absorb that major responsibility, change the infrastructure, 
issue new guidance, acquaint all the employees with new IT and 
regulations? Is that a fair, is that a fair or reasonable mandate to 
give an agency of the United States Government? 

Ms. INGRAM. Our agency has a great deal on its hands, including 
the legislative implementation that we are required to do. Tough 
budgets require tough choices, and folks beyond me will be involved 
in those, that choice making, depending on what budget is avail-
able at any given time. 

Ms. NORTON. You can be assured of this, Ms. Ingram, that your 
effectiveness in carrying out the ACA and your other responsibil-
ities under the Internal Revenue Code will be scrutinized by this 
committee and others, and if it does not—notwithstanding what-
ever the cut is, if you do not meet up to those, none of the blame 
will be laid here in the Congress of the United States, which in-
stead of increasing your budget to accommodate changes, it has 
mandated has reduced your budget, making it very difficult, as-
suming the budget gets out at all, for you to meet the very de-
mands we are making on the agency, and I thank you very much, 
Mr. Chairman. 

Chairman ISSA. I thank the gentlelady, and the gentlelady makes 
a very good point, which is that if you manage to live with 24 per-
cent less, we won’t call you. If it doesn’t work out, undoubtedly, 
somebody will be in front of many committees. 
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We now go to the gentleman from Florida, Mr. DeSantis. 
Mr. DESANTIS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Thanks for having this hearing, I’m sure this is going to be a 

subject that is going to have a recurring importance, given the 
huge expansion of the authority of the IRS under the so-called Af-
fordable Care Act. I heard some of the colleagues on the other side 
of the aisle almost just mocking the hearing, and it really struck 
me because it is almost as if somehow we are just not supposed to 
talk about Obamacare anymore, and I think as we have seen it be-
come implemented, the more and more apparent it has been that 
the promises that were made to justify the law’s passage are essen-
tially null and void. They were essentially false pretenses. 

I mean, for example, the President said the only change for peo-
ple with insurance is that you will pay less, and that estimate was 
$2,500 per family. That Americans are finding out is totally not 
going to be the case. 

If you like your plan, we were told you can keep your plan, but 
yet we see stories of spouses losing their coverage, employees losing 
their employer-based coverage, getting put on the exchanges. And 
then we said if you like your doctor, you get to keep your doctor, 
but if you lose your current plan, you end up on the exchanges, you 
may not have access to the same doctor that you did before, and 
so the issue is not going to go away, given that what was promised 
is not being delivered. 

I think it is also just interesting to compare the passage of the 
health care law with some other major pieces of legislation. I just 
looked this up, it is amazing. Social Security got 96 percent of 
Democrats in the House, 81 percent of Republicans. Eisenhower’s 
Interstate Highway System got 93 percent of Democrats in the 
House, 98 percent of Republicans. Civil Rights Act 1964, 61 percent 
of Democrats in the House and 80 percent of Republicans in the 
House. Reaganomics, 1981, 78 percent of Democrats in the Senate 
supported that and 98 percent of Republicans. And even welfare re-
form in 1996, broad bipartisan agreement. You didn’t have any bi-
partisan agreement here, and so I think that that also contributes 
to the controversy. 

I keep hearing that this is the law of the land as if it is somehow 
sacrosanct, that you can’t actually advance legislative changes to it, 
and that just—we have the authority to do that. Of course, we are 
able to suggest changes, delays, repeals, whatever is in our Article 
I authority, but the thing about this notion that somehow it is the 
law, full stop, you can’t even talk about it is, if this is such a sacred 
piece of legislation, then why isn’t the President implementing it 
as written? I mean, we have talked today about the delay in the 
employer mandate, which was supposed to start in January with 
no statutory basis for the delay. We know there was a delay on the 
cap on out-of-pocket costs, which were supposed to take effect this 
year. We know subsidies were granted to Members of Congress 
without having a statutory basis. Income verification requirements 
for exchange subsidies suspended. And then the use of subsidies on 
these Federal-based exchanges, and that is what I want to talk 
about now, just in terms of whether this implementation is being 
done with the law. 
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The law, under the Affordable Care Act, says, Section 1401, sub-
sidies can go to an individual, quote, enrolled in through an ex-
change established by the State, under Section 1311 of the Patient 
Protection and Affordable Care Act. And of course, we have seen 
most States have rejected creating exchanges, as the law con-
templated, and so then the IRS has had to determine, well, what 
about these Federal exchanges. And I don’t see any statutory basis 
for those subsidies to flow to Federal exchanges. 

Nevertheless, on May 23, 2012, the IRS finalized a regulation 
which actually allows subsidies to flow to Federal exchanges, even 
though there is no provision in the law to allow that. 

So my question for you is, just were you consulted when they 
were devising this rule about whether the IRS should issue guid-
ance allowing subsidies to flow to people who were enrolled in fed-
erally run exchanges instead of exchanges instituted under Section 
1311? 

Ms. INGRAM. I was in—I was present for a number of different 
topics that were covered by that reg. For that particular topic, I 
was not particularly involved. I was probably in a briefing or two 
where other people discussed it, but it wasn’t my decision. 

Mr. DESANTIS. So they weren’t asking you your thoughts about 
whether you thought that these subsidies should flow to people in 
federally run exchanges? 

Ms. INGRAM. I am about administrability, not about the legal pol-
icy calls. 

Mr. DESANTIS. Now, were you, prior to this regulation being in-
stituted, were you guys going forward with your implementation 
assuming that the subsidies would be available for the States that 
declined to create a State exchange? 

Ms. INGRAM. The proposed regs included the same position, and 
there were many comments that were filed, as is always the case 
after proposed regs. It is part of my job to keep track of what is 
in the proposed reg stage, ask about whether, what is coming in, 
in comments and the likelihood that something would change so 
that we don’t go too far in implementation steps if something is 
going to change and we would have to change our work. That is 
my role. 

Mr. DESANTIS. So the answer to that is, yes, you guys had as-
sumed that there would be Federal subsidies for federally run ex-
changes? 

Ms. INGRAM. I kept track of the likelihood that the position in 
the proposed reg would change so I could adjust, if necessary, the 
administrative work. 

Mr. DESANTIS. Thank you. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Yield back. 
Chairman ISSA. I thank the gentleman. I think the gentleman 

brings up a good point since CBO never scored that subsidy. 
At this point we have concluded our first round. I am going to 

ask the gentleman from Maryland, the ranking member, to close, 
and then I will close. 

Mr. CUMMINGS. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. 
Ms. Ingram, I want to take a moment to thank you again for 

being here. But I want to thank you for something else. I want to 
thank you for having a can-do attitude, and I really mean that. You 
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know, I am the son of two former sharecroppers with only a second 
grade education each. One of the things my father used to say to 
us as kids, and they educated all seven of their kids on a domestic’s 
salary and a laborer, and their attitude was always there is no 
such word as can’t. I thank you for, first of all, believing that you 
can get something done, get it done well, and then doing it, and 
I do believe that you are an exemplar of so many of our Federal 
employees. Many of them are sitting home right now, wherever 
they may be, possibly watching this or they will watch it later on, 
and they, too, have those can-do attitudes. 

And, you know, we hear a lot about the Affordable Care Act, and 
clearly, there are things that should be done to make it better. I 
think they tell me when Medicare started, they had a lot of prob-
lems and issues, but I think what you have shown is that the piece 
that was, you know, that you had to deal with, obviously good plan-
ning, targeted dates, I guess, some kind of timetable, making sure 
the tasks were done, and always saying I am going to reach that 
goal, I am going to get there. And so I thank you, I really do for— 
you know, I was—you shook your head a little earlier when I said, 
‘‘The word on the street was that you’re a superstar,’’ but that is 
what I have heard. You don’t have to shake your head again. 

But it is the people like you and the people that sit behind you 
that give so much, they give so much because you realize it is so 
much bigger than you. And I look at the people who come to work 
for us. Most of these folks could be doing something else, but they 
come—I am talking about Republican and Democrat. They come to 
work every day, they believe in what they are doing. And they give 
everything they have got. And so I know you said that you feel 
comfortable. You are on target, and I would just ask you to main-
tain that, and I am saying this for a reason, because I want people 
to know that they are appreciated; they really are. They are appre-
ciated for what they do because they are touching millions upon 
millions of Americans, and a lot of times I am sure they sit at their 
desks and say, you know, ‘‘What am I doing this for? Why have I 
got to go through this? The problems keep coming and whatever.’’ 
But I do believe that deep in their hearts people like you, for 31 
years, this apparently must feed your soul. It must. 

And I think that when people have a passion for something, that 
is where their strength is, and if we as the public are beneficiaries 
of your passion and of your purpose to make this society a better 
society, and I am convinced that once we work out the kinks in 
Obamacare, that we will have something that will benefit society 
long after we are dead. That, to me—I mean, I can’t think of too 
much more, when you think about, you know, looking back at your 
life and if someone were to write a book, and for you to be able to 
say, ‘‘Well, I did my part, I did it well,’’ and I am not just talking 
about you, but I am talking about all the team that are making it 
happen for IRS and Obamacare, if they want to call it that, I want 
to thank you. 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Chairman ISSA. I thank the gentleman. 
Quick announcement: I spoke to Acting Commissioner Werfel, 

and he was not able to get us the documents that we presented to 
you. Additionally, obviously, he—well, not obviously, but he stated 
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that in fact, he wouldn’t be able to determine whether you were 
correct or not correct about that being 6103 documentation. So I 
will work out with the committee and the commissioner how we 
can go through and get properly redacted material going forward, 
how we can get the discovery we did not. And we will try to resolve 
some of those questions, hopefully without having you back, even 
though I desperately would like to know the details underneath 
these communications and others. And from our oversight, it ap-
pears as though there are hundreds, if not thousands, of documents 
that have been claimed to be 6103 that are not. Again, you are not 
in the redaction business, neither is the commissioner directly, so 
we will work that out with him. 

I am going to go through just a couple of short things. You talked 
about the community. Under the Affordable Care Act, there is a 1 
percent tax, going to 2.5 percent, if somebody doesn’t buy insur-
ance, and as the President has said, you know, and many have 
said, that has been held, that law has been to the Supreme Court. 
But let me just run through the numbers for a moment and ask 
you with your experience of working with the community if this 
makes sense. Warren Buffet makes a couple of billion dollars in a 
bad year, so under the Affordable Care Act, as a single individual, 
his penalty would be in the millions if he did not buy insurance, 
and yet the required cap for insurance would be less than that. Do 
you find it interesting that there is no provision of the Affordable 
Care Act for somebody to self-insure or to in some other way meet 
the financial responsibility, and therefore they are being mandated 
to buy a profit-oriented insurance package, in many cases? 

Ms. INGRAM. Well, I want to—if I could speak first to the com-
ment about Mr. Buffett, the actual calculation of the tax is capped 
at what it would cost to go get insurance. So it wouldn’t be just 
simply a multiple of his income. But, I am sorry, I was—I apolo-
gize, I was distracted. 

Chairman ISSA. Would that be the minimum plan? Because right 
now, they set a minimum in the law, but there is no maximum dol-
lar set. So is that the high deductible, $4200, $5,000, $10,000? 

Ms. INGRAM. I am not going to have the exact, which premium 
it is, but it is capped at the cost it would otherwise take someone 
to go get insurance, and there is a definitional thing in there. I can 
give you a more precise answer—— 

Chairman ISSA. Okay. So if Mr. Buffett would have a $10,000 
plan—— 

Ms. INGRAM. Let’s say. 
Chairman ISSA. That would be the minimum he could have, and 

he would be penalized $10,000, taken from him, but he would get 
no health care. Is that right? 

Ms. INGRAM. That would be his economic choice at that point. 
Chairman ISSA. So he cannot insure and pay the same amount 

as for insuring under the law? 
Ms. INGRAM. I think there is a more sophisticated answer to that, 

so I would like to be able to respond more fully in—— 
Chairman ISSA. Yeah, no, please respond in writing, because 

from what we read is, if you pay the fine—if you self-insure, you 
will be charged the amount of having insured, you will have no cov-
erage, but you, in fact, can self-insured. So you can pay all of your 
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own charges, not be covered, and yet pay the same amount as if 
you were covered. I just—I find that sort of an interesting one. 

Let me switch to another part. In most of your 31 years of Fed-
eral service, I presume, and I am not trying to be overly personal, 
but I think it is for 2.1 million workers and 8 million covered, we 
are in FEHBP. Are you? 

Ms. INGRAM. Yes, I am. 
Chairman ISSA. So you are familiar with the 300 or so choices 

available and certainly the 11-plus that are available to you in any 
of the communities around the District of Columbia? You are in an 
FEHBP plan? 

Ms. INGRAM. I am. 
Chairman ISSA. But you have looked at the array of ones avail-

able? 
Ms. INGRAM. I am in a plan for that program, yes. 
Chairman ISSA. And does it meet the minimums under the Af-

fordable Care Act requirement for insurance? 
Ms. INGRAM. My understanding is that it does. 
Chairman ISSA. And employees of the House and Senate, includ-

ing employees of this committee, are in that plan also. Is there any 
reason, any logical reason that they should be thrown out of that 
plan, other than it was mandated in the law? 

Ms. INGRAM. I haven’t been involved in any of the discussions 
about what should or should not be done about the coverage of 
folks on the Hill—— 

Chairman ISSA. Okay. 
Ms. INGRAM. —and I would defer to those people. 
Chairman ISSA. Okay. Yeah, no, there are really stupid things 

done by the Members of the House and Senate to the employees 
who work for us, probably are something for you to stay out of as 
long as you get to stay in FEHBP. 

The next question is one that does fall to you. If Congress tomor-
row declared that FEHBP was a Federal exchange, would there be 
any inconsistency with Federal exchanges, small business Federal 
exchanges, such as the D.C. exchange? 

Ms. INGRAM. I am not sure what the inconsistency question is. 
Your question immediately started my brain working on the logis-
tics and the wiring, so I am sorry that’s where my brain went. 

Chairman ISSA. Right, but currently, FEHBP covers over 8 mil-
lion people. It covers COBRA for people who have left the Federal 
workforce. It covers the vast majority of retired Federal employees. 
And it covers virtually every current Federal employee and their 
families. So you have a plan that has over 300 options, you yourself 
in the District area get dozens and dozens of choices, HMOs, PPOs, 
conventional. You have a non-age-discrimination single price point 
that you can shop online prior to making your decision. Does it look 
like an exchange to you when you go into it or like an exchange 
you would like to have look? 

Ms. INGRAM. I am sorry, my particular enrollment has rolled over 
consistently for so many years, I don’t know what the experience 
is at the moment for new enrollees, so I can’t really respond to the 
extent to which the policymakers or this Congress wishes to look 
across those fact patterns and equate them. 
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Chairman ISSA. Well, let’s just go through. You have been study-
ing the Affordable Care Act and its implementation and the ex-
changes, so you’re familiar with what we are offering. 

Ms. INGRAM. Yes. 
Chairman ISSA. It doesn’t surprise you that Mr. Cummings or I 

can go online during open enrollment, and we can look through pol-
icy after policy, find out how much it costs and choose. 

Ms. INGRAM. Okay. 
Chairman ISSA. It doesn’t surprise you that there is no age dis-

crimination, that 31 years into your career you pay the same 
amount as somebody who is starting tomorrow, that it is a flat fee 
within FEHBP? 

Ms. INGRAM. I will take your word for it, sir. I am not an expert 
in FEHBP. 

Chairman ISSA. Well, I am a little surprised, 3 years working the 
Affordable Care Act. Let’s continue. 

Doesn’t it surprise you, though, that FEHBP, you are able to 
move from plan to plan and any preexisting condition is not a prob-
lem, right? 

Ms. INGRAM. That is my understanding. 
Chairman ISSA. And I am taking you through this. 
Ms. INGRAM. I am not sure, though. 
Chairman ISSA. It is true. 
Ms. INGRAM. Okay. 
Chairman ISSA. Take Trey Gowdy and my word for these things. 
Ms. INGRAM. Okay. 
Chairman ISSA. So it is portable, as long as you are within the 

Federal workforce. There is no age discrimination. It doesn’t care 
about preexisting conditions. And you have huge amount of dif-
ferent choices, HMOs, PPOs, and conventional. And you can be cov-
ered by 96 percent of all doctors in America and in all 50 States. 

In your opinion, if all that be true, is there any reason that the 
health care plan that you have, that I have, that the President and 
Vice President and every member of the Cabinet are eligible for 
shouldn’t be made available to the American people? 

Ms. INGRAM. That is a policy choice that I leave to people in pol-
icy positions. 

Chairman ISSA. If you were not in the Federal workforce, would 
you like access to the program you are in now, or would you like 
to go to an exchange? 

Ms. INGRAM. I would want to understand the, my options at the 
exchange at a personal level, depending on where I lived. 

Chairman ISSA. But is there any exchange that has as many 
choices as FEHBP or even close? 

Ms. INGRAM. I am not familiar with the array of choices in the 
various exchanges. That is HHS. I am not sure what question you 
are asking me, sir. 

Chairman ISSA. I am just asking you for the common sense of 
since FEHBP doesn’t have age discrimination, meets all the re-
quirements that were anticipated in the Affordable Care Act, why 
the President and Members of Congress in the House and Senate 
never opened up the plan they were in. In fact, the President has 
more choices than any exchange in America, so people being forced 
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into the exchanges, Federal exchanges, including my staff and Mr. 
Cummings’ staff, will be given less choice than FEHBP. 

I would hope you would be able to answer that. But let me just 
review one thing that I heard here today because I think it is im-
portant. The IRS is ready. They met their deadlines. They were 
timely, and in fact, there are no known flaws in the IRS’s perform-
ance as of today. 

Ms. INGRAM. True. 
Chairman ISSA. So we need to get Secretary Sebelius in here be-

cause basically HHS has screwed this whole thing up. The delays, 
the inability to get on, all of that comes out of HHS. It is not your 
end of the business. 

Ms. INGRAM. That is not the part that we have been working on, 
no. 

Chairman ISSA. Okay. Does it surprise you that if you go online, 
you deliver your Social Security number, as you are required to do, 
in order to get a calculation and look at plans, and then you decide 
not to accept any of the plans, and you go to exit, because they 
have made you give your Social Security number, they have made 
you, they have looked up your database, your tax information, and 
they have your email, they send you back an email telling you how 
much you are going to have to pay if you don’t take, sign up for 
the Affordable Care Act? 

Ms. INGRAM. I am not familiar with the way they’ve sequenced 
their enrollment process, other than I know that some of our folks 
have looked carefully at the questions that are asked to ensure 
that any tax-related items are correct and to ensure that no tax 
data is displayed on the face of the machine. 

Chairman ISSA. I just find it interesting that they use your tax-
payer database, even if somebody might have insurance, and they 
are just looking at what the exchange would be, because they don’t 
know whether they will have insurance, they go through the proc-
ess of checking—in order to check for a hypothetical enrollment, 
they give that information; they then get an email basically threat-
ening them with the fine if they don’t sign up. That is just an ob-
servation of people who were signing up, who are calling our offices 
and saying, I didn’t know I would be told how much I would have 
to pay if I didn’t enroll. 

Ms. INGRAM. The only time that we are sent a query is when 
somebody has gotten to a point in whatever exchange it is to say, 
I would like to learn about possible assistance. The way in which 
those questions are sequenced may not be uniform across the ex-
changes, but we do not receive a query for every person entering 
those Web sites, only if they decide they would like to learn about 
their assistance options. 

Chairman ISSA. Can you imagine—you had this question ear-
lier—did you ever get a complaint by somebody who got a tax cred-
it? Did you ever find somebody that didn’t want their taxes reduced 
or eliminated? Can you imagine anyone not finding—not checking 
to see, hey, can I get a subsidy? That is going to be almost univer-
sally asked by virtually everybody that goes online is, am I eligible 
for a tax credit or a subsidy? It is human nature. I think we estab-
lished that earlier. Don’t you agree? 
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Ms. INGRAM. I think that is their economic interest or curiosity. 
They are told that for the income information, the queries will in-
clude asking us about their tax data. If they don’t wish to check 
that box at that point, they can make that choice. 

Chairman ISSA. Well, Ms. Ingram, here is the good news. You 
have literally been saved by the bell. We have run out of inquiries. 
You have been very generous with your time. We will make every 
effort to not have you have to come back over the items that you 
have offered for the record and the items that we were not able to 
read. And with that, again, I thank you for your 31 years of serv-
ice, and we stand adjourned. 

[Whereupon, at 1:49 p.m., the committee was adjourned.] 
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